
NOWALSKY, BRONST N & GOTHARD 

A Professional Limited Liability Company 


.Attorneys at Law 

Leon L. Nowalsky 3500 North Causeway Boulevard 
 Monica Borne Haab 
Benjamin W . Bronston Suite 1442 EllenAnn G. Sands 
Edward P. Gothard Metairie, Louisiana 70002 Bruce C. Betzer 

Telephone: (504) 832-1984 . Philip R. Adams, Jf. 
Facsimile: (504) 831-0892 ,­ - ' ­ne. r · c c: 

c· r r 
("") .J.. <.:
r:lJune 30, 2004 fT'l­::o(/) :x:­::x.(/) ::i: 

0--- Cl 
C ,(

\D 
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to FIsCal for deposit Fiscal ro forward 
deposit Information 10 Records.Florida Public Service Commission 


Division of Administration 
 ~n_fo.wa_ ....cIt 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 

Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 


RE XFONE USA, INc . 

Dear Sirs: 

Enclosed please find an original and six (6) copies of the Application Form for au tho my to provide 
alternative local exchange service within the State of Florida, submitted on behalf of~, ; !one USA, loc. 
WS Telecom, Inc. d/b/a eXpeTel Communications, a Florida certificated ALEC, is illI ~rging into Xfone 
USA, loc., and this application is filed on behalf of Xfone USA in order to obtain authority in its own right 
as part of that transaction. Appropriate documentation regarding the merger is being tiled simultaneously 
with this application. The requisite $250.00 filing fee is enclosed here\vith. 

Please acknowledge receipt of this filing by returning a date stamped copy oftms letter in the self­

addressed envelope provided. 


Thank you for your assistance. Please call with any questions. 

Sincerely, 
~-~ 

Monica Borne Haab o~'P~w~ 
. ~nclosur[1; CM~ 

cc: Ted Parsons, eXpeTelfXFone USA 
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** FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

DIVISION OF REGULATORY OVERSIGHT 
CERTIFICATION SECTION 

APPLICATION FORM 
for 

AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE 
ALTERNATIVE LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE 

WITHtlN THE STATE OF FLORlDA 

I nstruct io ns 

* This form is used as an application for an original certificate and for approval of the 

12). 

assignment or transfer of an existing certificate. In the case of an assignment or 
transfer, the information provided shall be for the assignee or transferee (See Page 

Print or type all responses to each item requested in the application and appendices. 
If an item is not applicable, please explain why. 

Use a separate sheet for each answer which will not fit the allotted space. 

Once completed, submit the original and six (6) copies of this form along with a non- 
refundable application fee of $250.00 to: 

Florida Public Service CornmIssisn 
Division of Records and Reporting 
2540 Shutnard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 
(SSQ) 41 3-6770 

* If you have questions about completing the form, contact: 

Florida Public Service Commission 
Division of Regulatory Oversight 
Ce rtif k a t  io n Section 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Ta I I ahassee, Florida 3239Cl-O 850 
(850) 413-6480 

__ _- - I- __ 
FORM PSClCMU 73-11 1/95)---- - 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.87 0, and  25-24.81 5 

-_ I_-_ 



APP L I CAT1 0 N 

I. This is an application for (check one): 

(J ) Original certificate (new company). 

( ) Approval of transfer of existing certificate: Example, a non-certificated 
company purchases an existing company and desires to retain the original 
certificate of authority . 

) Approval of assignment of existing certificate: Example, a certificated 
company purchases an existing company and desires to retain the certificate of 
authority of that company. 

) Approval of transfer of control: Example, a company purchases 51 % of a 
certificated company. The Cornmission must approve the new controlling entity. 

2. Name of company: 

XFone USA, Inc. 

3. Name under which the applicant will do business (fictitious name, etc.): 

4. Qfficial mailing address (including street name & number, past office box, city, 
state, zip code): 

2506 Lakeland Drive, Suite 405 
Flowood, Mississippi 39232 

~- 
-~ FORM PSC/CMU 8-( I  1195) 

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810, and 25-24.815 

- .. - 
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5. Florida address (including street name & number, post office box, city, state, zip 
code) : 

6. Structure of organization: 

( ) Individual 
(J  ) foreign Corporation 
( ) General Partnership 
( ) Other 

( ) Corporation 
( ) Foreign Partnership 
( ) Limited Partnership 

7. If individual, provide: 

Name: 

Title: 

Address : 

City/State/Zip: 

Telephone No.: Fax No.: 

1 nternet €-Mail Address: 

Internet Website Address: 

8. if incorporated in Florida, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida: 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State corporate registhztion number-: 

. ---TORM PSC7CMU 8 (I 1195) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.81 0, and 25-24.81 5 

-~ 



9. If foreiqn corporation, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida: 
Exhibit A. 
(a) The Florida Secretary of State corporate registration number: 

Applied for. Will provide as suoplement to Application once available. 

I O .  If usina fictitious name-d/b/a, provide proof of compliance with fictitious name 
statute (Chapter 865.09, FS) to operate in Florida: 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State fictitious name registration number: 

11. If a limited liabilitv partnership, provide proof of registration to operate in 
Florida: 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State registration number: 

12. If a partnership, provide name, title and address of all partners and a copy of 
the partnership agreement. 

Name: 

Title: 

Address: 

C it y/S t a te/Zi p: 

Telephone No.: Fax No.: 

Internet E-Mail Address: 

Internet Website Address: 

13. 

14. 

If a foreian limited partnership, provide proof of compliance with the foreign 
limited partnership statute (Chapter 620.1 69, FS), if applicable. 

(a) The Florida registration number: 

Provide F.E.I. Number( if applicable): Applied for. Will provide as supplement 
once available. 

FORM PSClCMU 8 (1 1/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810, and 25-24.815 
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15. 

16. 

Indicate if any of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest stockholders 
have previousty been: 

(a) adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or found guilty of any felony or of any 
crime, or whether such actions may result from pending proceedings. Provide 
explanation. 

~~ 

(b) an officer, director, partner or stockholder in any other Florida certificated 
telephone company. If yes, give name of company and relationship. If no longer 
associated with company, give reason why not. 

Wade Spooner, President and Ted Parsons, Exec. V.P. of XFone USA, Inc. 
hold the same positions with WS Telecom, lnc. d/b/a eXpeTel Communications, 
a companv operating in Florida, which is being merged into Xfone USA, Inc. 

Who will serve as liaison to the Commission with regard to the following? 

(a) The application: 

Name: Monica Borne Haab 
Title: Attorney for Applicant 
Address: 
CitylStatelZip: Metairte, Louisiana 70002 

Internet E-Mail Address: rnhaab@ntqiaw.com 
Internet Website Address: 

3500 N. Causeway Blvd., Suite +I442 

Telephone No.: (504) 832-1 984 Fax NO.: (504) 831-0892 

~ __ 
5 -- FORIWI-PSWCMU 8 (1 1 /95) 

Requi red  by Commission Rule  Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810, and  25-24.815 

- 



17. 

(b) Official point of contact for the ongoing operations of the company: 

Name: Wade Spooner 
Title: President 
Address: 
CitylStatelZip: Flowood, MS 39232 
Telephone No.: (601) 664-1 008 Fax.: (601) 664-1 190 
Internet E-Mail Address: wspooner@expetel.com 
Internet Website Address: 

2506 Lakeland Drive, Suite 405 

(c) Complaintsllnquiries from customers: 

Name: Wade Spooner 
Ti tie: President 
Address: 2506 Lakeland Drive, Suite 405 
CitylStatelZip: Flowood, MS 39232 
Telephone No.: (601) 664-1 008 Fax No.: (601) 664-'l190 
internet €-Mail Address: wspooner@expetel.com 
Internet Website Address: 

List the states in which the applicant: 

(a) has operated as an alternative local exchange company. 

None. 

(b) has applications pending to be certificated as an alternative local exchange 
company. 

Applicant is applying for local authority in Alabama, Georgia, Louisiana 
and Mississippi. 

(c) is certificated to operate as an alternative local exchange company. 

None. 

(d) has been denied authority to operate as an alternative local exchange company 
and the circumstances involved. 

None. 

I.___-. - 
FORM PSCICMU 8 ('I 1/95) -- 6 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810, and 25-24.815 



(e) has had regulatory penalties imposed for violations of telecommunications 
statutes and the circumstances involved. 

None. 

(f) has been involved in civil court proceedings with an interexchange carrier, local 
exchange company or other telecommunications entity, and the circumstances 
involved. 

18. Submit the following: 

A. Managerial capability: give resumes of employeeslofficers of the 
company that would indicate sufficient managerial experiences of each. 

Exhibit B. 

B. Technical capability: give resumes of employees/officers of the company 
that would indicate sufficient technical experiences or indicate what 
company has been contracted to conduct technical maintenance. 

See Exhibit B. 

__ ~- - __ . ~- -_ _. ."II____. - 
7 FORM PSCICMU 8 (1 1/95) 

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.81 0, and 25-24.815 
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C. Financial capability. 

The IOK statement of the Applicant's parent company are submitted as 
Exhibit C. 

The application should contain the applicant's audited financial statements for the 
most recent 3 years. If the applicant does not have audited financial statements, it 
shall so be stated. 

The unaudited financial statements should be signed by the applicant's chief executive 
officer and chief financial officer affirming that the financial statements are true and 
correct and should include: 

1. the balance sheet: 

2. income statement: and 

3. Statement of retained earnings. 

NOTE: Tbis documentation may include, but is not limited to, financial Statements, a 
projected profit and loss sfatement, credit references, credit bureau reports, and descriptions 
of business relationships with financial institutions. 

Further, the following (which includes supporting documentation) should be provided: 

7 .  

2. 

3. 

written explat~at i~n that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to provide 
the requested service in the geographic area proposed to be served. 

written exp[ana$iort that the appiicant has suffkient financial capabiiity io maintain 
the requested service. 

written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to meet its 
lease or ownership obligations. 

- __ I 

8 
- . 

FORNTPSC/CMU-8 (I 7/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810, and 25-24.81 5 
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I. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

THIS PAGE MUST BE COMPLETED AND SIGNED 

APPLICANT ACKNOWLEDGMENT STATEMENT 

REGULATORY ASSESSMENT FEE: I understand that all telephone companies must 
pay a regulatory assessment fee in the amount of. 15 of one percent of gross operating 
revenue derived from intrastate business. Regardless of the gross operating revenue of 
a company, a minimum annual assessment fee of $50 is required. 

GROSS RECEIPTS TAX: I understand that all telephone companies must pay a gross 
receipts tax of two and one-half percent on all intra and interstate business. 

SALES TAX: I understand that a seven percent sales tax must be paid on intra and 
interstate revenues. 

APPLICATION FEE: I understand that a non-refundable application fee of $250.00 must 
be submitted with the application. 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: 

Wade Spooner 
Print Name 

President -. 
t mtFe 

(GO I )  664-1 008 
Telephone No. 

(601) 664-1190 
Fax No. 

Address: 2506 Lakeland Drive, Suite 405 

Flowood, MS 32932 

I - . - - 
-- FORM PSC/CMU-&-(7 1795) 9 

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.870, and 25-24.815 



THIS PAGE MUST BE COMPLETED AND SIGNED 

AFFIDAVIT 

By my signature below, I ,  the undersigned officer, attest to the accuracy of the 
information contained in this application and attached documents and that the 
applicant has the technical expertise, managerial ability, and financial capability to 
provide alternative local exchange company service in the State of Florida. I have 
read the foregoing and declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the 
information is true and correct. I attest that I have the authority to sign on behalf of my 
company and agree to comply, now and in the future, with all applicable Commission 
rules and orders. 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: / 

Signat I Wade Spooner 
Print Name 

President 
Title Date 

(601) 664-1 008 (601) 664-1190 
Telephone No. Fax No. 

Address: 2506 Lakeland Drive, Suite 405 

Flowood, MS 39232 

I I - . - ___. - ~ 

10 FORM PSC/CMU 8 ( 2  1/95] 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810, and 25-24.815 
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INTRASTATE NETWORK (if available) 

Chapter 25-24.825 (5), Florida Administrative Code, requires the company to make available 
to staff the alternative local exchange service areas only upon request. 

I. 

2. 

3. 

POP: Addresses where located, 

3) 

and indicate if owned or leased. 

4) 

SWITCHES: Address where located, by type of switch, and indicate if owned 
or leased. 

3) 4) 

TRANSMISSlON FACILITIES: POP-to-POP facilities by type of facilities 
(microwave, fiber, copper, satellite, etc.) and indicate if owned or leased. 

POP-to-POP OWNERSHIP 

I .II I___ _. 
FORM PSC/CMU-8 (1 1195)--- ~ 1 1  

I_ 

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810, and 25-24.815 



CERTIFICATE SALE, TRANSFER, OR ASSIGNMENT STATEMENT 

1, 1 of 

and current holder of Florida Public 

Service Commission Certificate Number ## 

this application and join in the petitioner’s request for a: 

( ) sale 

( ) transfer 

( ) assignment 

of the above-mentioned certificate. 

, have reviewed 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: 

- - _ _  
1 i--- - _I 

FORM PSC/CMU 8 T I  1/95>------- 
Required by Cornmission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.81 0. and 25-24.81 5 

.̂ I-- 



EXHIBIT A 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY ISSUED 
BY THE FLORIDA SECRETARY OF STATE 

The Applicant has applied for a Certificate of Authority, and will provide 
documentation as soon as it is available from the Secretary of State's office. 



EXHIBIT B 

MANAGEMENT PROFILES 



Wade Spooner 

Chairman, CEO and President 

Prior to  founding expelel Communications, Wade Spooner, the Company's Chairman, CEO 
and President, was the President and Chief Operating Officer of LSCI Telecommunications, 
Inc., an integrated Regional Local Exchange Carrier with operations in Mississippi and 
Louisiana. Prior to  joining LSCI, Spooner worked with competitive telecommunications 
service providers, most recently serving as Director of Technical Operations for 
ITC*DeltaCom, Inc. (NASDAQ: ITCD), a publicly traded Competitive Local Exchange 
Carrier (CLEC) and fiber optic network provider, and served as Chairman and CEO for I.T. 
GROUP Communications, a regional, facilities-based, voice and data communications 
company operating out of Jackson, Mississippi. 1.T.GROUP Communications was 
subsequently acquired by ITPDeltaCom. Spooner received a B.S. Degree in Petroleum 
Engineering from Mississippi State University. 

Ted Parsons 

Executive Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer 

Ted Parsons has served as a board member of the Company since its inception, and is the 
Company's Executive Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer, responsible for business 
development, regulatory, marketing, product management and sales. Prior to this, Parsons 
served as Sr. Vice President of Sales, Marketing and Product Management in the wholesale 
CLEC industry working for Thrifty Call in Austin, Texas from 1999 through 2001. Parsons, 
while at Thrifty Call, developed and managed the sales and marketing opxations to the 
next level, and was responsible for the successful management of $loo+ million in 
revenue. Parsons worked with ITPDeltaCom as Regional Director of Sales for the 
Mississippi-Arkansas Region, after successfulty selling his former Company, I.T. GROUP 
Communications, a regional, facilities-based, voice and data communications Company 
operating out of Jackson, Mississippi, t o  ITC*DeltaCom in 1998. Parsons had a successful 
career at I.T. GROUP, serving as founder, President and Chief Operations 3fficer since its 
inception in 1991. Parsons received a B.S. in Marketing from the University of Mississippi. 



Ted Carter 

Vice President of Internal Operations 

Ted Carter serves as Vice President of Internal Operations, overseeing the daily operations 
of Customer Service, Provisioning, Billing and Collections. Carter is a founding shareholder 
and prior to his current position, served, as Director of Interconnection Services, 
Provisioning and Billing. Carter continues to be the point man on al l  Interconnection 
Services for the Company. Prior to joining the Company in March 2001, Carter served as 
Interconnection Manager for LSCI Telecommunications, Inc., and integrated Regional Local 
Exchange Carrier with operations in Mississippi and Louisiana. Carter played a key role in 
the development and establishment of the Resale and Facility-based Interconnection 
Agreement between LSCI and BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. Carter served as Service 
Coordinator for ITC*DeItaCom and Circuit Design Engineer for Intermedia 
Communications, Inc. (ICI) in Tampa, FL, designing Frame Relay circuits for the Florida 
State Government Agencies. Carter also was a Circuit Design/Provisioner for WorldCom 
and spent 19 years in many capacities with BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. Carter 
received his BLS from Millsaps College in Jackson, Mississippi. 

Trevor Drake 

Director of Sales 

Trevor Drake is a results-oriented professional with over a decade of sales and 
management experience in the telecommunications industry. Prior to  joining eXpeTeI, 
Drake served as Application Sales Engineer for Cavalier Telephone, a CLEC located in 
Washington, DC. Drake provided voice and data design applications for Major Accounts. 
Drake also served as Sales Engineer for Advanced Telecom Group in Northern Virginia, 
providing technical and sales support for the Virginia and Maryland offices. Prior to  his 
career in the telecommunications industry, Drake served as Vice President of  Marketing for 
Factual Data/Credit Services, Inc. a credit reporting company located in Memphis, 
Tennessee. Drake received his  B.S. in Biology from Middle Tennessee State University. 



5ill Moore 

Director of Information Technologies 

Bill Moore serves as Director of Information Technologies, and is responsible for the 
Company's computer services, networking, Intranet, Internet, and business application 
needs. Prior to joining eXpeTeI, Moore served as Senior Technical Lead and Senior 
Application Developer for WorldCom, Inc. where he lead a team tasked to  build a Human 
Resources Data Warehouse that would support a suite of business applications and 
processes. Stationed at the company Corporate Head Quarters for WorldCom, Inc. in 
Clinton, Mississippi, Moore had the opportunity to be a part of and lead several different IT  
teams. Some of which dealt with the automation of certain functions of WorldCom's Local 
and Long Distance service provisioning. Other teams and projects included building a 
Corporate Intranet and developing business applications that would make internal business 
more efficient and effective. Moore has gained 10 years of experience in the IT field. Moore 
received his B.S. in Computer Science from Mississippi State University. 

Kurt Turner 

Director of Network Facilities 

Kurt Turner serves as Director of Network Facilities, overseeing t h e  engineering, planning, 
provisioning and maintenance of the Company's carrier switch and network. The Company 
utilizes a Class 5 Carrier telephony switch manufactured by Taqua to deliver feature rich 
telephony services to its customers. Prior t o  his role as Director of Network Facilities 
Turner served as Manager of Provisioning here a t  eXpeTel Communications. Prior to joining 
the company Turner worked for Cincinnati Bell, Broadwing where he served as Provisioning 
Manager successfully forecasting and meeting revenue projections exceeding $100,000 
monthly and overseeing the design, provisioning, installation, and turn up of DS1 and DS3 
circuits. Turner has also served MCI, WorldCom as a Circuit Design / Provisioner and 
Cingular Wireless as a Project Manager / Provisioner. Turner began his telecommunications 
career in the U S .  ARMY were he was responsible for installation, operation, and 
maintenance of GTE switching Systems, Cellular Systems, and Digital UHF, SHF, VHF, 
multi-channel line-of-sight transmission equipment. Relevant Certifications include Taqua 
Certified OCX OAM&P, and GTE Certified MSE with Honors. 



Lisa Dunn 

Director of Accounting and Human Resources 

Lisa Dunn serves as Treasurer and Director of Accounting and Human Resources. Dunn is 
responsible for accounting operations and human resource functions. Dura, prior to joining 
the Company in 2002, was co-founder in the Jackson, Mississippi based accounting firm 
Dunn & Nabors and prior to this Dunn worked as a CPA for Horne CPA Group and Koury 
Boleware I3 Associates, both companies located in Jackson, Mississippi. Dunn received her 
B.S. in Accounting from Belhaven College and earned her Masters of Accountancy from 
Millsaps College. Dunn earned her CPA designation in 1998. 



EXHIBIT C 

FI NAN C I A L DOC U M E NTATl 0 N 

In support of its financial capability to provide the requested services, the Applicant has 
provided the most recent 10K report of i ts parent company, XFone, Inc. As filed with the 
SEC. 

I 
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XFONE, I N C .  
(Name of small business issuer in i t s  chaster) 

Nevada 
( S t a t e  or other jurisdiction 

of incorporation or organization) 

11-3618510 
(I. R. S .  Employer 

Identification No.) 

c/o S w i f t n e t  L t d .  Britannia House 
960 High Road 

London, Uni ted  Kingdom N12 9RY 
(Address of principal executive o f f i c e s )  (Zip Code) 

011.44.845.1087777 
(Registrant's telephone number, including area code) 

Registrant has filed all reports required to be filed by S e c t i o n  13 or 15(d) of 
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 d u r i n g  the preceding 1 2  months and has been 
subjec t  to such filing requirements for the p a s t  90 days.  

Check if there is no disclosure of delinquent f i l e r s  in response to Item 405 of 
Regulation S-B is n o t  contained in this form, and no disclosure will be 
contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy  or 
information statements incorporated by reference i n  Part 111 of this Form 10-KSB 
or any amendment to this Form 10-KSB. [XI 

The a g g r e g a t e  market v a l u e  of t h e  v o t i n g  and non-voting common equity held by 
non-affiliates was $ 5,917,513 as determined by the closing price of $3.40 on 
June 4, 2004. 

The issuer's revenues f o r  its most recent fiscal year were 7,282,181 United 
Kingdom Pounds ($12,962,282) 

A s  of June 7, 2004, there were 6,105,445 shares  of our common stock issued and 
outstanding. 

We have incorporated by reference, our  Form SB-2 Registration Statement and  all 
amendments t h e r e t o .  

Transitional Small Business Disclosure Format (Check  one): Yes [ ] No [XI 
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PART I. 

ITEM 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS. 

BUSINESS 

We provide international long distance voice and  data communications services 
solely through our subsidiary, Swiftnet, Ltd., which h a s  conducted 
communications service operations in the United Kingdom since 1990. Swiftnet's 
business consists of selling various telecommunication related services, 
including telephone, facsimile, e-mail, calling cards, and Internet driven 
applications. Because our operations are conducted s o l e l y  through Swiftnet, we 
have provided the same services since our Our customers are located 
in 75 countries in Europe, Australia, North America, South America, Asia, and 
Africa. located in 
the United Kingdom. 

inception. 

At least 85% of our  revenues are derived from our customers 

Our future business plans, as detailed below, include accelerating our program 
of recruiting resellers and agents, promoting additional services, purchasing 
new equipment and technology, attempting to n e g o t i a t e  lower rates with carriers, 
upgrading our database, and creating new marketing initiatives. 

Our Principal Services and their Markets: 

Although we have  our own switch which connects to other telephone operators, our 
long distance voice and data communications services require the services of 
other telephone operators that operate switches, which are electronic devices 
t h a t  receive calls from customers on one side and move them on to their 
destination on the o t h e r  s i d e .  We use the network switching and transport 
facilities of l o n g  distance either by 
more established large telephone operators or smaller telephone operators. The 
more established large telephone operators typically provide a better quality of 
communications, such as better sound, less interference, and less sudden 
disconnections; however, the large telephone operators are more expensive 
compared w i t h  small telephone operators which have lower cost prices, but 
typically less service quality in these areas. 

providers in which calls are transferred 

We operate a live customer service c e n t e r  that operates 24 hours a day, 
week. 

7 days a 

We provide the following telecommunication services: 

0 

0 

Indirect telephone service: Using a four digit access code we 
r e s e l l  telephone services provided by o t h e r  carriers or 
through the use of our own platform. This four digit access 
code is used so that that people in Great Britain can dial in 
order to reach certain o t h e r  carriers. This enables us to take 
c a l l s  originated by customers and route them to different 
destinations. 

P I N  access using 0800 free numbers: Using 0800 free numbers 
and PIN access codes for client i d e n t i f i c a t i o n ,  OUT customers 
can c a l l  from almost any phone, including E3r i t i sh  Telecom pay 
phones, to access our platform and make calls to any 
destination. 



0 Mobile access using 0800 free numbers: T h i s  service is similar 
to our PIN access service b u t  u s e s  mobile telephone devices. 
T h e  identification of the client is automatic and P I N  
identifier numbers are not r e q u i r e d .  
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0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

Email to Facsimile service: Our EmailZFax service allows 
customers with an Internet Email account to send facsimiles at 
a discounted cost. The email arrives at our Internet server 
which we send via facsimile through high-speed facsimile 
modems to t h e  proper destination. We issue a confirmation 
every 15 minutes indicating: (a) all successful or f a i l e d  
facsimile transmissions; and (b) a complete list of 
transmissions, including date and time of delivery, 
destination number, pages, duration, subject, and answerback 
of the transmission. EmailZFax will send a facsimile based on 
a pre-defined table of retries. If a facsimile does not go 
through within the pre-defined time, Email2Fax will cancel the 
facsimile and a report of t h e  failed transmission will be 
included in the next status report. 

Print to Facsimile service: Similar to our EmailZFax service, 
anyone with Windows 95 and an Internet browser will be able to 
utilize o u r  Print2Fax service to send a facsimile through 
their printer driver, usually at a discounted cost. Using any 
Windows application that supports printing, the user selects 
the printer driver to receive a d i a l o g  box that allows entry 
of: (a) the recipient name and fax number (including multiple 
recipients, s e n t  directly lrTo" or copied "CC"; (b) the 
sender's name; and (c) the subject. 

Facsimile to Email o r  Cyber  Number: This service allows the 
user to receive facsimile messages d i r e c t l y  to an email 
address through the use of a personal identification number. 

Facsimile Broadcast: This service enables our business 
customers to quickly send thousands of facsimiles to various 
destinations. 

Nodal Services: This service enables our business customers to 
use a small platform l o c a t e d  in their respective country, to 
establish their own messaging services within t h a t  country, 
including sending and receiving customer facsimiles. 

Auracall: This is a service that was introduced in 
approximately March 2002, which permits any individual with a 
British Telecom line to make international calls at a lower 
cost and without prepayment for setting up an account with 
another carrier. The Auracall service can be accessed by any 
business or residential u s e r  through our website at 
www.auracall.com. When customers need to make an international 
or national call they can dial the appropriate designed number 
for that country and save on calling rates over the current 
British Telecommunications published rates by gaining access 
to our switch and providing savings on a per  minute basis. 

Story Telecom: Initiates, markets 
calling cards that are served by our 
supplies the prepaid calling cards 
its network of dealers. These cards 
United Kingdom pound denominations. 
the h o l d e r  to call anywhere in th 
free number from any telephone tha 

and distributes prepaid 
switch and s y s t e m s .  S t o r y  

to retail stores through 
a r e  sold in 5, 10, and 20 
The calling card enables 

.e world by dialing a t o l l  
t routes the holder's call 



to our Interactive Voice Response System that automatically 
asks for the holder's private p i n  code, validates the code  
d i a l ed  by the customer, and tells the c r e d i t  ba lance  of t h e  
card. The holder is then i n s t r u c t e d  to dial to his or her 
desired destination, at which time our Interactive Voice 
Response System t e l l s  t h e  holder how long he or she  can speak 
according to the balance on the card and what the c o s t  per  
minute is. The holder of the card can use the card repeatedly 
until the balance is zero. 
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0 

0 

International Toll Free C a l l i n g  Card Service: We began 
offering international t o l l  free calling card service during 
approximately June 2002 from the United States, Canada, 
France, Germany, Greece, Israel, Chile, Columbia, Japan, 
Thailand, Hong Kong, Indonesia, Australia, N e w  Zealand,  
Belgium, Netherlands, Austria, Italy, Switzerland, Spain, 
Poland, Hungary, I r e l a n d ,  Norway, Philippines, South Korea and 
Sweden. We also offer Story Telecorn Ltd.'s branded calling 
cards. 

Internet Based Customer Service and Billing Interface. In June 
2002, we completed the creation of our Internet based customer 
service and billing interface at www.xfone.com, which includes 
on-line registration, full account control, and payment and 
billing functions and information retrieval. To complete our 
Internet based customer service and billing interface, we 
enhanced our Internet operations by, among other things, 
fine-tuning our website which consisted of integrating and 
adding more services, perfecting our billing system, and 
launching o u r  Internet operations in beta format. During 2003, 
we p l a n  to continue enhancing this service at an estimated 
cost of $100,000. 

C a r r i e r  Pre Select Service - B r i t i s h  Telecom is our main local 
service provider that manages our local telecom related 
infrastructure, which represents the lines from our customers 
to our switch. Therefore, when a customer dials n O O "  for 
international access, the call, by default, is channeled 
through British Telecom, and the customer pays British Telecom 
for that call. Prior to offering our Carrier Pre-Select 
Service, t h e  customer would have to dial a special f o u r  digit 
code in o r d e r  that B r i t i s h  Telecom would address the call to 
our switch. Because many businesses and Customers prefer not 
to dial a special code, we either programmed the customer's 
switchboard or installed a special add on box so t h a t  when 
dialing 1 1 0 0 " ,  it d i a l s  our  four digit code. This need for this 
process was eliminated f o r  customers that choose to register 
f o r  our pre select  service o f f e r e d  to our existing as well as 
our new customers without any additional charge. We initiated 
this service in October 2003 .  With this service, we instruct 
our main local service provider, British Telecom, to route the 
 customer.'^ telephone number when the customer dials "00" to 
o u r  switch, so to Swiftnet, which allows customers to route 
their telephone calls through a carrier without dialing a 
spec ia l  4 digit access code, and without our hav ing  to program 
an existing switchboard or install a smart box. For instance, 
if o u r  customers want to d i a l  the United States, they can dial 
the standard 011, rather than having to also dial a special 4 
digit access code. 

Discontinued Service: 

From approximately 1990 until January 2002, we offered an EmailZtelex service 



which allowed a u s e r  w i t h  an Internet 
in the world at a discounted c o s t .  In January of 2002, we discontinued 

einail account to send telexes to anywhere 
offering 

this service due to low demand. 

Our Platforms: 

A platform g e n e r a l l y  could  be any personal computer with telecommunications 
applications, such as c a l l i n g  cards  and transferring c a l l  applications. We 
operate t h e  following platforms in our business: 

0 

0 

0 

Telesis Switch t h a t  enables us to interconnect with other 
telephone carriers; 

Calling cards and prepay platforms t h a t  enable us to use v o i c e  
prompts and to accept  pin numbers; and 

Messaging platform that manages facsimile broadcasts and 
messaging applications. 

5 

Revenues : 

The percentage of our revenues are derived from the following: 

0 Approximately 60% from our telephone services; 

0 

0 

Approximately 10% from our messaging services, including facsimile, 
nodal and e-mail related services; and 

Approximately 30% from our calling cards, including 0800 a n d  p i n  
access. 

Discount Telephone Rates: 

As indicated below, some of our services offer discount rates compared to some 
other te lecom ope ra to r s ,  such as United Kingdom's l a r g e s t  telecom operator, 
British Telecom. For instance: 

0 

0 

For a call from the United Kingdom to the United States, we 
charge between 3 United Kingdom pence ($0.05) per minute while 
British Telecom charges 17.5 to 20 United Kingdom pence ($0.32 
to $0.36) per minute; 

For a c a l l  from the United we charge 3 
United Kingdom pence Telecorn 
charges 33.30 to 41.70 United Kingdom pence per minute ($0.6 

Kingdom t o  Australia, 
($0.05) per  minute while British 

to $0.74); and 

This  information was obtained from our website at www.xfone.com and B r i t i s h  
Telecorn's website at www.serviceview.bt.com. We have many competitors, however, 
that also o f f e r  discounted rates. 

Our Customers: 

We have f o u r  major types of  customers: 

0 

0 

Residential - These customers either must d i a l  a four digit 
access code or acquire a box t h a t  dials automatically. 

Commercial - Smaller businesses are treated the same as 
residential customers. Larger businesses have the need for a 
Private Branch Exchange Unit, otherwise known as a PBX Unit, 
which is a centralized answering and calling System also known 
as a switchboard. so We program the PBX Unit of our customers 



that all of their c a l l s  axe r o u t e d  to us directly, and to save  
the customer the need to dial a f o u r  digit access code. 

0 

0 

Government Agencies - Includes the United Nations World 
Economic Forum, the Argentine Embassy, and the Israeli 
Embassy. 

Resellers, such as WorldNet and VSAT - We prov ide  them with 
our telephone and messaging services for a wholesale price. 
For WorldNet, w e  also s u p p l y  the billing system. 

Our Billing Practices: 

We charge our customers based on usage by full o r  partial minutes. Our r a t e s  
vary with distance, duration, time, and type of call, b u t  are not dependent upon 
the facilities selected for the c a l l  transmission. The standard terms for our 
regular telephone customers require that payments are due 21 days f rom the date 
of the invoice. Our prepay telephone services represent around 37 percent of our 
revenues. Our supplier's standard terms are payment within 30 days from i n v o i c e  -~ 

date; however, some new suppliers ask for shorter payment terms. 
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Divisions: 

We operate the following divisions: 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

Partner Division - Our Partner Division operates as a separate 
profit center by attempting to recruit new resellers and 
agents to market our products and services and to provide 
support and guidance to resellers and agents. We currently 
have 20 active resellers and 21 active a g e n t s .  

Operations Division - Our Operations Division provides the 
following operational functions to our business: (a) 24 hour/7 
day a week technical support; (b) inter-company network; (c) 
hardware and software installations; and (d) operating switch 
and other platforms. 

Administration Division - Our Administration Division provides 
the billing, collection, credit control, and customer support 
aspects of our business. 

Research and Development - The function of our Research and 
Development Division is to develop and improve our billing 
system, switch and telephony platforms, websites and special 
projects . 

Retail - Our Retail Division is responsible o u r  marketing and 
selling campaigns that t a r g e t  potential and existing retail 
customers. 

Geographic Markets: 

Our p r  
Angola 
Cambod 
Denmar 
India, 
Korea, 
Malays 
Niger1 
Russia 
Spain, 

imary We a l s o  have customers in 
, Australia, Austria, Bangladesh, Belgium, Benin, Brazil, Bulgaria, 
ia, Cameroon, Canada, China ,  Congo, Croatia, Cyprus, Czech Republic, 
k, Egypt, Finland, France, Germany, Gibraltar, Greece, Guinea, Hong Kong, 
Indonesia, I r a n ,  I r i sh  Republic, Israel, Italy, Ivory Coast, Japan, North 
South Korea, Kuwait, Latvia, Lebanon,  L i b e r i a ,  Lithuania, Malawi, 

i a ,  Maldives Isles, Mauritius, Nepal, Nether lands,  New Zealand, Niger, 
a, Norway, Oman, P a k i s t a n ,  Panama, Philippines, Poland, Portugal, Qatar ,  
, Saud i  Arabia, Sierra Leone, Singapore, Slovak Republic, Sou th  Africa, 
Sri Lanka, Sweden, Switzerland, Taiwan, Tanzania, Thailand, Togo, Turkey ,  

geographic market is the United Kingdom. 

U.A.E, Uganda, USA and Vietnam. 



Our Distribution and Marketing Methods: 

We use the following distribution methods to market o u r  services: 

0 We actively r e c r u i t  independent contractor agents and 
resellers who purchase telephone traffic directly from us at 
an approximately 25% discount, and who then resell this 
telephone traffic to their customers at a mark-up according to 
their own p r i c e  lists; 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

We use direct marketing, 
and newspaper advertisements; 

primarily using facsimile broadcasts 

We utilize agents that s e l l  our services directly to customers 
at our established prices; these agents receive a commission 
of approximately 10% of the total sale amount less any bad 
debts ; 

We attend telecommunications trade shows in the United Kingdom 
to promote our services; 

We advertise on a m o n t h l y '  basis in "Corns Dealer", a 
telecommunications agents/resellers t r a d e  magazine; and 

We utilize the Internet as an additional distribution channel 
for our services. We u t i l i z e  Xfone.com as o u r  brand name for 
our new e-commerce telecommunications operations. We p l a n  to 
build a brand name w i t h  "xfone.com" by advertising our 
Internet services, partnering with other websites, and 
offering attractive r a t e s  and quality of lines. 

We do not have in-house sales personnel. 
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Future Business Plans 

Our future business plans during 2004 will include t h e  following 

Recruitment 

We p lan  to accelerate our program of recruiting resellers and agents during 
2004, as follows: 

0 advertising in telecoms trade publications; 

0 an on-going targeted email campaign supported by telephone 
marketing by our in-house s t a f f  to potential re-sellers who 
have been identified as i d e a l  candidates to become reseller 
p a r t n e r s  ; 

0 

0 

should our reseller base increase, we will employ account 
managers whose job  w i l l  be to manage their own group of newly 
recruited resellers; account managers will receive a fixed 
salary and performance related bonuses and will r epor t  to our 
Director of Sales and Marketing; and 

two senior s a l e s  personnel will be recruited to sell our fixed 
line and mobile services to the corporate m a r k e t ;  we will 
emphasize to potential corporate clients, our combination of 
low cost h i g h  quality fixed line telephony together with a 
range of competitively priced mobile price plans. 

We estimate that our recruitment related c o s t s  will be approximately $5,000 per 



month. 

New Products 

Swiftnet D i a l  Direct 

Swiftnet Dial Direct is a new service where residential and small business 
clients can immediately have access to low cost international calls without 
setting up an account, prepayment, or t h e  purchase of a calling card. As this 
service is totally automatic and requires no billing or account maintenance, we 
can o f f e r  low prices coupled with low cost to us- In March 2004, we plan to 
recruit self employed agents to sell this service. We estimate that our costs 
pertaining to this new service w i l l  be approximately $3,000 per month. 

Wholesale Line Rental 

Beginning in April 2004, we will be able to take over British Telecom’s BT l i n e ,  
which is the telephone line supplied by British Telecom that connects the client 
with t h e  national telephone network. We will accomplish this by purchasing t h e  
BT line at wholesale We will 
bill o u r  customers with one bill for their telephone line and their calls. This 
gives us complete who o n l y  has one place to go to order 
additional lines and services, as well as c a l l s .  This will also give us the 
opportunity to offer bundled packages which for a fixed amount per month will 
o f f e r  line rental, a mobile phone handset, and inclusive mobile and f i x e d  line 
minutes. We estimate t h a t  our costs associated with the wholesale line rental 
will be approximately $8,000 per month. 

rates and then reselling the line to our clients. 

control of the client, 

3roadband Internet Connection 

Beginning in April 2004, we will be offering a Swiftnet branded broadband 
Internet connection to our existing residential and business clients. We 
estimate that our costs associated with the Broadband Internet Connection will 
be approximately $2,000 per month. 
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N e w  Software 

New software to supply SMS broadcasting to mobile phones is being developed by a 
specialized software house. SMS broadcasting allows the simultaneous sending of 
a text message to several thousand recipients. We plan to supply SMS 
broadcasting to our reseller and client base in approximately May 2004. We 
estimate total costs of approximately $20,000 associated w i t h  the new software. 

New Marketing Initiatives 

We will be seeking partnerships with charities and groups or entities with a 
loyal client or supporter base, providing that they have a minimum of 1000 
supporters. We will initially target over 1000 soccer clubs located in the 
United Kingdom to o f f e r  affinity deals, where supporters receive low cost 
telephone c a l l s  and the clubs receive a monthly percentage of the c a l l  revenue .  
We will a l s o  be looking at other opportunities in the sporting arena together 
with retailers who have their own loyalty card customer base and credit card 
companies. 

Direct fax broadcasting and email and SMS marketing will continue to be used as 
tools to attract new end user clients. We are also considering setting up an 
outbound telemarketing operation which will be outsourced to a specialist call 
centre in Asia. 

We estimate that our c o s t s  associated with the new marketing initiatives will be 
approximately $10,000 per month. 

Carriers and Negotiating Lower Rates 



Our i n c r e a s e d  sales i n  2 0 0 3  have  enabled  us  t o  negotiate significantly lower 
rates with the carriers we use t o  c a r r y  our international call traffic, which 
gives us the opportunity to increase o u r  margins or offer significant reductions 
to secure deals with major clients. Should our s a l e s  increase, we w i l l  continue 
to negotiate for lower rates should our s a l e s  increase. 

IT and Software Development 

W e  a r e  i n  the process of upgrading our database which the core of our client 
maintenance and billing system. This will give us daily access to sa les  and 
profitability per client and enable us to check carrier rates on a daily basis. 
We are a l s o  introducing new Customer Relationship Management software to t r a c k  
our prospects and clients. We estimate that our IT and software development 
related costs will be approximately $30,000, which we p lan  to fund  from o u r  
operations. 
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M a t e r i a l  Agreements: 

RESELLER AGREEMENTS 

We have agreements w i t h  approximately 20 resellers. The following agreements 
represent our principal reseller agreements. 

Worldnet Reseller Services Agreement 

Our wholly owned subsidiary, Swiftnet, Ltd, has a March 8, 2000 reseller 
agreement with Worldnet Global Communications, Ltd., which is l o c a t e d  in London, 
United Kingdom. In this agreement, Worldnet agrees  to sell t he  
telecommunications services supplied by Swiftnet and t o  use its best  endeavors  
t o  promote Swiftnet's services, but agrees not to r e f e r  directly o r  indirectly 
to Swiftnet or u s e  any of Swiftnet's trade names or literature or hold it out to 
be in any way connection to Swiftnet. The agreement further provides that 
Swiftnet reserves the right to reject any customer and the r i g h t  to use any 
carrier and/or s u b c o n t r a c t o r  to perform some or all of its obligations. Swiftnet 
may without prejudice terminate the agreement immediately by s e r v i n g  written 
notice to the reseller if Worldnet becomes Insolvent or fails to make any 
payment w h e n  due under the agreement a f t e r  having received 7 days written notice 
t o  do s o  from S w i f t n e t .  Worldnet may terminate this agreement immediately by 
serving written notice on S w i f t n e t  if Swiftnet becomes Insolvent or its license 
is revoked  or altered so  t h a t  i t  i s  not permitted by l a w  to provide  the 
services. 

Story Telecom Ltd. Agreement 

Our subsidiary, Swiftnet, owns a 40% interest in Story Telecom Ltd. This 40% 
interest was conveyed to Swiftnet in accordance with the terms of a September 
30, 2002 agreement. The p a r t i e s  to the agreement, us, Swiftnet, Ltd., and Mr. 
Nir Davidson who i s  the Managing Director of S t o r y  Telecom, Ltd, agreed  to 
establish a j o i n t  business to develop, s e l l ,  market, and distribute 
telecommunications products bearing the name of Story Telecom L t d .  

Under the agreement, Swiftnet w i l l  supply Story Telecom Ltd. w i t h :  

( a )  Cost p l u s  6% prices (to cover certain c o s t s )  w i t h  the base cost  plus 
percentage f o r  the f i r s t  three months of operations at 4%; 

(b) Its technological backbone, which includes Swiftnet's hardware and 
software c a p a b i l i t i e s ,  including i t s  switch and billing system; 
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Technical help service (24 Hours/7 Days a w e e k ) ;  and 

Use of relevant software and hardware, including switch, billing, 
and an Interactive Voice Response System. A n  Interactiv? Voice 
Response System is a voice recognition system that a l l o w s  the 
customer to listen to the amount of minutes remaining on an 
individual's calling card and d i a l  a desired telephone number 
without the need for an operator. 

Under the agreement, N i r  Davidson will supply Story Telecom Ltd. with the 
following: 

Marketing and sales; 

Distribution channels; and 

Management in which N i r  Davidson will 
Director of Story Telecom L t d .  

function as the Managing 

I n  addition, the agreement provides t h a t  Nir Davidson w i l l  have the right to 
receive options to purchase o u r  shares of common stock if by September 2003, the 
Story Telecom p r o j e c t  meets the sales and profit formula specified in paragraph 
28 of the agreement. Because Story Telecom failed to meet the sales and profit 
criteria, on September 30, 2003, the right for the o p t i o n s  was cancelled. 

Separate and apart f rom this agreement, because Story Telecom achieved growth 
since its inception, which has enabled us to attain certain achievements in our 
business p l a n ,  our Board of Directors issued a resolution on September 3, 2003 
which provided t h a t  we or our  m a j o r  shareholders, Mr. Keinan, who is our 
Chairman of the Board, Vision Consultants, an affiliated entity, and Campbeltown 
Business Ltd., also an affiliated entity, in order to provide an incentive to 
Mr. Davidson and to enhance his loyalty to u s r  will grant him options to 
purchase 500,000 shares of common stock. The September 3, 2003 resolution 
further provides t h a t  these major shareholders have the first right to sell to 
Mr. Davidson their own shares or a portion of them at the same terms, r a t h e r  
than o u r  issuing such shares. Immediately a f t e r  the September 3, 2003 resolution 
was passed, the major s h a r e h o l d e r s ,  Vision Consulting and/or $braham Keinan 
and/or Campbeltown Business, Ltd., notified Mr. Davidson and us t h a t  they 
decided to exerc ise  their first right by g r a n t i n g  Mr. Davidson t h e  options t o  
purchase the 5 0 0 , 0 0 0  shares from their own shares of our common stock. 
Therefore ,  as of the d a t e  of this notice we were no longer under the obligation 
to grant an option or issue s h a r e s  of common stock to Mr. Davidson under this 
resolution. 
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Newco Agreement 

Our wholly owned subsidiary, S w i f t n e t ,  Ltd., has an October 16, 2001 agreement 
titled "'Formation of Newco" which became Auracall Limited. The agreement 
provides that Dr. Nissirn Levy and Swiftnet, will establish a company, Newco, for 
t h e  purpose of developing telecommunication business based on non-geographic 
numbers, which are identified in the agreement as using S w i f t n e t  premium numbers 
bands for customers to call international or national destinations paying 
British Telecom d i r e c t l y  while British Telecom pays Newco through Swiftnet. 
S w i f t n e t  premium numbers bands a r e  special numbers, such as "0870" that 
Switftnet can provide f o r  Auracall's customers to c a l l  international or national 
destinations in which such customers pay British Telecom directly while British 
Telecorn pays S w i f t n e t  and Swiftnet pays Auracall. The agreement f u r t h e r  provides 
t h a t :  

The first s t a g e  of the budget 
exceed 100,000 United Kingdom pounds; 

for t h e  company w i l l  n o t  



D r .  Levy w i l l  finance by way o f  a l o a n ,  7 5 %  of  t h e  ongoing expenses 
for 100% of the shares in Auracall; 

S w i f t n e t  will f i n a n c e  by way of a l o a n ,  25% of the ongoing expenses 
and provide cost p l u s  pr ices  a s  w e l l  as  management a d v i c e  and 
technical support, f o r  an o p t i o n  t o  be e x e r c i s e d  a t  any time to 
rece ive  50% of the s h a r e s  of Newco o r  i n  case of a d i l u t i o n ,  t o  
receive the same amount of s h a r e s  as Dr. Levy; 

N e w c o  w i l l  repay t h e  l oans  only from n e t  p r o f i t s .  I n  case S w i f t n e t  
dues not e x e r c i s e  i t s  options, i t  w i l l  be entitled to management 
fees equa'l to t h e  monies  t h a t  D r .  Levy w i l l  be e n t i t l e d  t o  r e c e i v e  
f r o m  Newco. Once t h e  loans a r e  repaid,  S w i f t n e t  and D r .  Levy ( o r  
a s s i g n e e s )  w i l l  be e n t i t l e d  t o  t h e  exact same amounts as a 
fee/profit s h a r e .  

Newco w i l l  r e c e i v e  1 0 %  of the p a i d  t u r n o v e r  of  customers  t h a t  it 
will i n t r o d u c e  t o  Swiftnet, e x c e p t  f o r  mobile  phones where t h e  
p e r c e n t a g e  w i l l  be 7 .  

N e w c o  w i l l  have t h e  right t o  sell other services and products t h a t  
S w i f t n e t  o f f e r s  o r  w i l l  offer in t h e  future f o r  t h e  beset wholesale 
p r i c e  a v a i l a b l e .  

I n  May 2 0 0 2 ,  S w i f t n e t  e x e r c i s e d  i t s  o p t i o n  t o  receive 5 0 %  of the shares  of 
Auracall and  b o t h  S w i f t n e t  and D r .  Levy agreed t o  give 5% of A u r a c a l l ' s  s h a r e s  
t o  M r .  Kirschner; t h e r e f o r e ,  the shares of A u r a c a l l  were a l l o c a t e d  a s  f o l l o w s :  

Swiftnet, L t d  - 4 7 5  shares, r e p r e s e n t i n g  47.5% of Auracall's shares; 

Dr. Nissim Levy - 475 s h a r e s ,  representing 
shares; and 

4 7 . 5 %  of A u r a c a l l ' s  

Dan K i r s c h n e r ,  a c t i n g  a s  A u r a c a l l ' s  Managing Director - 50 s h a r e s ,  
representing 5.0% of Auracall's shares. 

I n  practice, D r .  Levy,  and S w i f t n e t  each provided a loan to Auracall to t h e  
l e v e l  o f  about 4 5 , 0 0 0  and 1 5 , 0 0 0  Un i t ed  Kingdom pounds, r e s p e c t i v e l y .  
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Agreement between Dan Ki r schne r  and S w i f t n e t ,  L t d .  

On August 21, 2003, Dan Kirschner, the Managing D i r e c t o r  of  Auracall, L t d .  
completed an agreement w i t h  S w i f t n e t  providing that S w i f t n e t  w i l l  not object 
t h a t  D r .  N i s s i m  Levy will s e l l  all of his shares in Auracall to Mr. Kirschner 
once the current agreement between Swiftnet and D r .  Levy conce rn ing  t h e  payout  
of p r o f i t s  t o  cover  d e b t / i n v e s t m e n t s  and o t h e r  conditions a r e  f u l f i l l e d .  

Kirschner and S w i f t n e t  agreed t o  accept the following c o n d i t i o n s  
a f f i r m e d  i n  t h e  original agreement between D r .  Levy and Swiftnet: 

which were 

C )  

Any increase i n  A u r a c a l l ' s  budget will. r e q u i r e  t h e  approval of 
Kirscher and S w i f t n e t ;  

S w i f t n e t  w i l l  p r o v i d e  cos t  p l u s  prices as well as management advice 
and t e c h n i c a l  support. S w i f t n e t  will s e l l  the service to Auracall 
and will be responsible for the technical side. Swiftnet u n d e r t a k e s  
t o  exhibit t o  Auracall all licenses, price lists, or other 
permissions/documents  necessary f o r  the operation of i t s  b u s i n e s s ;  

Any d e c i s i o n  about payments o f  loans, dividends, salaries, grants o r  
s i m i l a r  expenses w i l l  have t o  be d e c i d e d  by t h e  board of d i r e c t o r s  



with veto rights to b o t h  sides; 

h) 

Auracall will r e c e i v e  ten percent of the p a i d  t u r n o v e r  of customers 
t h a t  it w i l l  introduce to Swiftnet, except f o r  mobile phones where 
the percentage will be seven; 

Auracall will have the right to sell o t h e r  services and products 
t h a t  Swiftnet o f f e r s  or w i l l  offer in the future for the b e s t  
wholesale price available; 

Auracall's board of d i r e c t o r s  will be comprised 
nominated by Swi f tne t  and 2 by Mr. Kirschner; 

of 4 members: 2 

Auracall w i l l  operate accord ing  to an agreed business plan and 
decide on each investment and expense based on the viability of the 
opportunity; and 

Both parties w i l l  make available their c o n t a c t s ,  connections and 
influence for the success of Auracall. 

The agreement further provides that once the current agreement between Swiftnet 
and Dr. Levy concerning the payout of profits to cover debt/investments is 
fulfilled, Kirschner's salary will be reinstated t o  50,000 pounds and Swiftnet 
will receive 24,000 pounds as management/consultancy fees. Further salary/fees 
will b e  agreed together mutually. 

The agreement further provides that as a bonus, Auracall w i l l  issue to Mr. 
K i r s c h n e r  f u r t h e r  shares from treasury to the level that Mr. Kirschner will hold 
67.5% of Auracall and Swiftnet will hold only 3 2 . 5 %  of Auracall. 

This bonus is subject to the following pre-conditions: 

ML. Kirschner will purchase from Dr. Levy h i s  s h a r e s  of Auracall. 

Mr. Kirschner w i l l  still act as Auracall's Managing D i r e c t o r .  

Mr. Kirschner will hold  no less than  40% of Auracall's sha res .  

Auracall will reach a monthly turnover of 150,000 pounds within two 
years from the date that the ar rangement  between Swiftnet and Dr. 
Levy will be finalized. 
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The agreement between Mr. Kirschner and Swi f tne t  also provides that it will t a k e  
e f f e c t  only after the a r rangemen t  between M r .  Kirschner and Dr. Levy will be 
finalized. 

I n  J a n u a r y  2004, D r .  Levy s o l d  all of his 475 sha res  to Mr. Dan K i r s c h n e r .  
Therefore, Mr. Kirschner now owns 52.5% of Auracall's shares and Swiftnet owns 
4 7 . %  of Auracall's shares. 

SUPPLIER AGREEMENTS 

We have approximately 10 agreements with suppliers of telephone routing and 
s w i t c h i n g  services. The following represent material supplier agreements. 

Wholesale Master Services Agreement w i t h  WorldCorn International, L t d .  

Swiftnet has a 1998 agreement with Worldcorn International, Ltd. in which 
Worldcorn provides telephone connection services to Swiftnet as its customer. 
Such services are prov ided  by Swiftnet providing Worldcom with service orders in 
t h e  form proscribed by Worldcom. S w i f t n e t  i s  required to pay the invoices 
submitted by Worldcom to S w i f t n e t  w i t h i n  one month. Swiftnet is prohibited under  



the agreement with: (a) r e f e r r i n g  to Worldcom in any marketing or services 
literature, unless i t  obtains t h e  written consent of Worldcom; (b) purport to 
a c t  on behalf of 01 represent itself a s  a c t i n g  on behalf of Worldcorn; or (c) 
seek to resell t h e  services of Worldcorn to other Worldcom customers. Our 
agreement with Worldcorn International, L t d .  may be terminated by either party 
w i t h  thirty days notice. In addition, the contract may be terminated immediately 
if e i t h e r  other p a s t y  has committed a material breach of the agreement that is 
incapable  of remedy. Any breach capable of remedy must becorrected within 15 
days. We do not have an exclusive agreement w i t h  WorldCom International, Ltd.; 
Worldcom International, Ltd. provides these same services to our competitors. 

Open Air Agreement 

Swiftnet has an April 2, 2003 agreement with E a s y a i r  Limited which is located in 
London, United Kingdom, and is o t h e r w i s e  known as Openair. In t h i s  agreement, 
OpenAir agrees  to sell and Swiftnet agrees to purchase goods and services that 
Swiftnet orders according to OpenAir's price list. In practice, this price list 
has changed on a d a i l y  or week ly  basis. OpenAir reserves t h e  right, by written 
notice to S w i f t n e t ,  to increase the price of goods or services to reflect any 
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increase in OpenAir's cost. Swiftnet is required to pay OpenAir's invoices 
within 45 d a y s  of t h e  date of the invoice. If S w i f t n e t  fails to pay the invoice 
within that 45 day period, OpenAir may charge Swiftnet interest on the 
outstanding amount at 4% per annum of the Yorkshire Bank P l c  base rate and may 
suspend delivery of goods and services. The agreement further provides t h a t  
Swiftnet is requi red  to per fo rm c e r t a i n  obligations to OpenAir, including: (a) 
use its reasonable endeavors  to promote the resale of goods and services to 
customers; (b) conform and adhere to OpenAir's manual  €or the s o l i c i t i n g  and 
processing of o r d e r s  from customers; (c) inform OpenAir of any changes in 
Swiftnet's ownership or organization or methods of doing business which m i g h t  
affect the performance of or f i n a n c i a l  ability to comply w i t h  Swiftnet's 
obligations under t h e  agreement; and ( d )  cooperate fully w i t h  OpenAir to resolve 
any complaints from customers. Swiftnet and OpenAir a r e  required to use their 
b e s t  endeavors to keep secre t  and confidential all confidential information. The 
terms of the agreement is one year and continues thereafter unless written 
notice is provided. 

British Telecommunications Agreement 

Swiftnet has an August 8, 2000 agreement w i t h  British , Telecommunications, a 
public limited company registered in the United Kingdom. This agreement provides 
t h a t  British Telecommunications, as a Schedule 2 Public Operator, which permits 
it to sell local and national telephone connection serv ices ,  will connect its 
systems to our operator system to furnish us with telecom r e l a t e d  services and 
facilities. We are r e q u i r e d  to pay t o  British Telecommunications charges 
specified in t h e i r  carrier price l i s t .  If Swiftnet o r  British Telecommunications 
are in receipt of any confidential information regarding the other p a r t y ,  such 
information is required to be kept  confidential. 

Teleglobe International Agreement 

Swiftnet has a May 13, 1996 agreement with Teleglobe International (United 
Kingdom) Ltd., a company located in London, England. In this agreement, Swiftnet 
and Teleglobe agree to connect and keep connected their respective 
telecommunication systems allowing S w i f t n e t  to convey international outbound 
calls v i a  Teleglobe. Teleglobe agrees to convey c a l l s  received from Swiftnet's 
telecommunications system to t h e  telephone number called or to a n o t h e r  
telecommunications system connected to Teleglobe's system. The term of the 
agreement is for an i n i t i a l  term of 6 months and continues in effect u n l e s s  
terminated in writing by Swiftnet or Teleglobe by giving n o t i c e  of not less than 
6 months. The r a t e s  payable by Swiftnet to Teleglobe may vary upon t h i r t y  days 
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written notice to S w i f t n e t .  The billing of the services is based on t h e  total 
c a l l  seconds per month per destination. Teleglobe and Swiftnet are r e q u i r e d  to 
keep in confidence a l l  confidential information. Teleglobe and  S w i f t n e t  may 
t e r m i n a t e  the agreement without prejudice to t h e  other party by written notice 
in the case of a material breach of the agreement, any license of either p a r t y  
is revoked or is terminated, or if there is an arrangement or composition with 
creditors generally OK by a c o u r t  application or bankruptcy orde r .  

ITXC Corporation Services Agreement 

Swiftnet has a February 20, 2003 agreement with ITXC Corporation, a Delaware 
co rpora t ion ,  in which ITXC a t  its sole cost, is required to purchase and furnish 
to Swiftnet equipment necessary to assis t  it in the performance of Switfnet's 
telecorn services, including IP telephony gateways. ITXC is also r equ i r ed  under 
the agreement to provide S w i f t n e t  with remote management, maintenance, operation 
and support of the ITXC equipment. ITXC is requi red  to route subscribers 
Internet Telephony to be routed over ITXC.net. The current ITXC prices for 
exchange r a t e s  are to be provided by S w i f t n e t  by written notice and I T X S  has t h e  
sole discretion in setting the rates. 

Swiftnet is responsible under the agreement to provide all end-user or caller 
related services to its subscribers, such as billing, collections and customer 
care and is required to independently operate gateways f o r  use  by i t s  
subscribers and charge its subscribers such rates as Swiftnet deems appropriate. 
S w i f t n e t  is required to pay for t h e  services furnished by ITXC in connection 
with the equipment or as otherwise provided in the agreement. Swiftnet is 
required to meet a m i n i m u m  monthly commitment of 75,000 minutes of use per month 
and if it f a i l s  to achieve t h i s  month ly  requirement, S w i f t n e t  is r equ i r ed  to pay 
ITXC a monthly service charge in the amount of $1,000. The agreement further 
provides  that title to t h e  equipment will remain w i t h  ITXC. The term of t h e  
agreement is 1 year with successive 90 days t e r m s  renewed automatically. 

CONSULTING AGREEMENT 

Stern & Company Consulting Agreement 

On January 9, 2004, we executed an agreement w i t h  Stern and Company, a business 
consultant, to provide us with t h e  following services: (a) become familiar with 
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o u r  business and operations and review and analyze our formal and informal 
strategic, marketing, financial and business plans ;  and (b) advise us in 
s t r a t e g i c  planning matters and ass i s t  in the implementation of short and long 
term strategic planning initiatives to enhance and accelerate the 
commercialization of our business objectives. The term of the agreement is 6 
months from the date of acceptance by us. In return for the services furnished 
by Stern and Company to us, we agree to issue Stern and Company: (a) 17,500 
shares  of our common stock; (b) 17,500 warrants at $3.50 which e x p i r e  10 days 
after our commencement of t r a d i n g  on NASDAQ small cap or the AMEX; (c) 17,500 
warrants at $5.50 which expire i n  5 years. As f u r t h e r  provided in the agreement, 
the shares and warrant shares have a n t i - d i l u t i o n  provisions, piggy-back 
registration rights and cashless exercise r i g h t s .  

PUBLIC RELATIONS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS AGREEMENT 

P o r t f o l i o  PR Agreement 

On December 23, 2003, we executed an agreement with Port€olio PR, I n c . ,  to 
p r o v i d e  us with public relations and investor relations services. Under the 



agreement, P o r t f o l i o  PR agrees  to provide the following services d a r i n g  the 
f i r s t  t w o  months of the agreement:  (a) develop a branding statement and " s t o r y "  
p e r t a i n i n g  to us; (b) incorporate i n t o  a s t r a t e g i c  corporate p r o f i l e  and power 
p o i n t  presentation; and (c) a d v i s e  our management on how to m a k e  o ~ l r  website 
more i n v e s t o r - f r i e n d l y ;  produce a marketing-oriented and c o s t - e f f e c t i v e  annual 
report. F u r t h e r ,  under the agreement,  Portfolio Pi? agrees  to provide us with the 
following additional se rv ices :  (a) develop a strategic press release program; 
(b) build a media campaign around our cost-effective services; (c) w o r k  with 
management to demonstrate its expertise by developing articles and white papers 
for distribution to trade groups  and organizations, conferences, and trade 
shows; (d) build an appropriate investor database; (e) plan, arrange, and manage 
road  shows with targeted money managers, investors, retail broke r s ,  and media in 
major f i n a n c i a l  cities; (f) if appropriate, develop a virtual road show program; 
(9) update the corporate profile and media fact sheet quarterly or as needed; 
(h) be available on a special  projects basis to h a n d l e  event programming 
opportunities; and (i)  serve a s  investor relations counsel to a d d r e s s  a range of  
i s s u e s ,  such as Regulation FD disclosure. 

In return for the above services that entitles us to 50 hours of services per  
month, w e  agree t o  pay P o r t f o l i o  PR: ( a )  until we are listed on NASDAQ, if ever, 
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$3,500 a month and 1000 shares per  month; (b) if we are listed un NASDAQ, $4,000 
per  month and  1,200 shares per  month. In addition, we agree to provide  P o r t f o l i o  
PR with t h e  following warrants: (a) 50,000 warrants to buy shares for $10 per 
sha res ;  (b) if we become listed on NASDAQ within 6 months, an additional: (i) 
50,000 w a r r a n t s  t o  buy shares f o r  $6 per share; and (ii) 100,000 warrants to buy 
shares for $10 pes sha re .  The warrants expire within twelve months .  The warrant 
exercise price of $6 and $10 are totally arbitrary and bea r s  no relationship to 
the present or f u t u r e  fair m a r k e t  value of our common stock. 

Subsequent to the reporting period e n d i n g  December 31, 2 0 0 3 ,  on April 23, 2004, 
we canceled our  agreement w i t h  Portfolio PR Inc. "for cause". I n  June 2004, 
P o r t f o l i o  PR agreed to receive from us $7,209.09 in c a s h  and 4,000 shares of our 
common s t o c k  as total and f i n a l  consideration and further agreed t h a t  w e  would 
have no f u r t h e r  obligation t o  pay  it any additional cash, shares, warrants, or 
any o t h e r  consideration in connection with t h i s  agreement. 

SELLING SHAREHOLDER RELATED AGREEMENTS 

In connection with our January/February 2004 private placement, we entered into 
the following agreements with t h e  Selling Shareholders: 

Shares and Warrant Purchase Agreement; 
Registration Rights Agreement; 
Warrant A Agreement; and 
Warrant B Agreement 

These agreements contain standard representations and warranties by us to t h e  
selling shareholders. Additionally, each selling shareholder t h a t  purchased our 
common s tock  was r e q u i r e d  to sign an Irrevocable Proxy which appointed our  Chief 
Executive Officer, Guy Nissenson, as proxy €or each selling shareholder, and 
which grants to our Chief Executive Officer an aggregate of 969,237 shares that 
he may v o t e  for the selling shareholders. These agreements further provide, as 
f o l l o w s  : 

Shares and Warrant Purchase  Agreement 

In connection with a private placement we conducted during J a n u a r y  and F e b r u a r y  
2004, we sold to the selling shareholders an aggregate of 969,237 shares of our 
common s t o c k  at a purchase p r i c e  of $3.00 per share. Each selling shareholder 
who purchased common stock w a s  a l s o  gran ted  one Warrant A and one Warrant B f o r  
each share of common stock purchased. This agreement also prov ides  for the 



following under  A-C below: 

A. Succ~ssors and Assigns 

W e  may n o t  assign the common s t o c k  purchase agreement, or any of our r i g h t s  or 
obligations under  t h e  agreement without t he  p r i o r  w r i t t e n  consent of the 
Purchasers. The Purchasers may a s s i g n  any o r  a l l  of its r i g h t s  under  the common 
stock purchase agreement t o  any party. Accordingly,  t h e  assignee w i l l  have the 
b e n e f i t  of the provisions of the common s t o c k  purchase agreement that a r e  
intended to protect Purchaser until t h e  underlying common stock may lawfully be 
reso ld  to the public i n  compliance w i t h  applicable s e c u r i t i e s  laws. 

B. Governing Law 

The Shares and Warrant Purchase Agreement, and the related transaction 
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documents, a r e  governed by the internal laws of the State of New York, and all 
l e g a l  proceedings in connec t ion  w i t h  the common s t o c k  p u r c h a s e  agreement must be 
commenced exclusively in the s t a t e  and  federal courts sitting i n  the City of New 
York. Thus, all questions conce rn ing  the v a l i d i t y ,  enforcement and 
interpretation of the common s t o c k  purchase agreement and the r e l a t e d  
t r ' a n s a c t i o n  documents, will be determined by reference to New York law. 

C .  L i q u i d a t e d  Damages 

This  agreement provides for varying terms which vary based upon the negotiations 
w e  conduc ted  with each respective selling shareholders, as described below under  
A and 3: 

A. Legend Removal Failure - We agreed to remove the r e s t r i c t i v e  legends on t h e  
selling shareholder certificates in compliance with state and federal laws. The 
penalties vary among the selling s h a r e h o l d e r s ,  b u t  are either: 

0 

0 

With in  1 2  months of t h e  purchase d a t e ,  if w e  fail to cause t h e  
legend t o  b e  removed a s  of t h e  14th business day  after the 
selling s h a r e h o l d e r  h a s  made a request for the l e g e n d  removal, 
the selling shareholder may r e q u i r e  us t o  pay h i m  or her an 
amount e q u a l  to 130% of his purchase price for all or a 
portion of the shares and warrant  shares he o r  she purchased; 

Within 24 months of t h e  purchase date, i f  we f a i l  to remove 
t h e  restrictive l e g e n d  a f t e r  3 trading days f o l l o w i n g  delivery 
of the certificate to either our transfer a g e n t  or to us (the 
Legend Removal D a t e ) ,  the shareholder may require u s  to pay 
him either: (1) $10 per trading day per $1000 worth of 
purchased shares and /o r  warrant shares, t h e  worth being based 
upon the stock's c l o s i n g  price on the Legend Removal Date, and 
after 5 trading days,  $20 per t r a d i n g  day per $1000 worth of 
purchased shares  and/or w a r r a n t  shares ;  or (ii) an amount 
equal to 130% of his purchase price for all or a p o r t i o n  of 
t h e  shares and warrant s h a r e s  he purchased. 

€3. R i g h t s  of Participation in Additional Financing - We may be required t o  allow 
selling shareholders the right to participate in any subsequent financings that 
we may o f f e r .  The terms vary as to the maximum p e r c e n t a g e  of the f i n a n c i n g s  in 
which each s e l l i n g  shareholder may participate, and, if our subsequent f i n a n c i n g  
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h a s  the e f f e c t  of issuing s h a r e s  below the $3.00 per share price paid by t h e  



s e l l i n g  shareholders, we may be required to a d j u s t  the selling shareholder's 
purchase price to t h a t  same lower price. 

R e g i s t r a t i o n  Rights Agreement 

This agreement o b l i g a t e s  us to register the common s t o c k  covered by this 
Prospectus and contains certain m u t u a l  indemnification provisions indemnifying 
us and the selling shareholders and any officers, directors, agents and 
employees associated with us or the selling shareholders. 

Warrant A Agreement 

This agreement provides t h a t  each Warrant A grants the shareholder the right to 
purchase our common s tock  at a price of $ 5 . 5 0  p e r  share. The Warrant A is 
exercisable until five years after the purchase date, which is January o r  
February 2 0 0 9 .  

Warrant B Agreement 

This agreement provides t h a t  each Warrant B g r a n t s  t h e  s h a r e h o l d e r  the r i g h t  t o  
purchase our  common s tock  at a p r i c e  of $3.50 per share, The Warrant B is 
exercisable until the earlier of: (i) 10 days a f t e r  our registration statement 
is effective or 10 days after the Company's common s t o c k  is traded on the NASDAQ 
Small Cap or the American Stock Exchange; o r  (ii) the d a t e  t h a t  is 375  days  
following t h e  d a t e  of the purchase date. 

Competitive Business Conditions 

The communications and information services i n d u s t r y  is highly competitive and 
v a r i e d .  W e  have o n l y  approximately 0.3% of t h e  market share of the United 
Kingdom based l o n g  distance and international telecom m a r k e t ,  based on our 
revenues of $12,962,282 (approximately 7.3 United Kingdom pounds )  during 2003, 
compared with a $4.1 billion d o l l a r  long distance and international t,elecom 
market in the United Kingdom (approximately 2.3 billion United Kingdom pounds), 
according to the United Kingdom regulatory oversight of these companies, t h e  
Office of Communications - United Kingdom, otherwise known as Ofcam, t h e  website 
of which may be accessed at www.ofcom.org.uk. Many of our e x i s t i n g  and potential 
competitors, including approximately 160 l i c e n s e d  telecom carriers i n  the United 
Kingdom, have greater financial, personnel, marketing, customer bases and o t h e r  
financial resources significantly greater than ours. Our competitors i nc lude :  

0 L a r g e  regional carriers in the United Kingdom such as British 
Tele corn ; 

0 Other regional carriers in t h e  United Kingdom such  as OneTel, 
Telediscount, Alpha, and Primus; 

0 Smaller regional c a r r i e r s  such as Quip.com; 

0 Wireless telecommunications p r o v i d e r s  such as Vodafone, T-Mobile, 
and Orange; and 

0 International carriers. 
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Many of our competitors h a v e  the flexibility t o  introduce new service and 
pricing o p t i o n s  that may be more attractive to o u r  existing as w e l l  as our 
f u t u r e  potential customers. As a result: (a) t hese  competitors have greater 
growth and  profit potential than us; (b) competition may adversely affect our 
telecommunications r e l a t e d  market share; (c) o u r  competition may l ead  to a 
decrease in the rate at which w e  add new customers; and ( d )  price competition or 
promotional incentives o f f e r e d  by our competitors may l e a d  to decreases in the 
rates t h a t  we charge,  which may adversely affect our potential profitability. 



We will attempt t o  overcome the competitive advantages of our competitors by: 

o Enhancing our personal contact with o u r  customers and l o c a l  
agents; 

0 

0 

0 

Providing our customers with the option to control and see 
t h e i r  account over  t h e  Internet; 

N e g o t i a t i n g  volume discounts with our u n d e r l y i n g  carriers; and 

Increasing our ability t o  direct customer c a l l  traffic over  
the transmission n e t w o r k s  of more than one c a r r i e r .  

Principal Suppliers: 

Our principal suppliers of telephone routing and switching services according t o  
the percentage that each provides are: 

0 Teleglobe International -- 35% 

0 B r i t i s h  Telecommunications -- 24% 

0 Worldcorn -- 20% 

0 I T X C  Corporation -- 15% 

Dependence on Major Customers: 

During 2003, t h e r e  were two customers that accounted for more than 10% of our 
revenues: (a) our a f f i l i a t e ,  Story Telecom, represented approximately 36% of our 
total revenues; and (b) British Telecom represented approximately 18% of o u r  
total revenues. Collectively, the United Kingdom accounts f o r  approximately 90% 
of our revenues. We do not anticipate that any other customers will account f o r  
more than 10% of our revenues during 2004. 

21 
<PAGE> 

Patents, trademarks and licenses: 

On January 9, 2004, we received notification from the Trademarks Registry Office 
of Great Britain t h a t  as  of August 8,  2003,  our  trademark, "Xfone", was 
registered by t h a t  government agency. We do n o t  have any o t h e r  patents or 
trademarks, nos have we filed any other applications for p a t e n t s  or trademarks. 
Our s u b s i d i a r y ,  Swiftnet, L t d . ,  i s  licensed in t h e  United Kingdom as an 
international telecommunication carrier. 

Regulatory Matters: 

In 1996, our subsidiary, Swiftnet, Ltd., was g r a n t e d  a l i c e n s e  to opera t e  a 
telecommunications system from the Secretary of State for Trade and I n d u s t r y  of  
t h e  United Kingdom. The license may be revoked by this agency upon thirty days 
notice in t h e  event of certain conditions such  as misconduct  or breach of 
various telecommunications laws. 

lrje a r e  a f f e c t e d  by regulations introduced by S e c r e t a r y  of S t a t e  for Trade and 
Industry of the United Kingdom. Since the break up of the United Kingdom 
telecommunications duopoly consisting of British Telecorn and Mercury in 1991 it 
has been the stated goal  of Secretary of State for Trade and Industry to create 
a competitive marketplace. S e c r e t a r y  of State f o r  Trade and Industry has imposed 
mandatory r a t e  reductions on British Telecorn in the past, which are expected to 
continue f o r  the near future. We do n o t  believe that any regulations introduced 
by Secretary of State f o r  Trade and Industry w i l l  interfere with or 
substantially hurt our business. 



Our business operates in at least 75 countries, a l l  of which have different 
regulations, standards and controls related to licensing, telecommunications, 
i inport /export ,  currency and t r a d e .  We believe that we are in s u b s t a n t i a l  
compliance with t hese  laws and regulations. 

Since only messaging services but no calls by our customers originate in the 
United S t a t e s ,  we do n o t  believe t h a t  we are subject to any telecommunications 
laws or regulations in t h e  United States. in t h e  future, if o u r  services expand, 
it is possible that we w i l l  become sub jec t  to the telecommunications laws and 
regulations of the U n i t e d  States. If this occurs ,  compliance with such laws will 
involve higher c o s t s  than we now have in Europe. 

Cost of Compliance w i t h  Environmental Laws 

We currently have no costs assoc ia ted  with compliance with environmental 
regulations. We do n o t  anticipate any f u t u r e  costs associated w i t h  environmental 
compliance; however, there can be no assurance that we will not incur such costs 
in t h e  future. 

Research and Development: 

Other than developing and expanding our telecommunications applications and our  
website, we do not intend to undertake any significant research and development 
activities. During f i s c a l  yea r  2002, we spent  $56,960 US on research and 
development. During 2003, we spent  $79,304 US on research and development. 

22 
<PAGE> 

Emp 1 o ye e s 

We have 12 full-time employees consisting of: 

0 1 Chief  Executive Officer/President that directs our overall 
operations; 

0 1 Chairman of the Board, whose duties a p a r t  f rom being our 
Chairman of t h e  Board, are to i n i t i a t e  and assist with telecom 
r e l a t e d  p r o j e c t s ;  

0 1 Research and Development Manager that directs and initiates 

0 1. Marketing Manager, t h a t  directs our marketing initiatives, 
various technological and s o f t w a r e  related projects; 

including marketing pertaining t o  r e se l l e r s  and agents, advertising 
and direct marketing; 

0 1 Operational Manager, t h a t  directs t h e  technical and operational 
aspects of  all telecom r e l a t e d  matters pertaining to our business; 

0 1 Financial Controller, that directs our  f i n a n c i a l  operations; and 
0 6 employees in our administration department that perform 

s e c r e t a r i a l ,  filings, and other administrative d u t i e s  and provide  
OUT customers with technical and billing information and support. 

We also have 3 part-time employees that opera te  in s h i f t s ,  assisting our 
administrative employees. 

REPORTS TO SECURITY HOLDERS 

We are subject to the informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934. Accordingly, we file annual, quarterly and other r e p o r t s  and 
information w i t h  the Securities and Exchange Commission. You may read and copy 
t h e s e  reports in Washington, D.C. Our iilings are also available to the public 
from commercial document r e t r i e v a l  services and the Internet world wide website 
maintained by the Securities and Exchange Commission at www.sec.gov. 



ITEN 2 .  DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY. 

Our corporate h e a d q u a r t e r s  are located a t  960 High Road, London N12 9RY - United 
Kingdom. T h i s  3 , 0 0 0  square foot i a c i l i t y  has seven o f f i c e s ,  one board room, one  
computer room, one operation room t h a t  controls the computer room, entrance 
h a l l ,  main h a l l ,  a c c o u n t i n g ,  s e c r e t a r i a l  and administration and 2 k i t c h e n s .  Our 
office is located on the f i f t h  floor of a six f l o o r  building w i t h  a concierge, 
two elevators and parking facilities. Our premises were leased on a 5 y e a r  term, 
which was due t o  exp i r e  on December 12, 2001. The y e a r l y  l e a s e  payments are 
approximately $23,421.00 (15,900 Pound Sterling) . On December 20, 2002, we 
renewed our lease f o r  a period of 10 years, with a five y e a r  cancellation 
option. Our c u r r e n t  lease expires on December 20, 2 0 1 2 .  The y e a r l y  lease 
payments have been increased to $34,320 (24,000 Pound Sterling). 

Our o f f i c e s  are in good condition a n d  are s u f f i c i e n t  to conduc t  our  operations - 

We do not own any p r o p e r t y  n o r  do we have any p lans  to acquire any p r o p e r t y  in 
the f u t u r e .  We do n o t  intend to renovate, improve or develop any properties. We 
are not s u b j e c t  to competitive conditions for p r o p e r t y  and currently have n o  
property to i n su re .  W e  have no p o l i c y  with respect t o  investments in real estate 
o r  interests in r e a l  e s t a t e  and no p o l i c y  w i t h  r e s p e c t  t o  investments i n  real 
estate mortgages. We have no policy w i t h  respect to investments in securities of 
or interests in persons primarily engaged in r e a l  estate activities. 

2 3  

ITEM 3 .  LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.  

I n  August 2002, we f i l e d  a summary procedure lawsuit in the c o u r t  of Tel - Aviv, 
I s r a e l  against MG Telecorn Ltd. and its Chief Executive Officer, Ms. Avner Shur .  
In this lawsuit, w e  a l l e g e  an unpaid debt due t o  us in the amount of $50,000 
from MG Telecom f o r  services rendered by us to MG Telecom. The  debt a rose  from 
an agreement between us and MG Telecom, a prov ide r  of calling card services, in 
which traffic originating from MG Telecom calling cards was delivered t h r o u g h  
our system in Londonr England. Mr. Shur signed a personal guarantee agreement to 
secure MG Telecom’s obligations under  t h e  agreement. During October 2002, Mr. 
Shur filed a request for leave t o  defend. The cour t  has not r e n d e r e d  a judgment 
i n  the matter and we are unable to determine the f u t u r e  disposition of this 
m a t t e r .  The court session f o r  the hearing of the evidence was s c h e d u l e d  for 
February 2 4 ,  2004, b u t  postponed to March 22, 2004, at which time an evidentiary 
hearing was held. An additional evidentiary h e a r i n g  w i l l  be held on September 6, 
2004. 

Other than t h e  above, w e  a r e  not a party to any  material pending legal 
p r o c e e d i n g ,  n o r  i s  any  of o u r  p r o p e r t y  t h e  subject of such a l e g a l  proceeding. 
However, we may become subject to d i s p u t e  and l i t i g a t i o n  in the ordinary course 
of o u r  business. None of  these m a t t e r s ,  i n  the opinion of our management, is 
material or l i k e l y  to r e s u l t  in a material effect on us based upon information 
available at this time. 

ITEIJl 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS. 

Not Applicable 
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PART Ir . 

ITEM 5 .  II‘LARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS. 

B e l o w  i s  t h e  marke t  information p e r t a i n i n g  t o  the range of t h e  high and l o w  bid 
i n f o r m a t i o n  of o u r  common s t o c k  f o r  each q u a r t e r  s i n c e  our common s tock  has  been 



q a o t s d  on the OTC Bulletin Board. Our common s t o c k  i s  q u o t e d  unde r  t h e  symbol 
XFNE on t h e  OTC Bulletin B o a r d  and on the B e r l i n  (Germany) S t o c k  Exchange. The 
q u o t a t i o n s  reflsct i n t e r - d e a l e r  p r i c e s ,  w i t h o u t  r e t a i l  mark-up, mark-down o r  
commission and may n o t  represent a c t u a l  t r a n s a c t i o n s .  

2004 
---- 

F i r s t  Q u a r t e r  

2003 
---- 

F o u r t h  Q u a r t e r  
T h i r d  Q u a r t e r  
Second Q u a r t e r  
First Q u a r t e r  

2002 
_ _ - _  

Four th  Q u a r t e r  
Third Q u a r t e r  
Second Q u a r t e r  
F , i r s t  Quarter 

Low 

$ 3 . 3 5  
--- 

Low 

$3.15 
$0.51 
$ 0 . 3 0  
$0.30 

--- 

Low 
--- 
$0.66 
$0.70 
$0.70 
$0.00 

High 

$5 .75  
__- -  

High 

$ 6 . 2 5  
$3.60 
$0 .64  
$ 0 . 7 7  

---- 

High 

$1.45 
$1.33 
$3.65 
$0.00 

---- 

The souice  o f  t h e  above information i s  www.OTCBB.com Data P r o d u c t s ,  H i s t o r i c a l  
Data Service. 

There i s  a l i m i t e d  t r a d i n g  market f o r  o u r  cummon stock. There  i s  no assurance 
t h a t  a r e g u l a r  t r a d i n g  market  for OUT common stock w i l l  deve lop ,  o r  i f  developed 
will be s u s t a i n e d .  A s h a r e h o l d e r  i n  a l l  l i k e l i h o o d ,  t h e r e f o r e ,  w i l l  n o t  be a b l e  
t o  r e s e l l  t h e i r  s e c u r i t i e s  shou ld  he o r  s h e  d e s i r e  t o  do so when eligible f o r  
public r e s a l e s .  Furthermore,  it i s  u n l i k e l y  that a l e n d i n g  i n s t i t u t i o n  w i l l  
accept our  s e c u r i t i e s  as  pledged c o l l a t e r a l  f o r  loans u n l e s s  a r e g u l a r  t r a d i n g  
market  develops. 

PENNY STOCK CONSIDERATIONS. 

Our S h a r e s  a r e  "penny s t o c k s T 1  a s  t h a t  t e r m  i s  g e n e r a l l y  d e f i n e d  i n  t h e  
S e c u r i t i e s  Exchange A c t  o f  1934  a s  e q u i t y  s e c u r i t i e s  w i th  a p r i c e  of  less t h a n  
$ 5 . 0 0 .  Our s h a r e s  a r e  subject t o  r u l e s  t h a t  impose sales p r a c t i c e  and 
d i s c l o s u r e  r e q u i r e m e n t s  on b r o k e r - d e a l e r s  who engage in c e r t a i n  t r a n s a c t i o n s  
i n v o l v i n g  a penny s t o c k .  

Under t h e  penny stock r e g u l a t i o n s ,  a b r o k e r - d e a l e r  s e l l i n g  a penny s t o c k  t o  
anyone o t h e r  t h a n  an e s t a b l i s h e d  customer o r  " a c c r e d i t e d  i n v e s t o r "  must make a 
s p e c i a l  s u i t a b i l i t y  d e t e r m i n a t i o n  regarding t h e  p u r c h a s e r  and must  r e c e i v e  t h e  
p u r c h a s e r ' s  w r i t t e n  consen t  t o  t h e  t r a n s a c t i o n  p r i o r  t o  the sale, u n l e s s  t h e  
b r o k e r - d e a l e r  i s  o t h e r w i s e  exempt. G e n e r a l l y ,  an i n d i v i d u a l  with a n e t  worth i n  
e x c e s s  of $ 1 , 0 0 0 , 0 0 0  o r  annua l  income exceed ing  $ 2 0 0 , 0 0 0  i n d i v i d u a l l y  o r  
$ 3 0 0 , 0 0 0  t o g e t h e r  with h i s  o r  h e r  spouse i s  c o n s i d e r e d  an a c c r e d i t e d  i n v e s t o r .  
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I n  a d d i t i o n ,  under  t h e  penny s t o c k  r e g u l a t i o n s  t h e  b r o k e r - d e a l e r  i s  r e q u i r e d  t o :  

0 

0 

0 

D e l i v e r ,  p r i o r  t o  any t r a n s a c t i o n  i n v o l v i n g  a penny stock, a 
disclosure schedule prepared by t h e  S e c u r i t i e s  and Exchange 
Commission r e l a t i n g  t o  t h e  penny s t o c k  market ,  u n l e s s  t h e  
broker-dealer o r  t h e  transaction i s  o t h e r w i s e  exempt; 

Disclose commission p a y a b l e  t o  t h e  b r o k e r - d e a l e r  and its r e g i s t e r e d  
r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s  and c u r r e n t  bid and  o f f e r  q u o t a t i o n s  f o r  t h e  
s e c u r i t i e s ;  

Send monthly s t a t e m e n t s  d i s c l o s i n g  r e c e n t  p r i c e  information 



pertaining to the penny s t o c k  held in a customer’s account, ths 
account’s value and information regarding the limited market in 

0 

penny  stocks. 

Make a special written determination t h a t  the penny s t o c k  is a 
suitable investment f o r  the purchaser and receive the purchaser’s 
written agreement to the transaction, prior to conducting any penny 
stock transaction in the customer’s account. 

Because of these regulations, broker-dea 
attempt to sell shares of our common s t o  
shareholders to sell their shares in the 
reducing the level of trading activity i 
sales practice and disclosure requiremen 
securities. In addition, the liquidity f 
affected, with a corresponding decrease 
shares are sub jec t  to such penny s t o c k  I: 

lers may enco 
ck, which may 
secondary ma 

n t h e  seconda 
ts could impe 
‘or our securi 
in t h e  price 
xles and our 

u n t e r  difficulties 
a f f e c t  the abilit 

r k e t  and have  the 
ry market. These a 
de the sale of our 
ties may be advers 
of our securities. 
shareholders will, 

in 

effe 
ddit 

Y of 

ely 
Our 
in 

their 

ct of 
ional 

all 
likelihood, find it difficult to sell their securities. 
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HOLDERS. 

At June 7, 2004, there were 145 holders of record of our common stock. We have 
one c lass  of common stock outstanding. 

D I V I D E N D S .  

On December 19, 2002, we declared our first cash dividend in the amount of 
per common share. The cash dividend was payable on January 15, 2003 to cur 
common stockholders of record at the close of business on December 31, 200 
December 30, 2003, we declared a cash dividend of $ . 0 3  per shares on our c 
stock for all shareholders of record  of cur common stock at the close of 
business on December 31, 2003. We paid this dividend on February 16, 2004. 

$0.02 

2. On 
:omon 

Apart from this dividend, we have not declared any cash dividends on our common 
s t o c k  since our inception and we do not anticipate at the present time paying 
further dividends in the foreseeable future. Currently, we plan to retain future 
earnings, if any, for use in our business. Any decisions as to future payment of 
dividends will depend on our earnings and financial position and such other 
factors, as the 3oard of Directors deems relevant. 

Securities Authorized for Issuance under E q u i t y  Compensation P l a n s .  
No t  applicable. 

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES 

On August 21, 2003, we i s sued  400,000 options t o  acquire shares of our 
restricted common s t o c k  to Abraham Keinan. These options were issued t o  Abraham 
Keinan for services Keinan as the Chairman of our Board of 
Directors. These options are exercisable at a p r i c e  of $0.475 per s h a r e .  Each 
option is convertible into one (1) share of s t o c k .  These options vested 
immediately and expire on August 21, 2008. We relied upon Section 4 ( 2 )  of the 
A c t  f o r  the o f f e r s  and sales to Abraham Keinan. We believed that Section 4(2) 
was available On 
March I, 2004, our Board of Direc to r s  cancelled these options. This cancellation 
was in accordance w i t h  o u r  August 21, 2003 board resolution signed by all 
members of the Board of Directors, t h e  
proposed recipients of t h e  options, which s t a t e s  t h a t  the “options are 
cancelable discretion of Xfone f o r  a period not exceeding 210 days 

rendered by Abraham 

because t h e  offer and sale did not  involve a public offering. 

including Messsrs Keinan and Nissenson, 

at the sole 
from the date these options are granted. 

On August 21, 2003, we issued 200,000 options to acquire shares of our 
restricted common s t o c k  to Guy Nissenson. These o p t i o n s  were issued to Guy 



Nissenson for services rendered by Mr. Ni 
E x e c u t i v e  Officer. These  options a r e  exerc 
Each option i s  conver t ib le  i n t o  one (1) 
immediately and e x p i r e  on August 2 1 ,  200 
Act for t h e  offers and s a l e s  to Guy Nissen 

ssenson as o u r  President and Principal 
i s a b l e  a t  a price of $0.475 per  share. 
share  of stock. These o p t i o n s  vested 
8 .  We r e l i e d  upon S e c t i o n  4 ( 2 )  of t h e  
son.  W e  b e l i e v e d  t h a t  Section 4(2) was 
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available because t h e  offer and sa le  did n o t  involve a public offering. On March 
1, 2 0 0 4 ,  our Board of D i r e c t o r s  cancelled these options. T h i s  c a n c e l l a t i o n  was 
i n  a c c o r d a n c e  w i t h  our  August 2 1 ,  2003 board r e s o l u t i o n  signed by a l l  members of 
t h e  Board of D i r e c t o r s ,  i n c l u d i n g  Messsrs Keinan and Nissenson,  t h e  p roposed  
recipients of the  o p t i o n s ,  which s t a t e s  that the "options are c a n c e l a b l e  a t  t h e  
sole d i s c r e t i o n  of  Xfone f o r  a pe r iod  n o t  exceed ing  2 1 0  days  from t h e  date these 
options are g r a n t e d .  

On September 3 0 ,  2002 w e  e n t e r e d  into an agreement with Nir Davidson. Nir 
Davidson had the option to our s h a r e s  o f  common stock 1 2  months a f t e r  t h e  
September 30, 2002  agreement, if the Story Telecom project g e n e r a t e d  a 
s u f f i c i e n t  amount of sa les  and p r o f i t s  a c c o r d i n g  t o  a s p e c i f i e d  formula i n  t h e  
agreement; however, t h e  p r o j e c t  f a i l e d  t o  m e e t  t h e  p r o f i t s  c r i t e r i a  and on 
September 30 ,  2003 t h e  right f o r  t h e  o p t i o n s  was c a n c e l l e d .  

Separate and a p a r t  from t h i s  agreement ,  because S t o r y  Telecom a c h i e v e d  growth 
s i n c e  i t s  inception, which has e n a b l e d  u s  t o  a t t a i n  c e r t a i n  achievements  i n  our 
b u s i n e s s  plan, o u r  Board of Directors i s s u e d  a r e s o l u t i o n  on September 3, 2 0 0 3  
which p r o v i d e d  t h a t  w e  o r  our major s h a r e h o l d e r s ,  M r .  Keinan, who is our 
Chairman of  t h e  Board, V i s i o n  Consultants, an a f f i l i a t e d  e n t i t y ,  and Campbeltown 
Business Ltd., also an a f f i l i a t e d  entity, i n  o r d e r  to provide an i n c e n t i v e  t o  
Mr. Davidson and t o  enhance h i s  loyalty t o  us ,  will g r a n t  him o p t i o n s  to 
purchase 5 0 0 , 0 0 0  s h a r e s  of  common s t o c k .  The September 3, 2003 resolution 
f u r t h e r  provides that these major  s h a r e h o l d e r s  have t h e  first right t o  s e l l  t o  
M r .  Davidson t h e i r  own s h a r e s  o r  a p o r t i o n  o f  them a t  the same terms, r a t h e r  
t han  our  issuing such shares. Immediately a f t e r  t h e  September 3, 2 0 0 3  r e s o l u t i o n  
was passed ,  the major  shareholders, V i s i o n  C o n s u l t i n g  and /o r  Abraham Keinan 
and/or Campbeltown Business, L t d . ,  n o t i f i e d  Mr. Davidson and us t h a t  t h e y  
d e c i d e d  t o  e x e r c i s e  t h e i r  first right by granting Mr. Davidson t h e  o p t i o n s  t o  
purchase t h e  500,000 shares from t h e i r  own s h a r e s  of o u r  common s t o c k .  
Therefore, as of the d a t e  of t h i s  n o t i c e  w e  were no longer under  t h e  o b l i g a t i o n  
t o  g r a n t  an o p t i o n  o r  i s s u e  shares of common stock to Mr. Davidson under this 
resolution. 

On J a n u a r y  1, 2 0 0 4 ,  w e  granted t h e  following warrants t o  P o r t f o l i o  PR, a New 
York c o r p o r a t i o n  owned and controlled by  Pau l  Holm, i n  exchange for services: 
(a) 5 0 , 0 0 0  w a r r a n t s  t o  purchase 5 0 , 0 0 0  shares of o u r  common stock a t  an  exercise 
price of $ 6 . 0 0  per share; and (b) 50,000 warrants t o  p u r c h a s e  50,000 shares of  
o u r  cornmon s t o c k  a t  an e x e r c i s e  price of $10  per sha re .  The w a r r a n t s  e x p i r e  on 
January 1, 2005. Ne relied upon t h e  exemption from r e g i s t r a t i o n  p r o v i d e d  by 
S e c t i o n  4 ( 2 )  of  t h e  Securities Act o f  1933.  W e  b e l i e v e d  S e c t i o n  4(2) w a s  
a v a i l a b l e  because: 

i. the o f f e r  and s a l e  did no t  involve a public o f f e r i n g ;  

ii. a1 1 c e r t i f i c a t e s  were marked w i t h  restrictive l egends ;  

iii. each i n v e s t o r  r e p r e s e n t e d  t h e y  were s o p h i s t i c a t e d  enough t o  
e v a l u a t e  t h e  m e r i t s  of t h e  investment; and 

iv. Mr. H o l m  had a p r e e x i s t i n g  relationship w i t h  Guy Nissenson, o u r  
P r i n c i p a l  Executive O f f i c e r  and President. 

I n  c o n j u n c t i o n  wi th  t h i s  agreement, from January 2004  to April 2 0 0 4 ,  w e  pa id  
P o r t f o l i o  PR, Inc. $ 7 , 0 0 0  but we made not stock i s s u a n c e s  t o  Portfolio PR, Inc .  
In addition, ? o r t f o l i o  PR, I n c .  did n o t  exercise any warrants. On A p r i l  2 3 ,  



2004, we cancelled the agreement with Portfolio PR, Inc. "for cause".  In June 
2004, P o r t f o l i o  PR, Inc. a g r e e d  to r ece ive  from us $7,209.09 in cash and 4,000 
s h a r e s  of our common stock as total and final consideration and further agreed  
that we would have no further obligation to p a y  it any additional cash, shares, 
warrants, or other consideration in connection with this agreement. 

On January 9, 2004, we granted 17,500 restricted shares of OUT common stock, 
17,500 Warrants A, and 17,500 Warrants B to Stern & Company, a limited liability 
company registered in New York which is owned, managed and controlled by Shai 
Stern, in exchange for strategic planning r e l a t e d  services. Each Warrant A is 
exercisable into one sha re  of common stock at an exercise price of $5.50 per 
share .  Each Warrant B is exercisable into one share of common stock at an 
exercise p r i c e  of $3.50 per sha re .  We agreed to register t h e  1 7 , 5 0 0  shares o f  
common stock, the 17,500 s h a r e s  underlying the Warrants A and the 17,500 shares 
underlying the Warrants B. The Warrants A are exercisable a t  any time before 
J a n u a r y  9, 2009 .  The Warrants B are exercisable until the earlier of 10 days 
a f t e r  this registration statement is effective or 10 days after our  common stock 
is t r aded  on t h e  NASDAQ Small Cap or the American Stock Exchange or up until the 
date t h a t  is 375 days following the d a t e  of purchase. We r e l i e d  upon the 
exemption from registration provided by Section 4(2) of  the Securities Act of 
1933. We believed Section 4 ( 2 )  was available because: 

i. t h e  offer and s a l e  d id  not involve a public offering; 

ii. all c e r t i f i c a t e s  were marked with restrictive l egends ;  

iii. each investor represented they were sophisticated enough to 
evaluate the merits of t h e  investment; and 

iv. Stern and Company had a preexisting relationship w i t h  Guy 
Nissenson, our Principal Executive O f f i c e r  and President. 

On January 9, 2004, w e  sold 16,667 restricted shares of our common stock, 16,667 
Warrants A, and 16,667 Warrants B to WEC Partners, LLC, a Delaware limited 
liability company owned and controlled by Ethan Benovitz, D a n i e l  S a k s ,  and Jaime 
Kartman, in exchange for $50,000. Each Warrant A is exercisable  into one share 
of common s t o c k  at an exercise price of $5.50 per  share. Each Warrant 3 is 
exercisable into one share of cornon stock at an exercise price of $3.50 per 
share .  We agreed to register the 16,667 s h a r e s  of common Stock, the 16,667 
shares underlying the Warrants A and the 16,667 shares underlying the Warrants 
B. The Warrants A are e x e r c i s a b l e  at any time before  J a n u a r y  9, 2009. The 
Warrants B are exercisable until the earlier o f  10 days after this registration 
statement is effective or 10 days a f t e r  our common s t o c k  is t r a d e d  on the NASDAQ 
Small Cap o r  the American Stock Exchange or up until the date t h a t  is 375 days 
following the date of purchase. We relied upon t h e  exemption f r o m  registration 
provided by Section 4(2) of t h e  Securities Act of 1933 .  We believed Section 4(2) 
was available because: 
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i. the o f f e r  and sale d id  n o t  involve a public o f f e r i n g ;  

ii. all certificates were marked with restrictive legends;  

iii. each investor represented they were sophisticated enough to 
e v a l u a t e  t h e  m e r i t s  of the investment; and 

iv. WEC Partners had a p r e e x i s t i n g  relationship w i t h  Guy Nissenson, our 
P r i n c i p a l  Executive Officer and President. 

On January 9, 2004, in exchange for $300,000, we sold 100,000 restricted shares 
of our common stock, 100,000 Warrants A, and 100,000 Warrants B to Platinum 
Partners Value Arbitrage, a Ca-pan Islands based limited partnership; Mark 
Nordlicht is the IvJaanaging Member of Platinum Management LLC, the Genera l  P a r t n e r  



of this limited p a r t n e r s h i p ,  which is a limited liability company registered in 
new York. Each Warrant A is exercisable into one share of common s t o c k  at an 
exercise price of $5.50 per share. Each Warrant B is exercisable i n t o  one share 
of common s tock  at an exercise price of $3.50 per share. We agreed to register 
t h s  100,000 sha res  of common s t o c k ,  the 100,000 sha res  underlying the Warrants A 
and the 100,000 shares underlying the Warrants B. The Warrants A are exercisable 
at any time before J a n u a r y  9, 2009. The Warrants  E3 are exercisable u n t i l  the 
e a r l i e r  of  10 days  a f t e r  this registration statement is effective or 10 days 
a f t e r  o u r  common s t o c k  is traded on the NASDAQ Small Cap or the American S t o c k  
Exchange or up until the d a t e  that i s  375 days following the d a t e  of purchase. 
We r e l i e d  upon the exemption f r o m  registration provided  by Section 4(2) of the 
Securities A c t  of 1933. We believed S e c t i o n  4(2) was available because: 

i. t h e  offer and sale did n o t  involve a public offering; 

ii. a l l  certificates were marked with restrictive l e g e n d s ;  

iii. each investor represented they were 
e v a l u a t e  the merits of t he  investment; and 

sophisticated enough to 

iv. Platinum Management LLC had a preexisting relationship w i t h  Guy 
Nissenson, our Principal Executive Officer and President. 

On January 9, 2004, we sold 50,000 res t r ic ted  shares of our common s t o c k ,  50,000 
Warrants A, and 50,000 Warrants B to Countrywide P a r t n e r s ,  LLC, a Delaware 
limited liability company owned, managed, and controlled by Harry Adler, in 
exchange for $150,000. Each Warrant A is exercisable i n t o  one share of  common 
stock at an exercise p r i c e  of $5.50 per  share .  Each Warrant €3 is exercisable 
into one share  of common s t o c k  at an exercise price of $3.50 per share .  We 
agreed to r e g i s t e r  the 50,000 shares of common stock, the 50,000 sha res  
underlying the Warrants A and the 50,000 sha res  underlying the Warrants €3. The 
Warrants A are exercisable at any time before January 9, 2009. The Warrants B 
are e x e r c i s a b l e  until the earlier of 10 days a f t e r  t h i s  registration statement 
is e f f e c t i v e  or 10 days a f t e r  our common s t o c k  is t r aded  on t h e  NASDAQ Small Cap 
or t h e  American S t o c k  Exchange or up u n t i l  the date that i s  375 days following 
the d a t e  of purchase. We r e l i ed  upon the exemption from registration provided by 
S e c t i o n  4(2) of t h e  Securities A c t  of 1933. We believed S e c t i o n  
available because: 

i. t h e  offer and sale did not involve a public offering; 

ii. all certificates were marked w i t h  restrictive legends;  

iii. each investor r e p r e s e n t e d  they were sophisticated 
evaluate the merits of the investment; and 

iv. Countrywide P a r t n e r s  had a preexisting r e l a t i o n s h i p  
Nissenson, our Principal Executive O f f i c e r  and President. 

4 ( 2 )  was 

enough to 

with Guy 
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On or about J a n u a r y  15, 2003, we s o l d  5,000 restricted shares of our  common 
s t o c k  t o  WorldNet Global.com L t d . ,  a United Kingdom corporation controlled by 
Vic Chhabria, at a p r i c e  o f  $ 0 . 5 0  per s h a r e  o r  an aggregate purchase price of 
$2,500. On or about February 17, 2003, we s o l d  an additional 5,650 restricted 
shares of our  common stock t o  WorldNet Global.com L t d .  at a p r i c e  of $0.44 per 
share or an' a g g r e g a t e  purchase price of $2,500. On or about April 24, 2003, we 
sold an a d d i t i o n a l  2 0 , 0 0 0  restricted shares of our common s t o c k  to WorldNet 
Global.com Ltd. at a price of $0.25 per share or an aggregate purchase price of 
$5,000. On or about  May 16, 2 0 0 3 ,  we s o l d  an additional 9,615 r e s t r i c t e d  shares 
of our common s t o c k  t o  WorldNet Global.com Ltd. at a price of $0 .26  per share or 
an aggregate purchase price of $ 2 , 5 0 0 .  On o r  about August 28, 2003, we s o l d  an 
additional 11,750 restricted shares of our common s t o c k  to WorldNet GlobaL.com 
Ltd. at a p r i c e  of $0.425 per share or an aggregate purchase price of $5,000. On 



cr about September 3, 2003, we s o l d  an additional 4,780 restricted shares of our 
common stock to WorldNet Global.com Ltd. a t  a pr i ce  of $0.523 per  share or an 
aggregate purchase price of $2,500. On or about October 2 7  2003, we s o l d  an 
additional 1,025 restricted shares of our common s t o c k  to WorldNet Global.com 
L t d .  at a price of $2.43 per share or an aggregate purchase price of $2,500. We 
r e l i e d  upon Section 4 ( 2 )  of the A c t  for the offers and sales to WorldNet 
Global.com, Ltd. We believed t h a t  Section 4 ( 2 )  was available because the s a l e s  
d i d  not involve a public offering and there was no general solicitation or 
general a d v e r t i s i n g  involved in t h e  sales. WorldNet Global.com Ltd. had a 
pre-existing relationship with us as a reseller of our telecommunications 
services. We placed legends on t h e  s t o c k  certificates stating that the 
securities were not registered under  the Securities Act of 1933 and set forth 
t h e  restrictions on t h e i r  transferability and sale. 

On January 15, 2004, we sold 5,000 restricted shares of our common stock, 5,000 
Warrants A, and 5,000 Warrants €3 to Arik Ecker in exchange for $15,000. Each 
Warrant A is exercisable into one share of common stock at an exerc ise  pr ice  of 
$5.50 per share. Each Warrant 3 is exercisable into one share of common stock at 
an exercise price of $3.50 per share. We agreed to register the 5,000 shares of 
common s t o c k l  the 5,000 shares underlying the Warrants A and the 5,000 shares 
underlying the Warrants B. The Warrants A are exercisable at any time before 
J a n u a r y  15, 2009. The Warrants B are exercisable until the earlier of 10 days 
after this registration statement is effective or 10 days a f t e r  o u r  common stock 
is traded on the NASDAQ Small Cap or the American S t o c k  Exchange or up until the 
da te  that is 375 days following the d a t e  of purchase. We relied upon the 
exemption from registration provided by S e c t i o n  4 ( 2 )  of the Securities Act of 
1933. We believed Section 4 ( 2 )  was available because: 

i. the o f f e r  and sale did not involve a public offering; 

ii. all certificates were marked with restrictive legends; 

iii. each investor represented they were sophisticated enough to 
evaluate the merits of the investment; and 

iv. Arik Ecker had a preexisting relationship with Guy Nissenson, our 
Principal Executive Officer and President. 

On January  15, 2004, we s o l d  8,500 restricted shares of our common s t o c k ,  8,500 
Warrants A, and 8,500 Warrants B to Zwi Ecker in exchange for $25,500. Each 
Warrant A is exercisable into one share of common s t o c k  at an exercise price of 
$5.50 p e r  share. Each Warrant 3 is exercisable into one share of common s t o c k  at 
an exercise price of $3.50 per s h a r e .  We a g r e e d  t o  register the 8,500 sha res  of 
common s t o c k ,  the 8,500 shares underlying the W a r r a n t s A  and the 8 , 5 0 0  shares 
u n d e r l y i n g  t h e  Warrants B .  The Warrants A are exercisable at any time before 
January 15, 2009 .  The Warrants I3 are exercisable until the earlier of 10 days 
a f t e r  this registration statement is effective or 10 days after our common stock 
is traded on the NASDAQ Small Cap or the American S t o c k  Exchange or up until t h e  
d a t e  t h a t  is 375 days following the d a t e  of purchase. We relied upon the 
exemption f r o m  registration provided by Section 4 ( 2 )  of t h e  Securities Act of 
1933. We believed Section 4(2) was available because: 

i. the offer and s a l e  did not involve a public o f f e r i n g ;  

ii. all certificates were marked with restrictive legends;  

iii. each investor represented t h e y  were sophisticated enough to 
evaluate the merits of the investment; and 

iv. Zwi Ecker had a preexisting relationship w i t h  Guy Nissenson, our 
Principal Executive Officer and President. 
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On January 15, 2004, we sold 13,000 restricted shares of our common s t o c k ,  
13,000 Warrants A, and 13,000 Warran t s  B to Simon Langbart  in exchange for 
$39,000. Each W a r r a n t  A is exercisable into one share of common stock at an 
exerc ise  price of $5.50 per share. Each Warrant B is exercisable into one s h a r e  
of common stock at an exercise price of $3.50 per share. We agreed to register 
the 13,000 sha res  of cornon stock, the 13,000 shares underlying the Warrants A 
and the 13,000 shares underlying t h e  Warrants B. The Warrants A are exercisable 
at any time before January 15, 2009. The Warrants B are exercisable until the 
earlier of 10 days a f t e r  this registration statement is effective or 10 days 
a f t e r  o u r  common stock is t r aded  on the NASDAQ Small Cap or the American Stock 
Exchange or up until t h e  d a t e  that is 375 days following t h e  date of purchase. 
We re l ied upon the exemption from registration provided by Section 4 ( 2 )  of t h e  
Securities A c t  of 1933. We believed Section 4 ( 2 )  w a s  available because: 

i. t h e  offer and s a l e  did not involve a public offering; 

ii. all certificates were marked with restrictive l egends ;  

iii, each investor represented they were sophisticated enough to 
e v a l u a t e  the merits of the investment; and 

iv. Simon Langbart had a preexisting relationship with Guy N i s s e n s o n ,  
our Principal Executive Officer and President. 

On January  15, 2004, we s o l d  5,000 r e s t r i c t e d  shares of our common stock, 5,000 
Warrants A, and 5,000 Warrants B to Robert Langbart in exchange f o r  $15,000. 
Each Warrant A is exercisable into one share of common s t o c k  at an exercise 
p r i c e  of $5.50 per  share. Each Warrant B is exercisable into one share of common 
s t o c k  at an exercise price of $3.50 per share. We agreed to register the 5,000 
shares of common s tock ,  the 5,000 shares underlying the Warran t s  A and the 5,000 
shares underlying the Warran t s  B. The Warrants A are exercisable at any time 
before January 15, 2009. The Warrants B are exercisable until t h e  earlier of 10 
d a y s  after this registration statement is effective or 10 days a f t e r  our common 
s t o c k  is traded on the NASDAQ Small Cap or the American S t o c k  Exchange or up 
until t h e  d a t e  t h a t  is 375 days following the date of purchase. We relied upon 
the exemption from registration provided by Section 4 ( 2 )  of the Securities Act 
of 1933. We believed Section 4 (2) was available because: 

i. the o f f e r  and sale did n o t  involve a public offering; 

ii. all certificates were marked with restrictive legends; 

iii. each investor represented they were sophisticated enough to 
evaluate the merits of t h e  investment; and 

iv. Robert Langbart had a preexisting relationship with Guy Nissenson, 
our Principal Executive Off icer  and  President. 

31 
<PAGE> 

On J a n u a r y  15, 2004 ,  we s o l d  3,000 restricted shares of our common s t o c k ,  3,000 
Warrants A, and 3,000 Warrants 3 to Michael Derman in exchange for $9,000. Each 
Warrant A is exercisable into one s h a r e  of common stock at an exercise price of 
$5.50 per share. Each Warrant B is exercisable into one share of common stock at 
an exercise price of $3.50 per share .  We agreed to register the 3,000 shares 
ofcommon s t o c k ,  t h e  3 , 0 0 0  shares underlying the Warrants A and the 3 , 0 0 0  s h a r e s  
underlying the Warrants 3. The Warrants A are exerc isab le  at any time before 
January 15, 2009. The Warrants B a r e  exercisable until t h e  earlier of 10 days 
a f t e r  t h i s  registration statement is ef fec t ive  or 10 days  a f t e r  our common s t o c k  
is traded on the NASDAQ Small Cap or the American Stock Exchange or up until the 
d a t e  that is 375 days following the d a t e  of purchase .  We relied upon t h e  
exemption from registration providsd by Section 4 ( 2 )  of the Securities A c t  of 
1933. We believed S e c t i o n  4 ( 2 )  was available because: 



i. the offer and sale d id  not i n v o l v e  a public o f f e r i n g ;  

ii. a l l  certificates were marked with restrictive legends; 

iii. each investor represented they were sophisticated enough to 
e v a l u a t e  t h e  merits of t h e  investment; and 

i v .  Michael  Derman had  a preexisting relationship w i t h  Guy Nissenson, 
our Principal Executive Officer and President. 

On January 15, 2004, we sold 7,000 restricted shares of our common s t o c k ,  7,000 
Warrants A, and 7,000 Warran t s  B to Errol Derman in exchange f o r  $21,000. Each 
Warrant A is exercisable i n t o  one share of  common s tock  at an exercise p r i c e  of 
$5.50 per s h a r e .  Each  Warrant B is exercisable into one share of common stock at 
an exe rc i se  price of $ 3 . 5 0  per  share. We agreed to register the 7,000 shares of 
common stock, the 7,000 shares underlying the Warrants A and  t h e  7 , 0 0 0  shares 
underlying the Warrants B. The Warrants A are exercisable at any time before 
J a n u a r y  15, 2 0 0 9 .  T h e  Warrants B are exercisable until the e a r l i e r  of 1 0  d a y s  
a f t e r  this registration statement is effective or 10 days after our common s tock  
is traded on t h e  NASDAQ Small Cap or the American S t o c k  Exchange or u p  u n t i l  the 
da te  t h a t  is 375 days following the d a t e  of purchase. We relied upon the 
exemption from registration provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities A c t  of 
1933. We believed Section 4 1 2 )  was available because: 

i. t h e  o f f e r  and sa l e  did not i n v o l v e  a public offering; 

ii. all c e r t i f i c a t e s  were marked with restrictive legends; 

iii. each investor represented they were sophisticated enough to 
evaluate the merits of the investment; and 

iv. Errol Derman had a preexisting relationship with Guy Nissenson, our 
Principal E x e c u t i v e  Officer and President. 

On J a n u a r y  15, 2004, we s o l d  8,000 restricted shares of our common s t o c k ,  8,000 
Warrants A, and 8,000 Warrants B to Yuval Haim Sobel in exchange for $24,000. 
Each Warrant A is exercisable into one s h a r e  of common stock at an exercise 
price of $ 5 . 5 0  per share. Each Warrant B is exercisable i n t o  one share of common 
stock at an exercise pr i ce  of $3.50 per share. We agreed to register the 8,000 
shares of common s t o c k ,  the 8,000 shares underlying the Warrants A and t h e  8,000 
shares underlying the Warrants B. The Warrants A are exercisable at any time 
before J a n u a r y  15, 2009. The Warrants B are exercisable until the earlier of 10 
days after this registration s t a t e m e n t  is effective or 10 days a f t e r  our common 
s t o c k  is traded on the NASDAQ Small Cap o r  t h e  American Stock  Exchange o r  up 
until the date that is 375 days following the date of purchase. We relied upon 
the exemption from registration provided by Section 4 ( 2 )  of the Securities A c t  
of 1933. We believed Section 4(2) was available b, =cause: 
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i. t h e  offer and sale did not involve a public offering; 

ii. a l l  certificates were marked with restrictive legends; 

iii. each investor represented they were sophisticated enough to 
evaluate the merits of t h e  investment; and 

iv. Yuval Haim Sobel had a preexisting r e l a t i o n s h i p  with Guy Nissenson, 
our Principal Executive Officer and President. 

On January 15, 2004, we sold 8,000 restricted shares of our common stock, 8,000 
Warrants A, and 8,000 Warrants 13 to Zvi Sobel in exchange f o r  $ 2 4 , 0 0 0 .  Each 
Warrant A i s  exercisable into one share of common s t o c k  at an exercise price of 
$5.50 per  share. Each Warrant 3 is exercisable i n t o  one share of common stock at 



an exercise pr i ce  of $3.50 per sha re .  We agreed  to register the 8,000 shares of 
common stock, the 8,000 shares underlying t h e  Warrants A and ths 8,000 shares  
u n d e r l y i n g  the Warrants B. The Warrants A a r e '  exercisable at any time before 
January 15, 2009. The Warrants B are e x e r c i s a b l e  until the e a r l i e r  o f  1 0  days 
a f t e r  this registration statement is effective or 10 days after our common s t o c k  
is traded on the NASDAQ Small Cap or t h e  American Stock Exchange or  up until the 
date that is 375 days following t h e  date of purchase. We relied upon t h e  
exemption from registration provided by S e c t i o n  4(2) of the Securities A c t  of 
1933. We believed S e c t i o n  4(2) was available because: 

i. t h e  offer and sa le  d i d  not i n v o l v e  a public o f f e r i n g ;  

ii. a l l  certificates were marked  with restrictive l egends ;  

iii. each investor represented they were sophisticated enough to 
evaluate the m e r i t s  of t h e  investment; and  

iv. Zvi Sobel had a preexisting relationship w i t h  Guy Nissenson, o u r  
Principal Executive Off i ce r  and President. 

On January 15, 2004, we sold 8,400 restricted s h a r e s  of our common stock, 8 ,400  
Warrants A, and 8,400 Warran t s  B t o  Tenram Investments, Ltd. in exchange for 
$25,200. Each Warrant  A i s  e x e r c i s a b l e  i n t o  one share of common stock at an 
exercise price of $5.50 per share. Each Warrant 3 is exercisable i n t o  one s h a r e  
of common stock at an exercise price of $3.50 per  share. We agreed to register 
the 8,400 s h a r e s  of common s t o c k ,  the 8,400 shares underlying the Warrants A and 
the 8,400 shares underlying the Warrants B. The Warrants A are exercisable at 
any t i m e  before January 15, 2009. The Warrants 3 a r e  exercisable u n t i l  t h e  
earlier uf 10 days after this registration statement is effective or 10 days 
after o u r  common stock is t r aded  on t h e  NASDAQ Small Cap o r  t h e  American S t o c k  
Exchange o r  up until the d a t e  that is 375 days following the date of p u r c h a s e .  
We relied upon the exemption from r e g i s t r a t i o n  provided b y  Section 4(2) of the 
Securities A c t  of 1933. We believed S e c t i o n  4(2) was available because:  
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i. t h e  offew and sale did not involve a public offering; 

ii. a l l  certificates were marked with restrictive legends; 

iii. each investor represented they were sophisticated enough to 
e v a l u a t e  t h e  merits of  t h e  investment; and 

iv. Tenram Investments, Ltd. had a preexisting relationship with Guy 
Nissenson, o u r  Principal Executive Officer and President. 

On January 15, 2004, we sold 10,000 restricted shares  of o u r  common stock, 
10,000 Warrants A, and lor000 Warrants B to Michael Zinn i n  exchange f o r  
$ 3 0 , 0 0 0 .  Each Warrant A is exercisable i n t o  one share of common stock a t  an 
exercise price of $5 .50  per  share. Each Warrant B i s  exercisable into one s h a r e  
of common s t o c k  at an exercise pr ice  of $3.50 per share. We agreed to register 
the 10,000 shares of common s t o c k ,  t h e  10,000 shares underlying t h e  Warrants A 
and the 10,000 shares underlying the Warrants B. The Warrants A are exe rc i sab le  
at any time before J a n u a r y  15, 2009. The War ran t s  B are exercisable until the 
earlier of 10 days after t h i s  registration statement i s  effective or 10 days 
after our common stock is t r a d e d  on t h e  NASDAQ Small Cap or the American S t o c k  
Exchange or up until the date that i s  375 days  following the da te  of purchase. 
We r e l i e d  upon the exemption from registration provided by S e c t i o n  4 j 2 )  of  t h e  
Securities Act of 1933. We believed Section 4(2) was available because: 

i. the offer and sale did involve a public offering; 

ii. all c e r t i f i c a t e s  were marked with restrictive l egends ;  



iii. each investor represented t h e y  were sophisticated enough to 
evaluate t h e  merits of the investment; and 

iv. Michael Zinn had a preexisting relationship with Guy Nissenson, our 
Principal Executive Officer and President. 

On January 22, 2004, we granted 100,000 Warrants A to Hamilton, L e h r e r  & Dasgan, 
P.A. in exchange for legal services rendered to us. Each Warrant A is 
exercisable into one share of common s t o c k  at an exercise price of $5*50 per 
share. We agreed to register the 100,000 shares of common s t o c k  underlying t h e  
Warrants A. The Warrants A are exercisable at any time before January/February 
2009. We relied upon the exemption from registration provided by Section 4(2) of 
the Securities Act of 1933.  We believed S e c t i o n  4(2) was available because: 

i. the offer and sale did not i n v o l v e  a public offering; 

ii. a l l  certificates were marked with  restrictive legends; 

iii. each investor represented they were sophisticated enough t o  
evaluate t h e  merits of t h e  investment; and 

iv. Hamilton, Lehrer  6r Dargan, P . A .  had a preexisting relationship with 
Guy Nissenson, our P r i n c i p a l  Executive Off icer  and President. 

On January 25, 2004, we s o l d  20,000 restricted shares  of our common stock, 
20,000 Warrants A, and 20,000 Warrants 3 to Michael Weiss in exchange for 
$60,000. Each Warrant A is exercisable into one s h a r e  of common s t o c k  at an 
exercise price of $5.50 per share. Each Warrant B is exercisable into one share  
of common stock at an exercise price of $ 3 . 5 0  per share .  We agreed to register 
t h e  20,000 shares of common s tock ,  the 20,000 shares underlying t h e  Warrants A 
and the 20,000 shares underlying t h e  Warrants B. The Warrants A are exercisable 
at any time before J a n u a r y  25, 2009. The Warrants B are exercisable until the 
earlier of 10 days a f t e r  this registration statement is effective or 10 days 
after o u r  common stock is t r a d e d  on the NASDAQ Small Cap or the American Stock 
Exchange or up u n t i l  the d a t e  that is 375 days following the date of purchase. 
We relied upon the exemption from registration provided  by Section 4 ( 2 )  of the 
Securities Act of 1933. We believed Section 4(2) was available because: 
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i. the offer and s a l e  d i d  not involve a public offering; 

ii. a l l  certificates were marked w i t h  restrictive legends; 

iii. each investor represented they were sophisticated enough t o  
evaluate the merits of the investment; and 

iv. Michael Weiss had a preexisting relationship w i t h  Guy Nissenson, 
our Principal. E x e c u t i v e  Officer and President. 

On January 3 0 ,  2004, we sold 16,667 restricted shares of our  common s tock ,  
16,667 A Warrants, f o r  $50,000. 
Each A Warrant is exercisable into one s h a r e  of common stock at an exercise 
price of $5.50 per share. Each 3 Warrant is exercisable into one sha re  of common 
s t o c k  at an exercise price of $3.50 per share. We agreed to register the 16,667 
shares of common stock, the 16 ,667  shares u n d e r l y i n g  the A Warrants and the 
16,667 shares underlying the B Warrants. The A Warrants a r e  exercisable at any 
time before January 30, 2009- The B Warrants are  exercisable until the earlier 
of 10 days a f t e r  this registration statement is effective or 10 days after our 
common stock is t r aded  on the NASDAQ Small Cap os the American Stock Exchange o r  
up until t h e  date that is 375 days following the date of purchase. We pa id  a 
finders fee  in t h e  amount of $4,000 to Oberon Group, LLC, a limited liability 
company registered in New York, which is owned, managed and controlled by Adam 
Breslawsky, in connection with the sale. We relied upon the exemption from 

and 16,667 B Warrants to Oded Levy in exchange 



registration provided  by Section 4 ( 2 1  of the S e c u r i t i e s  Act of  1933. We believed 
S e c t i o n  4 1 2 )  xas available because: 

i. t h e  offer and sale did n o t  involve a p u b l i c  offering; 

ii. all certificates were marked with restrictive legends; 

iii. each investor represented t h e y  were sophisticated enough to 
evaluate t h e  merits of t h e  investment. 

On J a n u a r y  30, 2004, we s o l d  66,667 restricted shares of our common stock, 
66,667 A Warrants, and 66,667 B Warrants to Southridge Partners, LP, a limited 
partnership registered in Delaware, in exchange for $200,000. Stephen N i c k s  is 
the President of the limited partnership's general partner, Southridge Capital 
Management. Each A Warrant is exercisable into one share of common s t o c k  at an 
exercise price of $5.50 per share. Each B Warrant i s  exercisable into one share 
of common s t o c k  a t  an exercise price of $3.50 per s h a r e .  We agreed to register 
the 66,667 shares of common s t o c k ,  the 6 6 , 6 6 7  shares underlying the A Warrants 
and the 66,667 shares  u n d e r l y i n g  the B Warrants. The A Warrants are exercisable 
a t  any  time before January 30, 2009. The B Warrants a r e  exercisable until the 
earlier of 10 days after this registration statement i s  e f f e c t i v e  o r  10 days 
after our common s t o c k  is traded on the NASDAQ Small Cap or the American Stock 
Exchange or up until the date t h a t  is 375 days following the d a t e  of purchase. 
We paid a finders fee in the amount of $16,000 to Oberon Group, LLC, a limited 
liability company registered in New York, which is owned, managed and controlled 
by Adam Breslawsky, in connection with t h e  sale. We relied upon the exemption 
from registration provided by Section 4 ( 2 )  of the Securities Act of 1933. We 
believed Section 4(2) was available because: 

i. t h e  offer and sale d i d  not involve a p u b l i c  offering; 

ii. a l l  certificates were marked with restrictive legends ; 

iii. each investor represented  they were sophisticated enough t o  
evaluate the merits of the investment; and 

iv. Southridge Partners, LP had a preexisting relationship with Guy 
Nissenson, o u r  Principal Execu t ive  Officer and President. 
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On January 30, 2004,we sold 5,000 restricted shares of our common s t o c k ,  5,000 A 
Warrants, and 5,000 B Warrants to Adam Breslawsky in exchange for $15,000. Each 
A Warrant is exercisable into one share of common stock at an exercise price of 
$5.50 per share. Each 3 Warrant is exercisable into one share of common stock at 
an exercise price of $3.50 per share. We agreed to register the 5,000 shares of 
cornmon stock, the 5,000 shares underlying the A Warran t s  and t h e  5,000 shares 
underlying the B Warrants. The A Warrants are exercisable at any time befo re  
January 30, 2009. The B Warrants are exercisable until the earlier of 10 days 
after this registration statement is effective or 10 days a f t e r  our common stock 
is t r a d e d  on the NASDAQ Small Cap or the American Stock Exchange or up until the 
d a t e  that is 375 days following the date of purchase. We paid  a finders f e e  in 
the amount of $1,200 to Oberon Group, LLC, a limited liability company 
registered in New York, which is owned, managed and c o n t r o l l e d  by Adam 
Breslawsky, i n  connection w i t h  the sale. We r e l i ed  upon the exemption f r o m  
registration provided by Section 4(2) of the S e c u r i t i e s  Act of 1933.  We believed 
Section 4 ( 2 )  was a v a i l a b l e  because: 

i. the offer and sale did not involve a public offering; 

ii. a l l  c e r t i f i c a t e s  were marked with restrictive legends; 

iii. each investor r ep resen ted  t h e y  were sophisticated enough to 



e v a l u a t e  the m e r i t s  of the investment; and 

iv. Adam Breslawsky had a preexisting r e l a t i o n s h i p  with Guy Nissenson, 
o u r  Principal Executive O f f i c e r  and President. 

On January 30,  2 0 0 4 ,  we sold 6 , 6 6 7  restricted s h a r e s  of oilr common Stock ,  6,667 
Warrants A, and 6,667 Warrants B to Michael Epstein i n  exchange for $20,000. 
Each War ran t  A is exercisable into one s h a r e  of common s t o c k  at an exe rc i se  
pr ice  of $5 .50  per share. Each Warrant B is exercisable i n t o  one s h a r e  of common 
stock at an exercise p r i c e  of $3.50 per s h a r e .  We agreed to register t h e  6,667 
shares of  common s t o c k ,  t h e  6 , 6 6 7  shares u n d e r l y i n g  the Warrants A and t h e  6 , 6 6 7  
shares underlying t h e  Warrants B. The Warrants A are exercisable a t  any time 
before January 30, 2009. The Warrants E3 are exercisable until the e a r l i e r  of 10 
days  a f t e r  this registration statement is effective or 10 days a f t e r  our common 
stock is t r a d e d  on the NASDAQ Small Cap or the American Stock Exchange or up 
until t h e  date that is 375 days  following the date of purchase. We paid a 
finders fee in the amount o f  $ 1 , 6 0 0  t o  Oberon Group,  LLC, a limited liability 
company r e g i s t e r e d  in ]\Jew York, which is owned, managed and controlled by Adam 
Breslawsky, in connection w i t h  the sale. We relied upon t h e  exemption from 
registration provided  by Section 4 ( 2 )  of t h e  Securities A c t  of 1933. We believed 
S e c t i o n  4(2) was available because: 

i. t h e  o f f e r  and s a l e  did not involve a public o f f e r i n g ;  

ii. all c e r t i f i c a t e s  were marked with restrictive legends; 

iii. each investor represented they were sophisticated enough to 
evaluate the merits of the investment 

On January 30, 2004, we s o l d  13,334 restricted shares of our common s t o c k ,  
13,334 Warrants A, and 13,334 Warrants B to Stephen Frank in exchange f o r  
$40,000. Each Warrant A is exercisable into one share of common stock at an  
exercise price of $5.50 per share. Each Warrant B i s  exercisable i n t o  one s h a r e  
of common stock a t  an exercise price of $3.50 per s h a r e .  We agreed t o  register 
the 13,334 shares of common stock, the 13,334 s h a r e s  underlying the Warrants A 
and the 13,334 shares u n d e r l y i n g  the Warrants B. The Warrants A are exercisable 
at any time before January 30, 2009. The Warrants B a r e  exercisable until the 
earlier of 10 d a y s  after t h i s  registration statement i s  effective or 10 days 
after our  common s t o c k  is traded on the NASDAQ Small Cap or t h e  American Stock 
Exchange or up u n t i l  the date t h a t  is 375 days following t h e  date of purchase. 
We paid a f i n d e r s  fee in the amount of $3,200 to Oberon Group, LLC, a. limited 
l i a b i l i t y  company registered in New York, which is owned, managed and controlled 
by Adam Breslawsky, in connection with the s a l e .  We relied upon the exemption 
from registration provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933. We 
believed Section 4(2) was available because: 

i. the offer and s a l e  d i d  not involve a p u b l i c  offering; 

ii. all certificates were marked with restrictive legends;  

iii. each investor represented they were sophisticated enough to 
evaluate t h e  merits of the investment. 
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On January 30, 2004, we s o l d  66,667 restricted shares of o u r  common s t o c k ,  
66,667 Warrants A, and 66,667 Warrants  B to Southshore Capital Fund LTD, a 
Cayman Islands corporation, in exchange f o r  $200,000. N a v i g a t o r  Management is 
the Corporate Direc tor  of Southshore Capital Fund, L t d .  and the Direc to r  and 
c o n t r o l  person of Navigator Management is David Sims. Each Warrant A is 
exerc isab le  i n t o  one s h a r e  of common s t o c k  at an exerc ise  price of $ 5 . 5 0  p e s  
share.  Each Warrant 3 is exercisable into one s h a r e  of common stock at an 
exercise price of $3.50 per share. We agreed t o  register t h e  6 6 , 6 6 7  s h a r e s  of  
common stock, the 66,667 shares underlying t h e  Warrants A and  the 66,667 shares  



underlying t h e  Warrants B. The Warrants A are exercisable a t  any t i m e  before 
J a n u a r y  3 0 ,  2009. The Warrants B are exercisable until the e a r l i e r  of 10 days 
a f t e r  this registration statement is effective or 10 days after our common s t o c k  
is t r aded  on the NASDAQ Small Cap or the American Stock Exchange or up until the 
d a t e  that is 375 days f o l l o w i n g  the date of purchase. We paid a finders f ee  in 
the amount of $16,000 to Oberon Group,  LLC, a limited liability company 
registered in New Y o r k ,  which is owned, managed and controlled by Adam 
Breslawsky, i n  connection w i t h  the sale. W e  relied upon the exemption from 
registration provided by  Section 4 ( 2 )  of the Securities Act of 1933. We believed 
Section 4(2) was available because: 

i. the offer and sale did nut involve a public o f f e r i n g ;  

ii. all certificates were marked with restrictive legends; 

iii. each investor represented they were sophisticated enough to 
evaluate the merits of the investment 

On February 2 ,  2 0 0 4 ,  we s o l d  500,000 restricted shares of our common s t o c k ,  
500,000 Warrants A, and 500,000 Warrants 3 to Crestview C a p i t a l  Master, LLC, a 
limited liability company registered in Delaware which is controlled by Richard 
Levy and Stuart F l i n k ,  in exchange for $1,500,000. Each Warrant A is exercisable 
i n t o  one share of common stock at an exercise p r i c e  of $5.50 per share. Each 
W a r r a n t  B i s  exercisable i n t o  one share of common stock,at an exercise price of 
$3.50 per share. We agreed to register the 500,000 shares of common s t o c k ,  the 
500,000 shares underlying the Warrants A and the 500,000 shares underlying t h e  
Warrants  B. The Warrants A are exercisable at any time before  February 2, 2009. 
The Warrants B are exercisable until t h e  earlier of 10 days a f t e r  t h i s  
registration statement is effective or 10 days after our common stock is t r a d e d  
on the NASDAQ S m a l l  Cap o r  t h e  American Stock Exchange or up until the date that 
is 375 days  following t h e  date of purchase. We paid a f i n d e r s  f ee  in the amount 
of $120,000 to Oberon Group, LLC, a limited liability company registered in New 
York, which i s  owned, managed and controlled by Adam Breslawsky, in connection 
with t h e  sale. We relied upon the exemption f rom registration provided by 
Section 4 ( 2 )  of the Securities A c t  of 1933. We believed Section 4 ( 2 )  was 
available because: 

i. the o f f e r  and sale did n o t  i n v o l v e  a public offering; 

ii. a11 certificates were marked with restrictive legends; 

iii. each i n v e s t o r  represented they were sophisticated enough to 
evaluate the merits of the investment. 

On February 11, 2 0 0 4 ,  we sold 3,334 restricted shares of our common s tock ,  3,334 
Warrants A, and 3,334 War ran t s  B to Joshua L o b e l  in exchange for $10,000. Each 
Warrant A is exercisable into one share of common s t o c k  at an exercise price of 
$5.50 per s h a r e .  Each Warrant 3 is exercisable into one s h a r e  of common stock at 
an e x e r c i s e  price o f  $ 3 . 5 0  per sha re .  We agreed to register the 3,334 shares of 
common stock, the 3,334 shares u n d e r l y i n g  the Warrants A and the 3,334 shares 
underlying the Warrants B. The Warrants A are exercisable at any time before 
February 11, 2009. The Warrants B are exercisable u n t i l  the earlier of 10 days 
a f t e r  this registration statement is effective or 10 days after our common s t o c k  
is t raded  on the NASDAQ Small Cap or t h e  American S t o c k  Exchange or up until t h e  
date that is 375 days following t h e  d a t e  of purchase. We paid a finders fee in 
the amount of $800 in connection with the sale. We relied upon t h e  exemption 
from registration provided by Section 4 ( 2 )  of the Securities A c t  of 1933. We 
believed Section 4 (2) was available because: 

i. the o f f e r  and sale did not  i n v o l v e  a public offering; 

ii. all certificates were marked w i t h  restrictive legends;  

iii. each investor represented t h e y  were sophisticated enough to 
evaluate the merits of the investment; and 



iv. Joshua  Lobel had a preexisting relationship with Guy Nissenson, our 
Principal Execut ive Officer and President. 

On February 11, 2 0 0 4 ,  w e  s o l d  8 ,334  r e s t r i c t e d  shares of our  common s t o c k ,  8,334 
Warrants A, and 8,334 Warrants  B to Joshua Kazam in exchange f o r  $25,000. Each 
Warrant A is exercisable i n t o  one share  of common s t o c k  at an exercise price of 
$5.50 per share. Each Warrant E is exercisable into one s h a r e  of common stock at 
an exercise price of $3.50 per share. We agreed to register the 8,334 shares of 
common s tock ,  the 8,334 shares underlying the Warrants A and the 8,334 shares 
underlying the Warrants B. The Warrants A are exercisable at any time before  
F e b r u a r y  11, 2009. The Warrants B are exercisable until the earlier of 10 days 
a f t e r  this registration statement is effective or 10 days after our common s t o c k  
is traded on the NASDAQ Small Cap or t h e  American Stock Exchange or up until t h e  
date that is 375 days  following the d a t e  of purchase. W e  relied upon the 
exemption f rom registration provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 
1933. We believed Section 4(2) was available because: 
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i. the o f f e r  and sale did not involve a public o f i e r i n g ;  

ii. all certificates were marked with restrictive legends;  

iii. each investor represented they were sophisticated enough to 
evaluate the merits of the investment; and 

iv. Joshua Kazam had a preexisting relationship with Guy Nissenson, our 
Principal Executive O f f i c e r  and President. 

On Februa ry  12 ,  2004, we sold 20,000 restricted shares of our common stock, 
20,000 Warrants A, and 20,000 Warrants B to The Oberon Group, LLC, a limited 
liability company registered i n  New Y o r k ,  which is owned, managed and controlled 
by Adam Breslawsky, in exchange f o r  $60,000. Each Warrant A is exercisable into 
one share of common stock at an  exe rc i se  price of $5.50 per s h a r e .  Each Warrant 
B is exercisable into one share of common stock at an exercise price of $3.50 
per sha re .  We agreed to r eg i s t e r  the 20,000 shares of common s t o c k ,  the 20,000 
shares underlying the Warrants A and the 20,000 shares underlying t h e  War ran t s  
€3. The Warrants A are exercisable at any t i m e  before February 1 2 ,  2009. The 
Warrants B are exercisable until the earlier of 10 days  after this registration 
statement is effective or 10 days after OUT common stock is traded on the NASDAQ 
S m a l l  Cap or the American Stock  Exchange or up until t h e  date t h a t  is 375 days 
following the date of purchase. We r e l i e d  upon the exemption from registration 
provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933. We believed Section 4(2) 
was available because: 

i. the offer and s a l e  did n o t  involve a public o f f e r i n g ;  

ii. all certificates were marked with restrictive l egends ;  

iii. each investor represented they were s o p h i s t i c a t e d  enough t o  
evaluate the merits of the investment; and 

iv. the Oberon Group, LLC had a preexisting relationship with  Guy 
Nissenson, o u r  Principal Executive O f f i c e r  and President. 

D u r i n g  February 2004, we granted  50,000 Warrants A to The Oberon Group, L L C . ,  a 
limited liability company registered in New Y o r k ,  in exchange f o r  services 
rendered to us. Each Warrant A is exercisable i n t o  one share of common stock at 
an exercise pr i ce  of $5.50 per share. We agreed to register the 50,000 shares of 
common stock underlying the Warrants A. The Warrants A a r e  exercisable at any 
time before  Februa ry  2009. We relied upon the exemption from registration 
provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities A c t  of 1933. We believed Section 4(2) 
was available because: 



i. the offer and sale did n o t  involve a public o f f e r i n g ;  

ii. all certificates were marked w i t h  restrictive l egends ;  

iii. each investor represented they were sophisticated enough to 
evaluate the merits of the investment; and 

iv. the Oberon Group had a preexisting relationship w i t h  Guy Nissenson, 
our Principal Executive Officer and President. 
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ITEM 6. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATION. 

The following discussion provides information that we believe is relevant to our 
financial condition and results of operations and should be read  in conjunction 
with our financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in t h i s  Form 
10-KSB. This discussion contains forward-looking statements based on OUT c u r r e n t  
expectations, assumptions, and estimates. The w o r d s  or phrases "believe, I' 

"expec t ,  'I "may, "anticipates," or similar expressions are intended to identify 
"forward-looking statements.'' Actual results could differ materially from t h o s e  
projected in t h e  forward-looking statements as a r e s u l t  of a number of r i s k s  and 
uncertainties pertaining to our business. The terms " w e ,  It our"  o r  1 r ~ ~ 1 7  are used 
in this discussion refer to Xfone, I n c .  Statements made herein are as of t h e  
date of t h e  filing of this Form 10-KSB with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission and should not be relied upon as of any subsequent date. Unless 
otherwise required by applicable law, we do not undertake, and we specifically 
disclaim any obligation, t o  update any forward-looking statements to r e f l ec t  
occurrences, developments, unanticipated events or circumstances a f t e r  the da te  
of such statement. 
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DISCUSSION 

OVERVIEW. 

We are a 
Swiftnet, 

AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

holding company that operates entirely through our subsidiary, 
Ltd., a United Kingdom based telecommunication service provider and 

international licensed telecommunication carrier. As of J u n e  3, 2004, Swiftnet, 
Ltd. is and has been our source of income. Through Swiftnet, we s e l l  and develop 
telecommunication services, including telephony, f a x  messages, calling cards, 
and Internet driven applications and mainly in the United Kingdom and Europe. In 
addition, Swiftnet provides services and telecom solutions to resellers and  
p a r t n e r s  worldwide. 

On October 4, 2000, we acquired Swiftnet which had a business plan to provide 
comprehensive telecommunication services and products by integrating new and o l d  
products, services and i d e a s  through one website. Swiftnet was incorporated in 
1991 under  the l aws  of the United Kingdom. Until 1999, the main revenues f o r  
Swiftnet were derived from messaging and fax broadcast services. During the y e a r  
2000, Swiftnet shifted i t s  business focus  and our focus  has remained on 
telephony voice services offering comprehensive support packages to resellers 
and new services. Utilizing automation and proprietary software packages ,  
Swiftnet's strategy is to grow without t h e  need of heavy investments and with 
lower  expenses f o r  operations and registration of new customers. 

Approximately 90% of o u r  revenues are der ived  from our customers located in t h e  
United Kingdom. Our integrated revenue approach led to revenue from each source 
as described below and is partially driven by the activities of other revenue 
sources. Our revenues a r e  dependent upon the following f a c t o r s :  



Price competition in telephone rates; 
Demand f o r  our services; 
Individual economic conditions in our markets 
Our ability to market our services 

We have four major types  of customers: 

0 

o 

Residential - These customers either must d i a l  a special 4 
digit code to access GUT switch or acquire a box that d i a l s  
automatically. 

Commercial - Smaller business are treated t h e  same as 
residential customers. Larger businesses’ PBX (Telephony 
system) units are programmed to d i a l  the 4 digit code 
automatically. 
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0 

0 

Governmental 
World Economic Forum, the Argentine Embassy and the Israeli 
Embassy. 

agencies - Includts t h e  United Nations 

Resellers, such as WorldNet - We provide them with 
our telephone and messaging services for a wholesale price, 
calling cards are treated by resellers . For WorldNet we also 
provide  t h e  billing system. 

Our revenues are derived from the following: 

0 

0 

55% from o u r  telephone minute billing p l u s  messaging 
services, including facsimile, nodal, and e-mail 
services. 

7% from our mobile phone services. 

38% from calling cards. 

The breakdown of our revenues is reflected in the table below: 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 
Amounts in UK sterling 

<S> 
Commercial and Residential 
Customers 
Story Telecom 
Government agencies 
Resel ler s 

Totals-  

</TA3LE> 

related 

2 , 9 8 1 , 8 0 2 . 0 0  

5,663.00 
1,009,317.00 

36,1517.00 
2,715,22 

141,958.00 66,65 
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<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 
Converted into US dollars for convenience 



Because both have similar economic characteristics, such as prices that we 
charge and t h e  nature of the services, we have combined residential and 
commercial customers as one segment. 

Financial Information - Percentage of Revenues  

Revenues 
C o s t  of Revenues 
Gross  Profit 
Operating Expenses: 
Research and Development 
Marketing and S e l l i n g  
Genera l  and Administrative 
Total Operating Expenses 
Income before Taxes 
Net Income 

100.00% 

3 9 . 2 %  41.34% 3 8 . 7 1 %  35.10% 

100.0% 100.00% 100.00% 
-60.8 -58.66% -61.29% -64.90% 

-0.6% - 0 -  86% -1.16% -2.15% 
-15.0% - 8 . 5 6 %  -8.24% -8.29% 
-14 * 5% - 2 3 . 4 8 %  -20.46% -17.45% 
-30.0% -32.90% - 2 9 . 8 6 %  -27.89% 

8.6% 8 . 3 9 %  7 . 7 2 %  6.34% 
5.8% 6.44% 5 .48% 5.13% 
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In April 2004, we plan on i n t r o d u c i n g  our Broadband Internet connection and 
Wholesale Line Rental services; however, w e  do n o t  expect our  revenues to be 
materially impacted with the i n t r o d u c t i o n  of t h e s e  services until 2005, if e v e r .  

Years  ended December 31,  2003 and 2002 

The US D o l l a r s  amounts for 2003 and 2002 are presented h e r e i n  at the then 
current rate of ( p o u n d ) l  to $1.78. 

Consolidated Statement of Operations 

Revenues. Revenues f o r  the year ended December 31, 2003 i n c r e a s e d  95% to 
(pound) 7,282,181 ($12,962,282) from ( p o u n d ) 3 , 7 4 1 , 4 3 6  for the s a m e  
p e r i o d  i n  2002: The increase i n  our Revenues is primarily attributable to the 
revenues that derive from the usage of c a l l i n g  ca rds  s o l d  by o u r  affiliate, 
Story Telecom. All traffic genera ted  by the Story Telecom calling cards is 
delivered t h rough  our systems. The following t a b l e  reflects a breakdown of  our  
Revenues according t o  cost of revenues characteristics and major resellers: 

<TABLE> 
<CAP T I ON > 

<S> 
Regular telephony voice service 
and others: 
Story Telecom 
Wor l d n e t  

2003 
<c> 

(pound) 4,015,448 ($8,129,171) 
(pound) 2,715,231 ($4,833,111) 

(pound)  551,502 ( $ 9 8 1 , 6 7 3 )  

2002 
<C> 

(pound) 3 , 7 3 7 , 7 2 0  
(pound) 3,716 
(pound) 567,694 



T o t a l  Zevenues 
</TABLE> 

(pound) 7,282,181 ($12, 962,282) (pound)  3,741,436 

S t o r y  Telecom s t a r t e d  i t s  operations i n  September 2002 and  contributed o n l y  
(pound)3,716 during fiscal year 2002. The 22% growth in the regular t e l e p h o n y  
services is mainly attributable to an increase of approximately 450 customers in 
f i s c a l  year 2003. 

For the y e a r  ended December 31, ZOO? approximately 4.4% of our revenues were 
g e n e r a t e d  by o u r  affiliated entity, Auracall, as cornpared w i t h  3 . 2 %  for the year 
ended December 31, 2 0 0 2 .  

Our revenues attributable to our affiliated S t o r y  Telecom amounted t o  37% of our 
revenues during the y e a r  ended December 31, 2003 as compared w i t h  0.1% for t h e  
year ended December 31, 2002. This increase is due to Story Telecom starting its 
operations at the end of 2002. 
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In the y e a r  ended December 31, 2003, the percentage of our revenues is derived 
from the fo l lowing:  

0 

0 

0 

55% from our  telephone m i n u t e  billing plus messaging services, 
including facsimile, nodal, and e-mail related services. 

7 %  f rorn our  mobile phone 

38% from calling cards. 

services. 

We believe t h a t  during the year 2004 same type of services and customers will 
continue to g e n e r a t e  most of our Revenues. We w i l l  offer some new s e r v i c e s  and 
billing alternatives t o  s t r o n g e r  t h e  connection w i t h  our registered customers 
and t o  enable easy usage of our services to non reg is te red  users .  Our agreement 
with resellers can be terminated within a relatively s h o r t  n o t i c e  of 7-60 days. 
Our largest non affiliated r e s e l l e r  is Worldnet that g e n e r a t e d  approximately 6% 
o f  our Revenues in 2003, Worldnet can terminate the agreement with a 7 days 
n o t i c e ,  which would adversely affect o u r  Revenues. W e  have approximately 20 
additional active resellers, none of which generated more t h a t  3% of o u r  annual 
revenues. W e  anticipate that Worldnet w i l l  continue to contribute approximately 
the same amount of UK Pounds to o u r  Revenues. 

Cost of Revenues. Cost of revenues consists p r i m a r i l y  of traffic t i m e  purchased 
from telephone companies and other related charges. Cost of r evenues  increased 
101% to (pound)4,427,939 ($7,881,731) f o r  the year ended December 31, 2 0 0 3 ,  from 
(pound) 2 , 1 9 4 , 7 9 2  for t h e  y e a r  ended December 31, 2002, representing 
60.8% and 58.7% o f  the total revenues for the y e a r  ended December 31, 2003 and 
December 31, 2002, respectively. The increase in the cost of revenues as a 
percentage of revenues is a t t r i b u t a b l e  to the increase of our revenues t h a t  
derive from the S t o r y  Telecom project that currently focuses on Calling Cards 
services. The S t o r y  Telecom Project, which accounts for approximately 37% of our 
Revenues i n  t h e  yeas ended December 31, 2003 and less than 1% in the year  ended 
December 31, 2002, our cost of revenues as a percentage of revenues in the S t o r y  
Telecom p r o j e c t  is approximately 9 4 %  and f o r  Worldnet is 55%, while the c o s t  of 
revenues as a percentage of the rest  of o u r  revenues was 39% f o r  the y e a r  ended 
December 31, 2003 and 58.6% €or the year ended December 31, 2002. This decrease 
of the c o s t  of revenues as a percentage of revenues f o r  non S t o r y  Telecorn 
r e l a t e d  revenues i s  m a i n l y  attributable to lower  prices negotiated with our new 
and old suppliers and to the f a c t  t h a t  we haven't reduced t h e  prices for our 
s e r v i c e s  p r o p o r t i o n a l l y .  

Cost of revenues breakdown: 
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<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

<S> <C> 
Regular Telephony Services and others 
Story Telecom 
Worldnet 
Total: 
</TABLE> 

2003 

1,563,293 ($2,782,662) 
2,561,320 ($4,559,150) 

3 0 3 , 3 2 6  ($539,920) 
(pound) 4,427, 939  ($7,881,731) 

2002 

2,191,287 
3,505 

(pound) 2,194,792 

<e> 

(a) 

(a) We do not have the cost of revenues r e l a t e d  t o  Worldnet f o r  the year  ended 
December 31, 2002. 

Cost of Revenues attributable to our affiliated entity, A u r a c a l l ,  Ltd. were 
approximately 2.8% of the total cost of revenues for the year ended December 31, 
2 0 0 3  as compared with approximately 1.9% f o r  t h e  year ended December 31, 2002.  

Cost of revenues attributable to Story Telecom accounted f o r  58% of  our total 
c o s t  of revenues a s  compared with 0 . 1 5 %  f o r  the y e a r  ended December 31, 2002. 
This increase is attributable t o  the growth in the revenues related to S t o r y  
Telecom. 

Should Story Telecom calling c a r d s  related revenues o r  Worldnet generated 
revenues grow faster than our o t h e r  business segments, o u r  Cost of Revenues a s  a 
percentage o f  Revenues will continue to increase. If m a r k e t  conditions, such as 
lower prices proposed by competitors in the market, forces us to lower the 
pr ices  that w e  charge our customers, our cost of revenues as percentage of 
revenues will i nc rease .  

Gross Profit. Gross p r o f i t  is total revenues less cost of revenues. Gross p r o f i t  
excludes general corporate expenses, finance expenses and income t a x .  For t h e  
year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, gross profit was 
(pound) 2,854,242 ($5,080,551) and (pound) 1,546,644 which represents 
an 85% (105% in USD) increase. The gross profit as a percentage of revenues 
decreased to 39.2% for the year ended December 31 2003, from 41.3% for the year 
ended December 31, 2002. 

Research and Development. Research and development expenses were (pound)44,553 
($79,304) and (pound)32,000 for t h e  y e a r  ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, 
respectively. Which Represents 0.6% and 1% of revenues for the years ended 
December 31, 2003 and 2002, for the same periods, respectively. These expenses 
consist of labor costs of our research and development manager and other r e l a t e d  
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costs. Main developments relate to t h e  development of  the Xfone web site and its 
interconnections, the upgrade of so f tware  for our telephone platforms, billing 
systems, messaging services and the r e s e l l e r s  suppor t  package. 

Marketing and Selling Expenses. Marketing and selling expenses increased t o  
(pound)  1,091,012 ($1,942,001) from (pound) 320,418 €or the  year ended December 
31, 2003 and 2 0 0 2 ,  respectively. Marketing and s e l l i n g  expenses as percentage of 
revenues were 15% and 8.6% f o r  the year ended December 31, 2 0 0 3  and 2002, 
respectively. The increase in marketing expenses is attributable to t h e  
increasing revenues derived from commission related activities, i n c l u d i n g  
commissions for agents that promote, through our customer British Telecom,  the 
usage of non geographical numbers similar to 1-800 or 1-900 with no specific 
geographical p lace .  

For  the year ended December 31, 2003 we p a i d  commissions to our affiliated 
company Auracall in the amount of UKP165,389 ($294,392) that represent 17% of 
the total commissions p a i d  d u r i n g  the year ended December 31, 2003. For year 
ended December 31, 2002 commissions paid to Auracall represented 42% of t o t a l  
commissions. The decrease in t h e  percentage  of total commissions is attributable 



t o  growth i n  commission related Revenues that a r e  related to Auracall. 

G e n s r a l  and Administrative Expenses. General and a d m i n i s t r a t i v e  expenses 
increased by  (pound)173,685 ($309,161) t o  (pound) 1,052,310 ( $ 1 , 8 7 3 , 1 1 2 )  f o r  t h e  
y e a r  ended December 31, 2003 from (pound) 878,624 ($1, 563,951) f r o m  
(pound)878,624 for t h e  year ended December 31, 2 0 0 2 .  A s  a p e r c e n t a g e  of 
revenues, general and a d m i n i s t r a t i v e  expenses d e c r e a s e d  t o  1 4 . 5 %  for the year 
ended December 31, 2 0 0 3  from 23.5% f o r  the yea r  ended December 31, 2002. The 
increase in our Genera l  and Administrative Expenses i s  mainly attributable to: 
(a) an increase of (pound)141,140 ($251,229) i n  t h e  salaries and benefits paid 
to our management and r e l a t e d  employees;  and (b) an  increase of (pound)81,224 
($144,579) in the professional fees related to the growth in our  o p e r a t i o n s ,  our 
status a s  a public company and legal fees .  Our bad debt d e c r e a s e d  by  
(pound)  1 1 7 , 4 5 2  ( $ 2 0 9 , 0 6 4 )  t o  (pound)  1 0 9 , 5 3 2  ( $ 1 9 4 , 9 6 6 )  from (pound)226,984 i n  

t h e  year ended December 31, 2002, the decrease of which is attributable to two 
of our customers h a v i n g  filed f o r  bankruptcy during 2002, which caused  the 
i n c r e a s e d  bad d e b t  f i g u r e s  for December 31, 2002. The decrease in t o t a l  General 
and Administrative expenses as a p e r c e n t a g e  of  revenues i s  mainly attributable 
to: (a) our 95% growth i n  revenues; and (b)  t o  t h e  l e s se r  inc rease  of 20% i n  o u r  
General and A d m i n i s t r a t i v e  expenses, which was achieved from improvements in our 
credit controls, controlling expenses  and t h e  usage  of automation and computers. 
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Financing Expenses. F i n a n c i n g  expenses, n e t ,  increased to (pound)44,284 
( $ 7 8 , 8 2 4 )  f o r  t h e  year ended December 31,  2003 from (pound)12,837 f o r  t h e  year 
ended December 31, 2 0 0 2 .  

Income b e f o r e  Taxes. Income before t a x e s  f o r  the year  ended December 31, 2 0 0 3  
i n c r e a s e d  by 1 0 3 %  t o  (pound) 6 3 7 , 9 0 1  ( $ 1 , 1 3 5 , 4 6 4 )  from (pound) 3 1 3 , 7 9 4  for t h e  
y e a r  ended December 31, 2 0 0 2 .  The i n c r e a s e  of t h e  income before t a x e s  is 
a t t r i b u t a b l e  primarily to t h e  increase of 95% in our revenues. Income before 
t a x e s  a s  a p e r c e n t a g e  of  revenues w a s  8.6% for t h e  year  ended December 31, 2003 
and 8 . 4 %  f o r  t h e  y e a r  ended December 31, 2 0 0 2 .  

Taxes on Income. United Kingdom companies a r e  usually sub jec t  to income tax at 
t h e  c o r p o r a t e  r a t e  of 2 0 % - 3 0 % .  Taxes on income for t h e  year  ended December 31, 
2 0 0 3 ,  amounted to (pound) 216,456 ($385,292) which represents 34% of the income 
before taxes a s  compared w i t h  {pound)72 ,813  f o r  t h e  year ended December 31, 2002 
t h a t  represents 2 3 %  of t h e  income before t a x e s .  The i n c r e a s e  i n  the p e r c e n t a g e  
of t a x e s  on such income before t axes  is a t , t r i b u t a b l e  p r i m a r i l y  t o  t h e  higher tax 
b r a c k e t s  t h a t  w e  a r e - d u e  t o  pay  for o u r  income in the year ended December 31, 
2003 and the lower Net o p e r a t i n g  loss c a r r y  forward i n  t h e  year ended December 
31, 2 0 0 3 .  

N e t  Income. Net income f o r  t h e  y e a r  ended December 31, 2 0 0 3  increased by 7 5 %  to 
(pound)421,445 ($750,173) as compared to {pound)240,981 f o r  the year  ended 
December 31, 2 0 0 2 .  Net income as percentage of revenues were 5 . 8 %  and 6.4% f o r  
t h e  years ended December 31, 2003 and 2 0 0 2  respectively. 

Earning per share 

The earning per s h a r e  o f  common stock for the year ended December 31, 2 0 0 3  was 
(pound) 0 . 0 8  {SO. 1 5 )  for the basic weighted a v e r a g e  5,089,286 Shares and 
(pound)0 .08  ($0.13) for diluted number of s h a r e s ,  i n c l u d i n g  the o p t i o n s  t o  buy 
5 0 0 , 0 0 0  shares. Earning p e r  s h a r e  € o r  the year  ended December 31, 2002 was 
(pound)0.05 f o r  t h e  bas i c  we igh ted  average 5 , 0 3 0 , 4 4 4  shares and 
(pound)0 .04  f o r  the diluted 5,530,444 s h a r e s .  

Ba lance  Sheet 

Current Assets. Current assets amounted to (pound) 2 ,635,846 ( $ 4 , 6 9 1 , 8 0 6 )  as  of 
December 30, 2003 as compared to (pound) 1 , 6 5 8 , 8 3 5  a s  of December 31, 2 0 0 2 .  T h i s  
increase in our current a s s e t s  is mainly attributable to the growth of 



(pound)  303 ,095  ( $ 5 3 9 , 5 0 9 )  i n  the account receivables and to the (pound) 501,200 
growth in o u r  cash positions. 
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As of December 31, 2003 34% of our  account receivables are attributable to our 
a f f i l i a t e d  company, S t o r y  Telecom a s  compared with less than 1% for December 31, 
2002. The 34% of o u r  r e c e i v a b l e s  i s  due t o  the fact t h a t  37% of our revenues are 
generated by Story Telecom. 

W e  p r o v i d e d  Story Telecom a shareholder loan t h a t  balanced UKP15,960 ( $ 2 8 , 4 0 8 )  
and UKP14,725 ($26,210) f o r  years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 respectively. 

A s  of December 31, 2 0 0 3  our Affiliated Auracall owed us UKP4,533 ($8,068) as 
compared with UKP16,196 ($28,829) f o r  December 31, 2002, this debt is due  to a 
shareholders loan provided  t o  Auracall for o p e r a t i o n s .  

Loan to Shareholder. Loan to the shareholder, Mr. Keinan o u r  Chairman of the 
Board of Directors amounted to {pound)286,736 ($510,390) as of December 31, 
2003, as compared to (pound)303,130 as of December 31, 2002. The decrease 
represents a repayment of (pound)16,394 ($29,181). There was an i n c r e a s e  i n  t h e  
loan amount t h a t  occurred a f t e r  September 30, 2 0 0 3  which was due to an expense 
advance p r o v i d e d  t o  M r .  Keinan, which was l a t e r  expensed o u t  of  t h a t  account 
when M r .  Keinan submitted his expense report to us. We no l o n g e r  permit expense 
advances to be temporarily assigned to the Loan to Shareholder  account. Out of 
t h e  total amount, (pound)54,070 are classified as current assets as Mr. Keinan 
agreed w i t h  t h e  company t o  repay t h i s  amount d u r i n g  f i s c a l  y e a r  2 0 0 4 .  On March 
2004 Mr. Keinan s i g n e d  a n o t e  to repay h i s  l o a n  in four i n s t a l l m e n t s :  

2004 (pound) 54,070 ( $ 9 6 , 2 4 5 )  
2005 (pound) 116,333 ( $ 2 0 7 , 0 7 3 )  
2006 (pound) 1 1 6 , 3 3 3  ($207,073) 

Fixed assets. Fixed assets a f t e r  accumulated depreciation increased to 
(pound)421,715 ( $ 7 5 0 , 6 5 2 )  as  of December 31, 2003 a s  compared w i t h  
(pound)252,894 a s  of  December 31, 2002. Growth in f i x  a s s e t s  r e f l ec t s  
investments in equipment and systems to enhance our  e f f i c i e n c y  and t h r o u g h p u t .  

Current Liabilities. As of December 31, 2003 ,  c u r r e n t  l i a b i l i t i e s  increased t o  
(pound) 2,174,283 ($3 ,870 ,224)  as compared w i t h  (pound) 1,462,027 as of December 
31, 2 0 0 2 .  The i n c r e a s e  i n  our  current liabilities r e s u l t s  mainly from an 
i n c r e a s e  of (pound)461,247 ( $ 8 2 1 , 0 2 0 )  in our  t r a d e  payables attributable t o  the 
growth in our revenues. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, t r a d e  payables t o  our  
a f f i l i a t e d  entity, Auracall, L t d . ,  accounted €or 1% of the t o t a l  t r a d e ' p a y a b l e s .  

L i q u i d i t y  and Capital resources December 31 2 0 0 3 .  

Cash as of December 31, 2003 amounted t o  (pound)977,008 ($1 ,739 ,074)  as compared 
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with (pound)471,963 f o r  the yeas  ended December 31, 2002 an i n c r e a s e  of 
(pound)505,045, t h e  increase was g e n e r a t e d  by net cash p r o v i d e d  by operating 
activities. 

Net c a s h  provided by o p e r a t i n g  a c t i v i t i e s  f o r  t h e  Twelve month ended December 
31, 2 0 0 3  was (pound) 719,604 ($1,280,895). The cash prov ided  by o p e r a t i n g  
a c t i v i t i e s  was m a i n l y  attributable to t h e  (pound) 1 8 0 , 4 6 4  i n c r e a s e  in our  net 
income, the (pound) 4 6 1 , 2 4 7  ( $ 8 2 1 , 0 1 9 )  i n c r e a s e  i n  trade payables and 
(pound)183,271 ( $ 3 2 6 , 2 2 2 )  i n c r e a s e  in other trade payables that mainly c o n s i s t s  
Income Taxes. 



During  fiscal year 2 0 0 3  ws used (pound)108,270 ($192,721) for the purchase of 
capital equipment and (pound) 55,862 ($99,434) f o r  the repayment of capital l ea se  
obligations. In the year ended December 31, 2002 w@ used (pound)152,757 
f o r  the purchase of equipment. 

We have l e a s e  commitments to p a y  (pound)78,091 ($139,002) during f i s c a l  y s a r  
2004 and additional (pound)99,488 ($177,089) till the end of 2007. Our capital 
investments a r e  primarily f o r  the purchase of equipment and software for 
services t h a t  we provide or intend to provide. 

In the fiscal year 2004 w e  may procure additional equipment t o  enhance our 
capacity in the UK for the amount of app (pound)100,000 ($178,000). In case that 
we manage to e s t a b l i s h  or acquire  an operation in a new country, we anticipate 
an investment of approximately (pound)600,000 ( S l , O O O , O O O )  in equipment, 
infrastructure and software. 

We s h a l l  continue to finance our operations and f u n d  the current commitments f o r  
capital expenditures mainly f r o m  the cash provided f rom operating activities. 
During January and February 2004 we completed a private placement in which w e  
raised gross proceeds t h a t  amounted to $2,907,711. Net new cash proceeds of the 
Financing, approximately $ 2 . 7  million are expected to be u s e d  for general 
w o r k i n g  capital and/or investment in equipment  and/or for acquisitions and/or 
business development. We a r e  currently looking f o r  possible acquisitions of 
United States companies that provide telecom services pre fe rab ly  of the same 
nature of t h e  current services provided by our subsidiary in the U.K. We are 
also evaluating the establishment of subsidiaries or affiliates in t w o  countries 
to prov ide  Telecom services of the same nature that we provide t h r o u g h  our 
United Kingdom subsidiary, Swiftnet. The establishment of a subsidiary might 
require, in a d d i t i o n  to an investment in equipment and working  capital, bank 
guarantees as required by l o c a l  authorities. We may use  our cash to enable the 
Bank Guaran tee .  
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We be l i eve  that o u r  future cash  flow from operations together with our c u r r e n t  
cash will be s u f f i c i e n t  to finance OUT operation activities through the years 
2004 and 2005. We will consider raising additional capital through a p u b l i c  or 
private placement to fund  possible acquisitions and business development 
activities. 

Impact of Inflation and Currency Fluctuations. 

As of December SI, 2003 our functional currency  remains the U . K .  Pound, we do 
business also with U.S. Doliars. Even when we do business in o t h e r  countries 
rather than the United Kingdom or the United States we sell and  buy in either 
U . K .  Pounds or U . S .  D o l l a r s .  

Most of our revenues and current assets are in British Pounds,  t h e  long-term 
l oan  to a s h a r e h o l d e r  i s  a l l  in U . K .  Pounds. Major part of our cash is in U.S. 
Dollars. 

Our c o s t  of revenues is all in British Pounds, most of o u r  liabilities, 
o p e r a t i n g  and financing expenses are in U . K .  Pounds. The remainder of the 
a s s e t s ,  liabilities, revenues and expenditures are in U . S .  D o l l a r s .  

A devaluation of the U . K .  Pound in relation to the U . S .  Dollar will have the 
ef fec t  of d e c r e a s i n g  t h e  Dollar value of all assets o r ,  liabilities that are in 
U.K. Pounds. 

Conversely, any increase in the value of the U . K .  Pound in r e l a t i o n  to the 
Dollar has the effect of increasing the Dollar value of all U . K .  Pounds a s s e t s  
and t h e  Dollar amounts of any U.K. liabilities and expenses. 

I n f l a t i o n  would affect our operational results if we s h a l l  no t  be able to match 
our Revenues with growing expenses caused by inflation. 



If rate of inflation will cause a raise in salaries or o t h e r  expenses and t h e  
market conditions will not allow us to raise prices proportionally, it will have 
a negative ef fec t  on the value of our a s s e t s  and on our potential profitability. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of 
Xfone, Inc. and Subsidiary 
- _ c _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ I _ _ _ _  

We have audited t h e  accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Xfone, I n c ,  and 
Subsidiary as of December 31, 2003 the relaTed consolidated statements of 
operations, changes in shareholders' e q u i t y  and cash flows f o r  each of the two 
years then ended. These financial statements are t h e  responsibility of the 
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in t h e  U n i t e d  S t a t e s  of America. Those standards r equ i r e  that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 



statements a r e  free of material misstatement. PA a u d i t  i n c l u d e s  examining, on a 
t e s t  basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in t h e  f i n a n c i a l  
statements. An audit a l s o  includes assessing t h e  accounting principles used  in 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the o v e r a l l  
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide  a 
reasonable b a s i s  f o r  our opinion. 

In our o p i n i o n ,  s u c h  financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, t h e  consolidated financial position of Xfone, Inc .  and Subsidiary as 
of December 31, 2003 and t h e  resu l t s  of t h e i r  operations and t h e i r  c a s h  flows 
for e a c h  of t h e  two years in the period ended December 31, 2 0 0 3  in conformity 
with accounting principles g e n e r a l l y  accepted in the United S t a t e s  of America. 

CHAIFETZ & SCKREIBER, P-C. 
21 Harbor Park Drive N. 
Port Washington, NY 11050 
March 31, 2004 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

<S> 
CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash 
Accounts r e c e i v a b l e ,  net 
Prepaid expenses, other r e c e i v a b l e s  and deposits 

<C> 

Loan to shareholder  

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

Loan to shareholder  

FIXED ASSETS 
c o s t  
Less - accumulated depreciation 

TOTAL FIXED ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 
</TABLE> 

(pound) 977,008 
1,263,824 

54,070 
340, 944 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  
(pound) 3,290,227 

$ 1,739,074 
2,249,607 

606,880 
96,245 

_____*----- 

4,691,806 
_ _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ - L  

414 , 145 

996,419 
( 2 4 5 , 7 6 7 )  

750,652 

$5,856,603 

_ _ _ _ _ - - _ - - -  

_ _ _ - _ _ _ - - _ -  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these c o n s o l i d a t e d  financial 
statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

<TAELE> 
<CAPTION> 

<S> 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Trade payables 
Dividend p a y a b l e  
Notes p a y a b l e  - c u r r e n t  portion 
Other liabilities and accrued expenses 
Obligations under capital leases - c u r r e n t  portion 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Deferred t a x e s  
No tes  payable  
Obligation under capital leases 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

(pound) 1 , 637 , 430 
86,270 

379,809 
66,774 

2,174,203 
36, 109 
3,166 

8 6 , 5 6 3  

2,300,121 

4,000 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - - - - - - -  

__-______c-- I - - -  

I- 

-- 

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Pre fe r r ed  stock - 50,000,000 shares authorized, 
none issued 

Common s t o c k :  
25,000,000 shares authorized, (pound).0006896 par  value; 
5 , 1 1 7 , 6 8 4  issued and outstanding 
Contributions in excess of shares  
Retained e a r n i n g s  

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

TOTAL LIABILITIES A N D  SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

3,530 
193,514 
793,062 

990,106 
_---_---_---I--- 

</TABLE> 

The accompanying notes a r e  an i n t e g r a l  p a r t  of these c o n s o l i d a t e d  financial 
statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

<TABLE > 
<CAPTION> 



OPERATING EXPENSES : 
Research and development 
Marketing and selling 
General  and administrative 

T o t a l  o p e r a t i n g  expenses 

Operating profit 
Financing  expenses - n e t  
0 t h e  r income 

Income b e f o r e  t a x e s  
Taxes on income 

Net income 

EARNINGS PER SHARE: 
Basic 

D i l u t e d  

<C> 
1 282,181 (pound) 3,741,436 

(44,553) 
(1,091,012) 
(1,052,310) 

( 2 , 1 8 7 , 8 7 5 )  
_ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ - _ - _ _  

- _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ - _ _ _ _  

666,367 
(44,283) 
15,817 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ - - - - - - -  
637,901 
(216,456) 

(pound) 0.08 

(pound) 0.08 
______-____ ____-____-- 

----======= 

(pound) 0.05 

(pound) 0.04 
__-_______- ________-_- 

2003 

Convenient 
_____-- - - -  

_ _ _ _ _ _ - - - -  
<C> 
.$ 12,962 

( 7 5  
(1,942 
(1,872 

___-_--- 
( 3 , 8 9 4  

</TABLE> 

T h e  accompanying notes are an i n t e g r a l  part of t h e s e  consolidated financial 
s t a t e m e n t s .  
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

<s> 
Balance at J a n u a r y  1, 2002 
Issuance of shares 
Net income 
Div idend  

Balance at December 31, 2002 

NUMBER OF 
ORDINARY 
SKARES 

<C> 
5,000,000 

60,889 
-- 

<C> 
(pound) 3 , 4 4 8  

4 2  

CONTRIBUTIONS 
IN EXCESS OF 

PAR VALUE 
___-__*------ 

<C> 
(pound) 140,903 

39,316 -- 

__-_--_---- 
(pound)  3,490 

<C> 
( PC 



Balance at J a n u a r y  1, 2003 
Issuanct of s h a r e s  
Net income 
Dividend 

Balance at December 31, 2003 

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO U. S . 
Balance a t  J a n u a r y  1, 2003 
Issuance of shares  
Net income 
Dividend 
Balance at December 31, 2003 

$ : 

5,Q60, 859 
56,795 

_-  

5 ,  060,889 
5 6 , 7 9 5  

-I 

3,490 180,219 
13,295 40 

-- -- 
-- _ -  

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  -____-_-_-*---  --- 
(pound) 3,530 (pound) 193,514 ( p c  
_____-_____ __--_____I_ ___-___---I--- c__I____I----- --- --- 

</TABLE> 

The accompanying notes are an integral p a r t  of these consolidated financial 
st at ement s . 
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CONSOLIDATED STATElvlENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

<S> 
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
N e t  in come 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 

provided  by operating activities 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Investments 
Purchase of equipment 

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Repayment of long term debt  
Repayment o€  capital lease obligation 
Proceeds from s a l e  of f i x e d  a s s e t s  
Proceeds from issuance of common s t o c k  
Dividend paid 

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Net increase in cash 
Cash, beginning of y e a r  

(pound) 421,445 (pound)240, 981 

(4,001) 
(55,862) 
3,500 

13,335 
(63,261) 

(106,289) 

505,045 
471,963 

(34, 921) 
-- 
-- 

10,563 

$ 



C a s h ,  at end of year 

Supplement disclosures of cash flow information: 
NET CASH PAID DURING THE YEAR FOR: Income t a x e s  (pound) 14,044 (pound) 41,723 

---------_-_I- ___--_____-__- __________-___ 
Interest (pound) 11,213 (pound) 12,816 

_-__________-_ ___-____--____ _________-____ ____________-_ 

<CAPT I ON> 
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND F I N A N C I N G  ACTIVITIES: 
F o r  the year ended December 31: 

2 0 0 3  2002 

<S> 
Convenience translation i n t o  U . S . $  Acquired equipment under capital lease obligation (pound)  86,316 (pound) 26,002 

28,775 Issuance of 45,014 s h a r e s  of common s t o c k  for -- 
Compensation for professional services 

</TABLE> 

The accompanying notes are an i n t e g r a l  p a r t  of these conso l ida t ed  financial 
statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Cant.) 

(1) ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE NET INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY O P E R A T I N G  
A C T I V I T I E S :  

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

<S> 
Depreciation 
3ad debt  expense 
S t o c k  issued f o r  professional serv ices  

CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES: 
Increase in accounts receivable 
I n c r e a s e  in o t h e r  receivables 
Decrease (increase) in s h a r e h o l d e r  loans 
Inc rease  i n  trade p a y a b l e s  
Increase i n  other p a y a b l e s  
Increase i n  deferred t a x e s  

YEARS ENDED 

DECEMBER 31, 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - - _ _ - _ -  ___---_--- 

______________________________I  _*_____---  

______X______f_______________I_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - - -  

Convenienc 

2003 2002 2002 

<C> 
(pound) 8 9 , 5 9 2  

109,532 
_- 

(412,627) 
(160,359) 

1 6 , 3 9 4  
461,247 
183,271 
11,109 

<C> 
(pound) 5 8 , 3 0 0  

226,984 
2 8 , 7 7 5  

(460,754) 
(65,570) 
( 2 0 , 7 8 3 )  
214,607 
61,586 
5,000 

(734 
(285 
25 
821 
326 
1: 



Total adjustments 

</TABLE> 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial 
statements. 
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NOTE 1 - 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 

A .  Xfone, Inc. ("Xfone") was incorporated in Nevada, U.S.A. in 
September, 2000 and is a provider of long distance voice and 
data telecommunications services, primarily in the United 
Kingdom. The financial statements consolidate t h e  operations 
of Xfone and Swiftnet, Limited ("Swiftnet"), its wholly owned 
U .K. subsidiary, (collectively the "Company") , 

E. 

C .  

The financial statements of t h e  Company have been prepared in 
Sterling ( " ( p o u n d ) " )  since this is the currency of the prime 
economic environment , the U . K . ,  in which the operations of 
the Company are conducted. Transactions and balances 
denominated in Sterling a r e  presented at their original 
amounts. Transactions and balances in other currencies are 
translated into Sterling in accordance with Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards (lrSFAS1i) No. 52 of the U.S. 
Financial Accounting Standards Board ( " F A S B " ) .  Accordingly, 
items have been translated as follows: 

IJlonetary items - at the exchange rate effective at the balance 
sheet date. 

Revenues and expense items - at the exchange rates in effect 
at the date of recognition of those items. 

Exchange gains and losses f r o m  the aforementioned translation 
are included in financing expenses, net. 

The financial statements have been translated into U.S. 
dollars using t h e  rate of exchange of the U.S. dollar at 
December 31, 2003. The translation was made solely f o r  the 
convenience of the readers. It s h o u l d  be noted that the 
(pound) figures do not necessarily represent the current co 
amounts of the various elements presented and that the 
translated U.S. dollar figures s h o u l d  not be construed as a 
representation that the (pound) currency amounts actually 
represented, or could be converted into, U.S. dollars. The 
representative rate of exchange of the (pound) at December 
2003 was (pound)l = 1.78 U . S . S .  

st 

31, 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT. ) 

NOTE 2 - S I G N I F I C A N T  ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements are prepared in accordance w i t h  generally 
accepted accounting principles in the United States of America. The 
significant accounting policies followed in the p r e p a r a t i o n  of the 
financial statements, app l i ed  on a consistent b a s i s ,  are as follows: 

A. 

B. 

C. 

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of F i n a n c i a l  Statement 
Presentation 

The consolidated f i n a n c i a l  statements have  been prepared in 
conformity w i t h  accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United S t a t e s  of America (GAAP) and include the accounts of the 
Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary. All significant 
inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in 
consolidation. 

Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable are recorded at net realizable value  
consisting of the carrying amount less the allowance for 
uncollectible accounts. 

The Company uses the allowance method to account for 
uncollectible accounts receivable balances. Under the allowance 
method, an estimate of uncollectible customer balances is made 
using factors such as the credit quality of the customer and 
t h e  economic conditions in the market. Accounts are considered 
past due  once t h e  unpaid balance is 90 days or more 
outstanding, unless payment terms are extended. When an accoun t  
balance is past due and attempts have been made to collect t h e  
receivable t h rough  l e g a l  or o t h e r  means, the amount is 
considered uncollectible and is written o f f  against the 
allowance balance. 

At December 31, 2003 accounts receivable had a net balance in 
the amount of (pound)1,263,824, n e t  of an allowance balance of 
(pound) 142,993 . 

Investments 

Investments in companies in which the Company has a 20% to 50% 
interest are carried at cost, a d j u s t e d  f o r  the Company’s 
proportionate share  of their undistributed earnings or losses. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT. ) 

NOTE 2 - S I G N I F I C A N T  ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( C O N T .  ) 



D. 

E. 

F. 

Z qui pme n t 

Equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation is c a l c u l a t e d  by the 
declining balance method over the estimated useful lives of the 
a s s e t s .  Annual rates of depreciation are as f o l l o w s :  

Swi tch ing  equipment 
Machinery and equipment 
Furniture and fixtures 
Motor vehicles 

Revenue Recognition 

Method 
____------------ 
straight line 
r edu c i ng b a1 an c e 
reducing balance 
reducing balance 

Useful L i f e  

10 years 
4 years 
4 years 
4 years  

__--_------ 

The Company's source of revenues results from charges to 
customers for the call minutes they use while on the Company's 
telecommunications system. Such revenues are recognized at the 
time this service is rendered. Amounts prepaid by customers are 
deferred and recorded as a liability and then recorded as 
revenue when the customer utilizes the service. Messaging 
services customers are being charged on a per minute b a s i s ,  per 
fax page or email. Commissions to agents are accounted as 
marketing costs f o r  the Company. 

Management believes that the Company's revenue recognition 
policies a r e  in accordance with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101, "Revenue 
Recognition in Financial Statements" (SAB 101) . 
Reclassification 

Certain reclassification of 2002 amounts have been made to 
conform to the 2003 presentation. 

G. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of f i n a n c i a l  statements in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to 
m a k e  estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the d a t e  of the financial Statements, and 
the reported amounts of revenues and  expenses during the 
reported period. Actual results c o u l d  differ from those 
estimates. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( C O N T . )  

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.) 

H. Earnings Per Share 

Earnings per sha re  are calculated and reported in accordance with 
Statement of F i n a n c i a l  Accounting Standards No. 128, Earnings  Per 
Share ( ' ' E P S " )  ("SFAS 128"). Basic EPS is computed by dividing 



income available t o  common stockholders by the weighted average 
number of common sha res  outstanding for the period. D i l u t e d  EPS 
r e f l e c t s  t h e  potential dilution that could occur if securities or 
other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted 
i n t o  common stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock that 
then shared  in the earnings of the entity. 

I. Income Taxes 

Income taxes are accounted for under Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 109, "Accounting f o r  Income Taxes,' ' which 
is an asset and liability approach t h a t  requires the recognition 
of deferred t a x  assets and liabilities f o r  the expected future tax 
consequences of events that have been recognized in the Company's 
financial statements or t a x  returns. 

J. Stock-3ased Compensation 

The Company accounts for equity-based compensation arrangements in 
accordance w i t h  the provisions of Accounting Principles Board 
("APB") Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to 
Emplo'yees," and r e l a t e d  interpretations, and complies with the 
disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based 
Compensation." A l l  equity-based awards to non-employees are 
accounted for at their fair value in accordance with SFAS No. 123. 
Under APB No. 25, compensation expense is based upon the 
difference, if any, on the date of grant, between the fair v a l u e  
of the Company's s t o c k  and the exercise pr ice .  

K. New Accounting Pronouncements 

In December 2002, t h e  FASB issued SFAS No. 148 "Accounting f o r  
Stock-Based Compensation - "Transition and Disclosure" which 
provides alternative methods of transition f o r  a voluntary change 
to fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee 
compensation. The Company does not have any formal e q u i t y  based 
Compensation arrangements. However, when it does issue equity as 
compensation it continues to account for such transactions in 
accordance with provisions of APB No. 25 as permitted under  the 
provisions of SFAS No. 123 (see item J above). The e f f e c t  of this 
statement is not expected to have a material impact on the 
Company's financial condition, results of operations o r  cash 
flows. 

The FASB issued Interpretation No. 46 (FIN 46), "Consolidation of 
Variable Interest Entities," in January 2003 and amended the 
Interpretation in December 2003. FIN 46 requires an investor with 
a majority of the v a r i a b l e  interests (primary beneficiary) in a 
variable interest entity ( V I E )  to consolidate t h e  entity and also 
requires majority and significant variable interest i n v e s t o r s  t o  
provide certain disclosures. A VIE is an entity in which the 
voting e q u i t y  investors do not have a controlling financial 
interest or the equity investment at r i s k  is insufficient to 
finance the entity's activities without receiving additional 
subordinated financial support from t h e  other parties. 
Development-stage entities that have sufficient equity invested to 
finance the activities they are currently engaged in and entities 
that a r e  businesses, as defined in t h e  Interpretation, are not 
considered VIEs. The provisions of FIN 46 were effective 
immediately for a11 arrangements entered into with new V I E s  
created after January 31, 2003. Intel has  completed a review of 
its investments to determine whether Xfone i s  the primary 
beneficiary of any such VIEs. The review did not identify any VIEs 
that would require consolidation or any significant exposure to 
VIEs that would require disclosure. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CCNT. ) 

NOTE 3 - 

<TABLE> 
<CAPT I ON> 

PREPAID EXPENSES, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS 

Due f r o m  Swiftglobal, Limi ted  
(nonaffiliated e n t i t y )  

O the r  p r e p a i d  expenses 

Due from Story Telecorn L imi t ed  
( a f f i l i a t e d  entity) 

("Story") 

O t h e r s  receivables 

</TABLE> 

NOTE 4 - LOAN TO SHAREHOLDER 

<C> 
(pound) 37,687 

117,650 

15,960 

209,416 

2 8 , 4 0 9  

301,972 

$606,880 
-__------ 

______--- _____---- 

The Company has a non-interest bea r ing  demand l o a n  of (pound)54,070 
due f rom a shareholder. I n  a d d i t i o n ,  t h e  Company h a s  a non-interest 
b e a r i n g  loan of (pound)232,666, due f r o m  s u c h  s h a r e h o l d e r .  Which has  
been classified as noncurrent and is to be repa id  as follows.: 

2004 
2005 
2006 

(pound) 54,070 
116, 333 
116,333 

(pound) 286,736 
- - - - _ - - - - 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.) 

NOTE 5 - FIXED ASSETS 

<TABLE> 
<CAPT I ON> 



COST 
Equipment held under c a p i t a l  lease 
Office furniture and equipment 
Development costs 
Computer equipment 

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION UNDER CAPITAL LEASE 
Equipment held under  c a p i t a l  lease 
Office furniture and equipment 
Development c o s t s  
Computer equipment 

</TABLE> 

6 - INVESTMENTS NOTE 

The Company has inv 
47 1/2% of Auracall 
in the U . K .  Through 
respective net loss 
respectively. Accor 
Story and Auracall 
the Company. 

estments in two bu 
Limited and 40% o 
December 31, 2003 

es have exceeded t 
- d i n g l y ,  such inves 
Limited buy their 

364,577 
2 6 , 5 9 3  
32,060 

136,556 

559,786 
_ _ _ _ _ _ _ - - - -  

______-_--- 
-__-I___--- 

61,869 
9,730 

16,030 
50,442 

138,071 
_ _ _ _ _ _ _ - - - -  

___-____--- _______- --- 

siness ventures of approximately 
f S t o r y ,  b o t h  start up entities 
, these entities cumulative 
he Company's investments therein, 
tments have been reduced to zero.  
telecommunications services from 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( C O N T . )  

NOTE 7 - OTHER LIA3ILITIES A N D  ACCRUED EXPENSES 

<TABLE> 
<CAPT I ON > 

Corpora te  taxes 
Professional fees 
P a y r o l l  and o t h e r  t a x e s  
Due to Auracall Limited (Affiliated entity) 
Others 

c 
Y 

r2 
Y 

<C> 
2 8 9 , 7 7 7  

29,545 
48,452 

2 7 5  
11,760 

3 7 9 , 8 0 9  
_ _ _ _ _ _ - - - - - -  



<CAPTION> 
NOTE 8 - NOTZS PAYABLE 

First National Finance - maturity 2005, annual 

Newcourt - maturity 2005, annual interest rate 
I n t e r e s t  rate 7.16% 

7.16% 

Less: current portion 

Notes  payable - non c u r r e n t  

<C> 

4,000 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( C O N T . )  

NOTE 8 - NOTES PAYABLE (cont.) 

<TABLE> 
<CAP T I ON > 

B. MATURITIES OF NOTES PAYFBLE ARE AS FOLLOWS: 

< /TABLE> 

NOTE 9 - 

December 31 
2004 
2005 

CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS 

(pound) 4,000 
3,166 

Convenienc 
_ _ _ _ _ _ - - - -  

The Company is the lessee of s w i t c h i n g  equipment under capital 
leases e x p i r i n g  in various years t h r o u g h  2007. 
liabilities under capital leases are recorded a t  t h e  lower of t h e  
present v a l v e  of the minimum lease payments or t h e  fair v a l u e  of the 
a s s e t .  The a s s e t s  a r e  d e p r e c i a t e d  over t h e i r  estimated p r o d u c t i v e  
l i v e s .  Depreciation of assets under capital leases is included in 
depreciation expense for 2003. 

The a s s e t s  and 

Minimum f u t u r e  l e a s e  payments under capital leases as of December 
31, 2 0 0 3  €or each of the next four years are: 



Convenienc 
__I-_-_--- 

December 31 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007  

T o t a l  minimum lease payments 
Less: amount representing interest 

Present value of net minimum l ease  payment 

(pound) 7 8 , O  91 
67,987 
15,688 
15,813 

1 7 7  , 579 
(24,242) 

______- I -___d-  

_ _ _ _ _ - _ _ - - _ - - -  
(pound) 153,337 

Interest rates on capitalized l e a s e s  v a r y  up to 9.6%, per annum. 
</TABLE> 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( C O N T . )  

NOTE 10 - INCOME TAXES 

The 
109 
and 
the 
for 
tax 

Company accounts f o r  
SFAS No. 109 r e q u i r  

liabilities for b o t h  
financial statement 
the expected future 
credit carryforward.  

e 

a 
t 

income taxes under the provisions of SFAS 
s the recognition of defer red  t a x  assets 
the expected impact of d i f f e r e n c e s  between 
.nd t a x  basis of a s s e t s  and liabilities, 
.ax b e n e f i t  t o  be der ived  from tax l o s s  and 
The Company does not file consolidated tax 

and 

returns. 

The following table r e f l e c t s  the Company's deferred tax liabilities 
a t  December 31, 2 0 0 3 :  

< TAB LE > 
<cAPT I ON> 

Accelerated t a x  writeoff of fixed a s s e t s  

Deferred tax liability 

< / TAB LE > 

The provision for income t a x e s  d i f f e r s  from the amount computed by 
applying the s t a t u t o r y  income tax rates to income befo re  t a x e s  as 
follows~ 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTI ON> 



Income tax computed at s t a t u t o r y  rate 
Effect of tax a u t h o r i t y  adjustments 
O t h e r  
E f f e c t  of permanent differences (including 
effect of nonconsolidated tax filings) 

Utilization of n e t  operating l o s s  

Provision f o r  income t a x e s  

160,550 
12,435 
1,638 

42,656 6 , 6 6 3  

</TABLE> 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.) 

NOTE 11 - CAPITAL STRUCTURE, STOCK OPTIONS AND DIVIDEND 

Campbeltown Business Limited ("Campbeltown"), an entity owned by 
the Nissenson family i n c l u d i n g  the Company's President and 
Principal Executive Officer, a shareholder, holds options from the 
Company and one of its directors to purchase 500,000 additional 
s h a r e s  of  the Company for the amount of $200,000. This transaction 
can be executed either by the Company issuing new shares, or by the 
director selling his private shares as long as he has an adequate 
amount of shares, as the director will decide. This option will 
expire on December 31, 2005. 

The holders of common s t o c k  a r e  entitled to one vote for each share  
h e l d  of record  on all matters submitted to a vote of the 
stockholders. The common stock has no pre-emptive or conversion 
r i g h t s  or other subscription rights. There are no sinking fund 
provisions applicable to the common stock. 

In 
of 
to 

On 
to 

2002, t h e  Company issued 45,014 shares of common s t o c k  at a value 
(pound)28,775 as compensation for professional services rendered 
the Company. 

August 21, 2003, the Company issued 400,000 and 200,000 options 
acquire shares of its restricted common stock, respectively, to 

its Chairman of the Board and to its President and Principal 
Executive Officer exercisable as at $0.475 per share. Each option 
convertible into one share of common stock. The options are 
cancelable at the sole discretion of the Company f o r  a period of 210 
days from the date of issuance. On March 1, 2004 these options were 
cancelled by the Company. No related Compensation cost was 
recognized by the Company due t o  this unilateral cancellation 
clause. 

On December 30, 2003, the Company declared a dividend of $0.03 per 
s h a r e  , totaling $153,561, to s t o c k h o l d e r s  of record on December 31, 
2003, payable  on Februa ry  16, 2004. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT. ) 

NOTE 11 - CAPITAL STRUCTURE, STOCK O P T I O N S  A N D  D I V I D E N D  (CONTINUED) 

T h e  following r e s t r i c t e d  stock w a s  issued, in U . S .  dollars, to 
WorldNet G1obal.com Limited d u r i n g  2003 f o r  a total of 
(pound)  13,335 a s  follows: 

Month Issued 

January 
Februa ry  
April 
May 
August 
September 

__-__-_----- 
Number of Shares 

5,000 
5 , 6 5 0  

2 0 , 0 0 0  
9,615 

11,750 
4 , 7 8 0  

56,795 

______-_d------- 

_ _ - _ - _ _ -  - 

------=- - __-_-- -- 

Price Per Share 

$0.50 
0.44 
0.25 
0.26 
0.43 
0.52 

--_--_------.--- 
T o t a l  Issue Price 

$2,500 
2,500 
5,000 
2,500 
5,000 
2,500 

$20,000 

________--------- 

_-_I----- 

_______-- _-_____ -- 
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<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

<S> 
Net Income 

3ASIC EPS:  
Income available to common s t o c k h o l d e r s  
E f f e c t  of dilutive securities: 

Opt ions  

DILUTED EPS:  
income available to common stockholders 
</TABLE> 

<C> 
(pound) 421,445 

(pound) 421,445 

(pound) 4 2 1 , 4 4 5  

5 ,089 ,286  

500,000 

5,589,286 

(pound)  C 

(pound) c 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

2 0 c  



SHARES 
( DENOMINATOR) 

PER S 
AMOC 

<C> 
(pound) 240,981 

<C> <S> 
Net Income 

(pound 
BASIC EPS: 
Income available to common stockholders 
E f f e c t  of  dilutive securities: 

5,030,444 (pound) 240,981 

500,000 Options 

5,530,444 (pound)  
DILUTED EPS: 
Income available to common s t o c k h o l d e r s  (pound) 240,981 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT. )  

NOTE 13 - SELECTED STATEMENT OF OPERTITIONS DATA 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

<S> 
A. MARKETING & SELLING: 

A d v e r t i s i n g  
Consultancy 
Commissions 
Others 

$45, 1 
149,4 

1,717, C 
3 0 , :  

(pound) 22,401 
59,372 

174,835 
63,810 

(pound) 320,418 
_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - - - -  

----=E======== 

(pound) 25,365 

964, 623 
17 , 054 

(pound)  1 , 0 9 1 , 0 1 2  

8 3 , 9 7 0  

- _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ - - - -  

_________--__-_- 
L_____L_____--_- 

B. GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE: 
Salaries & b e n e f i t s  
Rent & maintenance 
Communications 
Professional fees 
Bad d e b t s  
Depreciation 
Others 

(pound) 410,024 

4,830 
224,087 
109,532 

130,124 

84,121 

89,592 

(pound) 263,884 
90,916 
11,539 

142,863 
226,984 
58,300 
79,138 



</TABLE> 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.) 

NOTE 13 - SELECTED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA (cont.) 

<TA3LE> 
<CAPTION> 

<S> 
C. 

<C> 
FINANCING EXPENSES I NET : 

Bank charges and interest (pound) 31,013 Interest on c a p i t a l  lease 9,578 
Foreign currency exchange 2,305 
Other  interest and charges 1,387 

-_-_-___.---_- 
(pound) 44 , 2 8 3  

(pound) 1 , 607 
8,476 

21 
2,733 

(pound) 12,837 

$ 5 5 , 2 C  
17/04 
4,lC 
2 , 4 E  

$ 7 8  I 8.2 
_ _ _ _ _ - -  

</TABLE> 
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NOTE 14 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Refer to notes 4 and 11 for additional r e l a t e d  p a r t y  a c t i v i t y .  

<TA3LE> 
<CAPTION> 

Shareholders ’  salaries 

Campbeltown Business Limited.: 

Fees 

<C> 
$262,3 

<C> <c> 
(pound) 147,407 (pound) 63,448 

(pound)  55,000 (pound) 25,000 $97,5 



Consul tancy 
Trade payables 

(pound) 41,237 (pound) 34,372 -- 
(pound)  6 ,  950 

$ 7 3 , 4  
$12,5 

Vision Consultants Limited: Fees (pound) 55,000 (pound) 25,000 $ 9 7 , 2  

Story Telecom Limited : 
Accounts receivable, n e t  (pound) 429,604 (pound)  3,606 $764, G 

Due from re la ted  entities (pound) 15,960 (pound) 14,725 $28,4  

$69,2 -- Conversion expense (pound) 38,930 

Revenues 
Trade payables  

(pound) 2,715,231 (pound) 3,716 
_ -  (pound) 22,771 

Auracall Limited : 
Due from related entities (pound) 4,533 (pound) 16,196 -- 
Revenues (pound) 318,774 

$4,833,1 
$40, 5 

$ 8 ,  C 
$586, C 

Trade payables (pound) 18,040 (pound) 12,362 $ 3 2 , 1  
Commission expense (pound) 171,234 (pound) 73,661 $ 3 0 4 , 7  

</TABLE> 
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NOTE 15 - FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS 

The Company has  annual rent commitments under a non-cancellable 
operating lease of (pound)38,200, which terminates in December 
2012. Rent expense for the two y e a r s  ended December 31, 2003 and 
2 0 0 2 ,  were (pound) 4 9 , 5 0 0  and (pound) 6 9 , 1 0 0 ,  respectively. 

The Company has a performance based incentive agreement with its 
Chairman of t h e  Board and Campbeltown f o r  which sets an amount due 
t o  such person/entity amounting to 1% of the Company's revenues 
exclusive of revenues resulting from Story. 

The Company has an 18 month renewable consulting agreement w i t h  
Campbeltown, which is to expire on November 11, 2004 and is 
expected to be renewed. Under t h i s  agreement Campbeltown agrees to 
provide ( a )  analysis of proposed acquisitions; 
for the Company's telecommunications services in additional 
countries; (c) formulate s t r a t e g i e s  for the Company's future 
growth p l a n s ;  and (d) introduce potential customers to the 
Company's business. The Company is obligated to pay Campbeltown 
(pound)2,000 ($3,560) per month plus an additional performance 
bonus based upon monthly  revenue targets as  follows: 

(b) such m a r k e t s  

<TABLE> 
<CAPT I ON > 

Target Monthly Revenue Monthly Bonus Convenience Trans  
________---__--_l__l-- _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ _  - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _  

<S> <C> <C> 

up to (pound) 125,000 (pound) -- $-- 
Frorn(pound) 125,000 to (pound)  1 5 0 , 0 0 0  (pound) 1 , 2 5 0  $2,225 
From(pound) 150,000 to (pound) 175,000 (pound) 2,500 $4,450 
Over (pound) 175,000 (pound) 2,750 $4, 895 

</TABLE> 



The Company has commission agreements w i t h  various r e s e l l e r s  that 
are  e n t i t l e d  to 1 0 %  of the revenues t h a t  they generate. 

The Company anticipates a n n u a l  maintenance of equipment t o  be 
approximately (pound) 50,000 ( $ 8 9 , 0 0 0 )  . 
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On February 1 2 ,  2 0 0 4 ,  t h e  Company c losed  an o f f e r i n g  of 986 ,737  r e s t r i c t e d  
shares of common s t o c k ,  with 1,136,737 Warrants  A and 9 8 6 , 7 3 7  Warrants B.  Each 
Warrant A, which i s  not  freely t r ans fe rab le ,  e n t i t l e s  the owner t o  purchase one 
share ,  until not l a t e r  than January/February 2009 a t  an exercise p r i c e  of $5.50. 
Each Warrant 3, which is n o t  freely t r a n s f e r a b l e ,  entitles the owner to purchase 
one share, until not l a t e r  t h a n  u n t i l  t h e  earlier of  10 days after this 
registration statement i s  effective o r  10 days a f t e r  o u r  common stock i s  traded 
on the NASDAQ Small Cap or t h e  American Stock Exchange. The War ran t s  B a r e  
exercisable at an exercise price of $ 3 . 5 0  and exp i r e  375 days from t h e  date o f  
purchase  of the attached shares of restricted common stock. The Company sold 
shares with a t t a c h e d  War ran t s  A and  B t o  a t o t a l  of 1 6  persons and 8 entities. 

During January 2 0 0 4 ,  the Company gran ted  f o r  services additional 17,510 
res t r ic ted  shares of its common s t o c k  with 17,510 each of Warrants A and B 
attached. During January and February 2004, t h e  Company gran ted  a t o t a l  of 
additional 150,000 Warrants A for services. 

NOTE 16 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY AND CREDIT R I S K  

Approximately, 3 6 %  and 18% of total 2003 revenues were derived, 
respectively, from two customers and approx ima te ly  1 4 %  and 13% of 
total 2002 revenues w e r e  der ived ,  respectively, from two 
customers. 

Approximately, 12% and 12% of t h e  t o t a l  accounts receivable at 
2003 were due from t w o  customers. 

Approximately, 31%, 24%, 20% and 15% of t h e  Company's purchases 
a r e  from four s u p p l i e r s  for t h e  year ended December 31, 2003 ,  and 
7 5 %  and 19% are f rom two suppliers f o r  t h e  year ended December 31, 
2002. 

The Company may periodically maintain cash balances a t  a 
commercial bank i n  excess of  the Federal. Deposit I n s u r a n c e  
Corporation insurance limit of $100,000. 

NOTE 17 - SEGMENT INFORMATION 

The percentage of t h e  Company's revenues is derived from the 
following segments. The Company's operations were n o t  segmented in 
2002. 

Telephone minute  billing p l u s  messaging s e r v i c e s ,  
i n c l u d i n g  facsimile, nodal, and e-nail related s e r v i c e s  55% 

Mobile phone s e r v i c e s  7% 
Calling cards 38% 

100% 
------ 

____-_ -_---- 



The Company h a s  f o u r  major types of  customers: 

o Residential - These customers either must dial "dial 1 
service" or acquire a box that dials automatically- 

0 

0 

0 

Commercial - Smaller business a r e  t r e a t e d  the same as 
residential customers. Larger businesses' PBX u n i t s  a r e  
programmed. 

Governmental agencies - include the United N a t i o n s  World 
Economic Forum, the Argentine Embassy and the Israeli 
Embassy. 

Resellers, such as WorldNet and Vsat - We provide them with 
our telephone and messaging services. For WorldNet we also 
provide  the billing system. 
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NOTE 17 - SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

Revenues and operating profit: 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

<S> 
Telephone & Messaging 
Mobile 
calling cards 
T o t a l  Revenues 

Direct Operating expenses 
Telephone & Messaging 
Mobile 
calling cards 
Total expenses 

Direct Operating Profit 
Telephone & Messaging 
Mobile 
calling cards 
Total Profits 

Corporate and common operating 
expenses. 
Operating profit 

<C> 
3,996,732 
503,475 

2,781,974 
(pound} 7 , 2 8 2 , 1 8 1  

2,370,941 
416, 918 

2,604,703 
5,392,562 

I, 625,791 
86,557 

(pound) 177,271 
1,889,619 

<C> 

(pound) 3,741,436 

2,369,627 

1,371,809 

<C> 
$7,114,1 

896,l 
4,951, 5 
12,962,2 

4,220,.2 
742,l 

4636,3 
9,598,7 

2,893, 5 
154, C 
315,5 

3 , 3 6 3 2  

< /TABLE> 

Assets 



Tht a s s e t s  of the company are for common usage for all reportable segments. 

F-25 

<PAGE> 

NOTE 18 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF ACQUISITION 

On May 28, 2004, we entered into an Agreement to acquire WS Telecom Inc., a 
Mississippi corporation, through the statutory merger of WS Telecom Inc. w i t h  
and into our wholly owned subsidiary Xfone USA, Inc. For the purposes of the 
acquisition, WS Telecom, Inc. includes i t s  wholly owned subsidiaries eXpeTel 
Communications, Inc. and Gulf Coast Utilities, Inc. The terms and conditions of 
the Agreement provide t h a t :  

3 )  

4) 

5 )  

all of WS Telecom's issued and outstanding capital stock w i l l  be 
acquired and converted into the right to receive from us certain 
shares of our restricted common stock and warrants convertible into 
shares of our common s tock;  

we will issue a number of shares of our restricted common stock with 
an agreed market value of $2,200,000, which will be determined using 
the weighted average price of our common s t o c k  f o r  the ten trading 
days preceding the trading day immediately prior to the date we and 
WS Telecom Inc. enter i n t o  a Management Operating Agreement; 

the weighted average price of o u r  common s t o c k ,  as referred to in 2) 
immediately above, w i l l  in no event  be less t h a n  $3.30 per share or 
g r e a t e r  than $4.30 per share; 

we will issue a number of warrants with a value of $1,300,000, the 
value of which will be calculated as of the date we and WS Telecom 
I n c .  enter into a Management Operating Agreement, assuming 90% 
volatility of the underlying share of common s tock  of the Registrant 
i n  accordance with the Black Scholes option - pricing model; 

each share of MS Telecom, Inc.'s Preferred S t o c k  i s s u e d  and 
outstanding immediately prior to the e f f e c t i v e  t ime of the 
Acquisition will be canceled and extinguished and be converted 
automatically into the right to receive upon surrender of 
certificate(s) representing MS Telecom, Inc.'s Pre fe r r ed  S t o c k ,  as 
f o l l o w s :  ti) an amount of  our stock c o n s i d e r a t i o n  equal to the 
product of our  s t o c k  consideration times 28.6% d i v i d e d  by total of 
MS Telecom, Inc.'s Preferred S t o c k ;  and (ii) an amount of OUT 

warrant consideration equal t o  the product of 1% Telecom, Inc.'s 
warrant consideration times 28.6% divided by t h e  total of MS 
Telecom, Inc. ' s  Preferred S t o c k ;  

each share of MS Telecom, Inc.'s common stock issued and outstanding 
immediately p r i o r  to the effective time of the Acquisition will be 
canceled and  extinguished and be converted automatically i n t o  the 
right to receive upon surrender of certificate(s) representing MS 
Telecom, Inc's common stock, as follows: (i) an amount of our stock 
consideration equal to the product  of the Our s t o c k  consideration 
times 71.4% divided by the total of MS Telecom, Inc.'s common stock; 
and  (ii) an amount of o u r  warrant consideration equal to the product 
of our warrant consideration times 71.4% d iv ided  by the total of MS 
Telecom, Inc.'s common stock; 



7 )  

XFONE 

completion of the Acquisition is subject t o  c e r t a i n  conditions, 
including: (a) approval of the Agreement and t h e  Acquisition by 
shareholders; (b) receipt  of regulatory approvals; and (e) certain 
other customary conditions; and 

concurrent  w i t h  t h e  execution of t h e  Agreement and as material 
inducements  to us and WS Telecom, Inc .  as the acquired company, the 
f o l l o w i n g  agreements will be entered into, the terms of which are  
described below: ( a )  employment agreement between Xfone USA, Inc. 
and Wade Spooner; (b) employment agreement between Xfone USA, I n c .  
and Ted Parsons; and (c) escrow agreement among us, Xfone USA, i n c . ,  
Wade Spooner,  Ted Parsons, and t h e  escrow a g e n t .  

COMMUNICATION LTD. 

On April 15, 2004, we established an I s r a e l  based subsidiary, Xfone 
Communication Ltd. On May 9, 2004, Xfone Communication applied f o r  a license to 
become an international telecom service provider in Israel. On May 16, 2 0 0 4 ,  t h e  
Government of Israel informed Xfone Communication that i t s  application underwent 
preliminary examination and appears to be acceptable. Therefore, on May 18, 
2004, the Government of Israel granted Xfone Communication a Dialing Code 
("018"); nevertheless, t h e  Government of Israel h a s  not yet granted Xfone 
Communication the license. To date, Xfone Communication has no operating 
activity and is not expec ted  to have any operating activity until it will be 
g r a n t e d  the license. 

The Israeli Government Regulations r e q u i r e  t h a t  at l ea s t  26% of an applicant 
company be owned by Israeli citizens who reside in Israel. Xfone Communication 
i s  owned 74% by us and 26% by K.S+N. Communication Inves tmen t s  Ltd., an Israeli 
based company, that is owned: 40% by M r s .  Naama Harish, t h e  wife of Dr. E y a l  
Harish, a member of our Board of Directors, 40% by Dionysos Investments Ltd., a 
company owned by members of the family of Mr. Guy Nissenson, our Chief Executive 
O f f i c e r ,  and 20% by Margo Sport L t d . ,  a company owned by M r .  Giora Spigel and 
his wife. 

In accordance with t h e  Israeli Government Regulations Xfone Communication issued 
a bank guarantee in favor  of the Government of Israel for the amount of 
approximately $2.2 Million. In order to attain the Bank Guarantee , Xfone 
Communication had t o  deposit in Bank Hapoalirn B . M . ,  an Israel based bank, 
approximately $2.2 million and issue a L e t t e r  of Guarantee, unlimited in amount, 
in favor of the bank, guaranteeing all debt and indebtedness of Xfone 
Comunication towards t h e  bank. I f  Xfone Communication will fail to get the 
License  the Bank Guarantee and the Letter of Guarantee will be returned. 

OFFERING 

On February 12, 2004, the Company closed an offering of 986,737 restricted 
shares of common stock, with  1 , 1 3 6 , 7 3 7  Warrants A and 986,737 Warrants B. The 
Company sold 969,237 shares of common stock with  a Warrant A and B attached for 
a g g r e g a t e  p roceeds  of $2,907,700.  Each Warrant A, which i s  n o t  freely 
transferable, entitles the owner to purchase one share, until not later than 
January/February 2009 at an exercise price of $5.50. Each Warrant B, which is 
n o t  freely transferable, entitles t h e  owner to purchase one sha re ,  until n o t  
later than until the earlier of 10 days after this registration statement is 
effective or 10 days  after our  common s t o c k  is traded on the NASDAQ Small  Cap o r  
t h e  American S t o c k  Exchange. The Warrants B are exercisable at an exercise price 
of $3.50 and expire 375 days from the d a t e  of purchase of t h e  a t t a c h e d  shares of 
restricted common stock. The Company s o l d  shares  with attached Warrants A and B 
to a total of 1 6  pe r sons  and 8 entities. During January 2004, t h e  Company 
granted 17,510 r e s t r i c t e d  shares of  its common s t o c k  wi th  17,500 each of 
Warrants A and B a t t a c h e d .  During January and February 2004, the Company granted 
a total of 150,000 Warrants A. 

AGREEMENT WITH PORTFOLIO PR, INC. 



On J a n u a r y  I, 2004, t h e  Company entered i n t o  a cancelable agreement with an 
investment relations firm, P o r t f o l i o  PR, I n c . ,  which is cancelable on a month's 
notice and is renewable annually. This agreement provides a monthly payment of 
$3,500 per  month plus 1,000 shares of the Company's common stock i n c r e a s i n g  t o  
$ 4 , 5 0 0  p l u s  1 , 2 0 0  s h a r e s  per  month of t h e  Company's s t o c k  when i t  becomes listed 
~n NASDAQ. 

I n  conjunction w i t h  t h i s  ag reemen t ,  f r o m  January 2 0 0 4  to A p r i l  2004, the Company 
pa id  Portfolio PR, I n c .  $7,000 but made no stock issuances t o  P o r t f o l i o  PR, Inc. 
I n  a d d i t i o n ,  P o r t f o l i o  PR, I n c .  d i d  n o t  e x e r c i s e  any warrants. 

On April 2 3 ,  2004, the Company cancelled the agreement with Portfolio PR, Inc. 
"for cause" .  In June 2004 ,  P o r t f o l i o  PR,  Inc. agreed t o  receive from t h e  Company 
$ 7 , 2 0 9 . 0 9  i n  cash and 4,000 shares of our common stock as total and final 
consideration and f u r t h e r  agreed that t h e  Company would have no f u r t h e r  
obligation t o  pay i t  any additional cash, shares, warrants, o r  other 
consideration in connection with this agreement. 
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ITEM 8 .  CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE. 

Not A p p l i c a b l e  

ITEM 8A. CONTROLS A N D  PROCEDURES. 

As of December 31, 2 0 0 3 ,  an  evaluation was performed under t h e  s u p e r v i s i o n  and 
with t h e  participation of our management, i n c l u d i n g  our Chief Executive O f f i c e r  
and P r i n c i p a l  F i n a n c i a l  Officer, of the e f f e c t i v e n e s s  of  t h e  d e s i g n  and 
o p e r a t i o n  of o u r  disclosure controls and procedures. Based on t h a t  e v a l u a t i o n ,  
our  management, i n c l u d i n g  o u r  Chief Executive Officer and Principal Financial 
Officer, concluded t h a t  our disclosure controls and procedures were e f f e c t i v e  a s  
of December 31, 2 0 0 3 .  

There have been no s i g n i f i c a n t  changes i n  our internal control o v e r  f i n a n c i a l  
reporting during t h e  fiscal year  ended December 31, 2003 ,  o r  subsequent to 
December 31, 2003, that have materially a f f e c t e d  o r  a r e  reasonably l i k e l y  t o  
materially affect, our  internal control over f i n a n c i a l  reporting. 

PART 111. 

ITEM 9. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, PROMOTERS AND CONTROL PERSONS; COMPLIANCE 
WITH SECTION 16(A) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT. 



Guy Nissenson 29 President, Principal Executive Officer, 
Principal Financial Officer, 
Principal Accounting Officer and One Year (or unt 

Mr. Abraham Keinan h a s  been our Chairman of the Board of Directors since our 
inception. Abraham Keinan founded Swiftnet, Ltd., our subsidiary, in February 
1990. From 1991 to October 2003, lvlr. Keinan was Swiftnet's Managing Director. In 
or about January 2002, Mr. Keinan became a Director of Auracall, Ltd. In 1975, 
Mr. Keinan received a Bachelor of Science Degree in Mechanical Engineering from 
€3en-Gurion'Universityf Beer-Sheeva - Israel. 

Mr. Guy Nissenson has been our President, Chief Executive Officer, Principal 
Accounting Officer, Principal Financial Officer and a Director since our 
inception. Mr. Nissenson joined Swiftnet, L t d .  in October 1999, became a 
director of Swiftnet, Ltd. i n  May 2000, and its Managing Director in October 
2003. In October 2002, Mr. Nissenson became a Director of Story Telecom, Ltd. In 
or about January 2002, Mr. Nissenson became a Director of Auracall, Ltd. He was 
a marketing manager of RADA Electronics Industries in Israel from May 1997 to 
October 1998. Mr. Nissenson was an audit and control officer w i t h  the rank of 
Lieutenant of the Israeli Defense Forces - Central Drafting Base and other posts 
from March 1993 to May 1997. In J u l y  2000, Mr. Nissenson received a Bachelor of 
Science Degree in Business Management from Kings College - University of London. 
In September 2001, Mr. Nissenson received a Master of Business Administration in 
International Business from Royal Holloway at the University of London in 
London, United Kingdom. 
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Dr. Eyal Hasish has been a member of our  Board of Direc tors  since December 19, 
2 0 0 2 .  From 1980 to present, Dr. Harish has been in his own p r i v a t e  practice in 
Israel as a dentist. frior to becoming a dentist, from 1974 to 2980, Dr. Harish 
was an Administration Manager with Consortium Hold ings ,  an Israel based 
communication company. Dr. Harish is the brother-in-law of Mr. Keinan, our 
Chairman of the Board. 

Mr. Shemer Schwartz has been a member of our Board of Directors since December 
19, 2002. From March 2003 to present, Mr. Schwartz has been the co-founder and 
research and development expert of XIV Ltd., a data storage start up company 
located in Tel-Aviv, Israel. From November 2001 to March 2003, Mr. Schwartz ha 
been an Application Team Leader of RE Waves, an Israel based h i g h  technology 
company in the field of wireless communication. From 1996 to 2001, Mr. Schwart 
was a Captain in t h e  Research and Development Center of the I s r a e l i  Defense 
Forces Intelligence. In July 1995, Mr. Schwartz received a B S c  degree in P h y s i  
and Mathematics from the Hebrew University in Jerusalem. In September 2003, Mr 
Schwartz received an MSc degree in Computer science from the Tel-Aviv Universi 
in Tel-Aviv, Israel. 

SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES 

S 

2 

c s  

tY 

Mrs. Bosmat Houston, 41 years of age, h a s  been our Research and Development 
Manager since our inception. She joined Swiftnet, Ltd., in September 1991 as its 
Research and Development Manager. Mrs. Houston received a B a c h e l o r  of Science 
Degree in Computer Science from the Technion - Institution of Technology, Haifa 
- -  Israel in 1986. 



Mr. Bryan Franksr 60 years of age, has  been the Marketing Manager of S w i f t n e t ,  
Ltd's Partner Division s i n c e  April 2001. As our Market ing Manager, he has been 
responsible for recruiting and managing Swiftnet's r e s e l l e r s  and agents. In May 
2 0 0 3 ,  Mr. F r a n k s  became Swiftnet's Director of Sales and Marketing. From April 
1998 to April 2001, Mr. Franks  was employed as a Director of Sales and Marketing 
with Specialist D I Y ,  L t d . ,  an import and distributor of a do i t  y o u r s e l f  
products firm l oca t ed  in Manchester, United Kingdom. 

Other than as identified above, we have no significant employees. 

54 
<PAGE> 

FAMILY RELATIONSHIPS 

Dr. Harish, .one of our directors, is the brother-in-law of Mr. Abraham Keinan, 
our Chairman of the Board. On April 15, 2 0 0 4 ,  w e  established a n  Israel based 
subsidiary, Xfone Communication Ltd. Xfone Communication is owned 74% by us and 
26% by H.S.N. Communication Investments Ltd., an I s r a e l i  based company, that is 
owned: 40% by Mrs. Naama Harish, the w i f e  of Dr. Eyal  Harish. 

On May 5, 2000, Swiftnet, L t d .  entered into an 18-month renewable consulting 
agreement with Campbeltown Business, L t d . ,  a private company incorporated in the 
British V i r g i n  Island which i s  owned by Guy Nissenson, our Principal E x e c u t i v e  
Ufficer/President and Director, a n d  his family. On November 5, 2001 and May 11, 
2003, we renewed this agreement for additional 18 month pe r iods .  Guy Nissenson, 
our Principal Executive Officer/President, has beneficial ownership of 19.99% or 
1,220,336 shares  of our common s tock ,  which consist of  the following: (a) 
720,336 shares of our common s tock  owned by Campbeltown Business L t d . ,  a British 
Virgin Islands corporation, in which Mr. Nissenson owns 20% and his family are 
a l s o  shareholders ;  (b) 500,000 options t o  purchase shares of our common stock 
that Campbeltown Business Ltd has t h e  r i g h t  to acquire. 

Other  than these family relationship, there are no other family relationships 
among our officers, directors, p r o m o t e r s ,  or persons nominated for such 
positions. 

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

No officer, director, or persons nominated for s u c h  positions, promoter or 
significant employee has been involved i n  legal p r o c e e d i n g s  that would be 
m a t e r i a l  to an evaluation of our management. 

Our directors ,  executive officers and control persons have n o t  been involved in 
any of the following e v e n t s  during t h e  pas t  five years: 

1. any bankrup tcy  petition filed by or against any business of which such 
person was a general p a r t n e r  or executive o f f i c e r  either at the t ime o f  t h e  
bankruptcy or within two years prior to t h a t  time; 

2. any conviction in a criminal proceeding or being subject to a pending 
criminal proceeding (exc luding  traffic violations and other minor  offenses); 

3. being subject to any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently 
reversed, suspended or vacated, of any court of competent  jurisdiction, 
permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting 
h i s  involvement i n  any type of business, securities or banking activities; or 

4. being found by a c o u r t  o f  competent jurisdiction (in a civil 
action),the Commission or t h e  Commodity Futures Trading Commission to have 
violated a federa l  or state securities or commodities law, and the judgment has 
n o t  been reversed, suspended, or vacated. 
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

We presently do not have an audit committee, compensation committee, nominating 
committee, an executive committee of o u r  board  of directors, stock plan . 

committee o r  any other committees. However,  cur board of directors is 
considering e s t a b l i s h  various committees d u r i n g  the current fiscal year. 
C u r r e n t l y ,  o u r  Board of Directors makes the d e c i s i o n s  regarding compensation, 
our  a u d i t ,  the appointment of  a u d i t o r s ,  and t h e  inclusion of financial 
statements in our  per iodic  reports. 

AUDlT COMMITTEE FINANCIAL EXPERT 

W e  have no financial expert. W e  believe t h e  cost related to retaining a 
financial expert a t  this time is prohibitive. 

CODE OF ETHICS 

We have'not yet adopted a c o r p o r a t e  code of  ethics. Our board of directors is 
considering, over the next year, establishing a code of ethics to deter 
wrongdoing and promote honest and ethical conduct ;  provide f u l l ,  fair, accurate, 
timely and understandable disclosure in public reports; comply with applicable 
laws; ensure prompt internal reporting of code violations; and provide 
accountability €or adherence to the code. 

ITEM 10. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION. 

The following t ab l e  sets f c r t h  summary information concerning the compensation 
received for services rendered to it during the current yea r  and the years ended 
December 31, 2001 and 2002, and 2003 respectively by our Chairman of the Board,  
Abraham Keinan who is the managing director of Swiftnet, and Guy NiSSenSOn, who 
is o u r  P r i n c i p a l  Executive Officer/ President. Abraham Keinan is our only 
executive officer who received aggregate compensaticn during our last f i s c a l  
y e a r  which exceeded, or would exceed on an annualized basis, $100,000. 

<S> 
Abraham Keinan 
Chairman 

Guy Nissenson 
Principal 
Executive 
Officer 

2002 $51,000 
( 3 0 , 0 0 0  Pound) 

2001 $42,300 
(30000 Pound) 

2003 $74 ,820  (4) 
(43,500 Pound} 

2002 $52,800 
(33,000 Pound) 

2001 $30,450 

9,588 
(6,372 Pound) 

0 

67 , 500 
(45,000 Pound) 

0 

$171,302(5) 
( 9 6 , 2 3 7  Pound) 



(1) On A p r i l  1 5 ,  2003 ,  our Board of Directors approved of a salary increase f o r  
our Chairman of the Board from $1,473 to $4,000 per mcnth. Abraham Keinan's 
t o t a l  salary of $69,057 for 2003, as reflected above, is composed o f :  (a) $3,250 
per month from January 2003 to March 2003; and (b) $4,000 per month from April 
2003 to December 2003. 

Our chairman of the Board of Directors, Mr. Abraham Keinan, does n o t  have a 
written employment agreement with us. Since January 2001, we have agreed to pay 
him a salary of $3,525 (2,500 Pound Sterling) per month. Abraham Keinan  receives 
pension benefits and a company c a r .  On October 15, 2002, our Board of Directors 
approved a bonus and S U C C ~ S S  fee whereby if we receive monthly revenues in 
excess of $485,000 then M r .  Keinan and o u r  consultant, Campbeltown Business, 
L t d .  shall receive 1% of the r evenues  f o r  each month where our revenues reach 
$485,000 up to a maximum of one million dollars. On April 10, 2003, Mr. Keinan 
and Campbeltown Business Ltd waived their right t o  receive 1% of the revenues 
g e n e r a t e d  from calling cards s o l d  by S t o r y  Telecom. 

( 2 )  This amount represents a success fee p a i d  to Vision Consultants, which is 
s o l e l y  owned and controlled by A. Keinan, and is further discussed in the 
paragraph f o l l o w i n g  this table. 

(3) On March lst, 2004, our Board  of Directors cancelled these o p t i o n s .  

(4) On April 15, 2003, our Board of D i r e c t o r s  approved of a salary increase for 
our Principal Executive Officer from UKP2,500 ($4,300) to WKP4,OOO ($6,800) per 
month. Guy Nissenson's total salary of $73,950 is composed of: (a) $4,250 per 
month from January to March 2003; and (b) $6,800 per month from April 2003 to 
December 2003. On May 11, 2000, we entered i n t o  a written employment agreement 
with our Principal Executive Officer/President, Guy Nissenson .  Under t h e  
agreement, Mr. Nissenson will work on business development, s a l e s  and marketing. 
At that t i m e ,  w e  agreed t o  pay h i m  a salary of $1,473 (1000 Pound S t e r l i n g )  per  
month, s u b j e c t  to a future increase of $1,473 (1000 Pound S t e r l i n g )  i f  Swiftnet 
reaches average sa les  of $257,775 (175,000 Pound Sterling) per month. In 
addition, we have agreed that if we grant options to Abraham Keinan, we will 
grant Ivlr. Nissenson options to buy S w i f t n e t  o r  u s  according to the following 
formula: 50% of the o p t i o n s  with same p r i c e  and conditions that Mr. Keinan will 
receive, s u b j e c t  to our reaching a benchmark of $176,760 (120,000 Pound 
Sterling) average sales per month during MI. Nissenson activities or in the 12 
months thereafter. The agreement w i t h  Mr. Nissenson can be t e r m i n a t e d  by either 
party with one month notice. 
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( 5 )  T h i s  amount represents consultant f ees  of 41,237 pounds, and a success fee 
of 55,000 pounds,  paid to Campbeltown Business, L t d . ,  which is owned and 
controlled b y  Guy Nissenson and other members of the Nissenson family. 

(6) On March lst, 2004 our Board of Directors canceled these o p t i o n s .  

Our research and development manager, Mrs. Bosmat Houston, has an employment 
agreement us which provides that we pay h e r  a salary of $ 3 , 3 3 7  (2266 Pound 
Sterling) per month. She is not subject t o  a covenant n o t  to compete. We may 
terminate Mrs. Houston's agreement with 8 weeks n o t i c e .  She  may terminate the 
agreement w i t h  one week notice. 

Name and 
Principle 
Position 

Expiration 
Date  



(1) On August 21, 2003, we issued 400,000 options to acqui re  shares of our 
restricted common s t o c k  to Abraham Keinan. These options were issued to Abraham 
Keinan f o r  services rendered by Mr. Keinan  a s  t h e  Chairman of our Board of 
Directors. These options are exercisable at a price of $0.475 per  share. Each 
option is convertible into one share of stock. These options are vested 
immediately and expire 5 years after issuance. On March l s t ,  2004, our Board of 
Directors canceled these options. 

( 2 )  On Augus t  2 1 ,  2 0 0 3 ,  we issued 200,000 options to acquire shares of our 
restricted common stock to Guy Nissenson. These options were issued to Guy 
N i s s e n s o n  for services rendered by Ivlr. Nissenson as our President and Principal 
E x e c u t i v e  Officer. These options are exercisable  at a price of $0.475 per share. 
Each option is convertible into one share of s t o c k .  These options are vested 
immediately and expire 5 years  after issuance. On March lst,  2004, our Board of 
Directors canceled these o p t i o n s .  

Aggregate Option/SAR Exercises in 2003 and Fiscal Year End Option/SAR Values 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

N a m e  
<S> 

Guy Nissenson, 
Principal Executive 
Off i ce r ,  P r e s i d e n t  

S h a r e s  
Acquired on 
Exercise ( # )  
<C> 

Not A p p l  i cab1 e 

Abraham Keinan, 
Chairman of the Board Not Applicable 

< /TABLE> 

( 3 )  

Value 
Realized 

( $ )  
<C> 

Not 
Applicable 

Not 
App 1 i cab 1 e 

Number of Securities WnderlyinG 
Unexercised Options/SARs at FY-Er 

I # )  _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ - - - - - - - - - -  
Exercisable/Unexercisable 
<C> 

700,000 / 0 (1) 

Of t h e  700,000 share options, 200,000 were issued to Guy Nissenson, our 
Principal Executive Officer and President, on August 21, 2003. On March 
I, 2004, these 200,000 share options were cancelled by our Board of 
Directors. Campbeltown Business Ltd., a p r i v a t e  company incorporated in 
the British Virgin I s l a n d s  which is owned by Guy Nissenson and other 
members of the Nissenson family, own options to purchase 500,000 shares 
of our common stock f o r  $0.40 per sha re  or an aggregate of $200,000. 
Guy Nissenson owns 20% of Campeltown 3usiness Ltd. Options to purchase 
shares of our common stock are shown in the table above as owned by Guy 
Nissenson due to Guy Nissenson's 20% ownership of Campbeltown Business 
Ltd. 

aased on the December 31, 2003 
exercise prices of $0.475 per 

per share closing price of $5.98 and the 
share for 200,000 share  options, and 

$0.40 per s h a r e  for 500,000 share options. 

The options to purchase 400,000 shares of our  common s t o c k  were issued 
to Abraham Keinan ,  our Chairman of the Board, on August 21, 2003, and 
on March 1, 2004, all 400,000 share o p t i o n s  were cancelled by our Board 



( 4 )  

of D i r e c t o r s .  Abraham Keinan 
shares of o u r  common stock. 

c u r r e n t l y  owns no o p t i o n s  to purchase 

3ased on the December 31, 2003 per share closing p r i c e  of $5.98, and an 
e x e r c i s e  price o f  $ 0 . 4 7 5  per share. 
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BOARD COMPENSATION 

Other  t h a n  p r o v i d e  above our directors do n o t  receive any compensation f o r  t h e i r  
services a s  directors, although some directors are  reimbursed f o r  reasonable 
expenses incurred in attending board or committee meetings. 

ITEM 11. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS A N D  MANAGEMENT AND 
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS. 

The f o l l o w i n g  t a b l e s  sets f o r t h ,  as of June  7, 2004, c e r t a i n  information with 
respect to the b e n e f i c i a l  ownership of  o u r  common s t u c k  b y  each s t o c k h o l d e r  
known by u s  to be the beneficial owner of more t h a n  5% of o u r  common stock and 
by each of our current directors and executive officers. Each person has s o l e  
voting and investment power w i t h  respect to the shares of common stock, except  
as otherwise indicated. Information relating to beneficial ownership of common 
stock by our  principal stockholders and management is based upon information 
furnished by each person using "bene f i c i a l  ownership" concepts under  the rules 
of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Under these rules, a person is deemed 
to be a b e n e f i c i a l  owner of a security if that person has or shares voting 
power, which i n c l u d e s  the power t o  vote or direct the voting of the security, or 
investment power, which i n c l u d e s  t h e  power t o  vote or d i r e c t  the voting of  the 
security. The person  is a l s o  deemed to be a beneficial owner of any s e c u r i t y  of 
which that person has a right to acquire beneficial ownership within 60 days. 
Under the Securities and Exchange Commission rules, more than one person may be 
deemed to be a beneficial owner of the same securities, and a person may be 
deemed to be a b e n e f i c i a l  owner of securities as t o  which he o r  s h e  may not have 
any pecuniary beneficial interest. We are unaware of any c o n t r a c t  o r  arrangement 
which could r e s u l t  in a change in control of our company. 

The following table assumes, based on our s t o c k  records, that there are 
6,105,445 shares issued and outstanding as of June  7 ,  2004. 

The following tables set forth the ownership of our Common S t o c k  as of the da te  
of this Registration Statement by: 

0 

0 

0 

Each s h a r e h o l d e r  known by us to own beneficially more t h a n  5% 
of our common s t o c k ;  

Each executive o f f i c e r ;  

Each d i r e c t o r  o r  nominee t o  become a director; and o All 
d i r e c t o r s  and executive officers as a group. 
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S e c u r i t y  Ownership of Beneficial Own e r s 



Common 3 ,  644, 664 Direct /Ir Abraham Keinan 
Chairman of t h e  Soard 
4 Wycombe Gardens  
London Nwll 8 a l  
United Kingdom 

Crestview C a p i t a l  500,000 Direct 
Master LLC** 
95 Revere Drive,  Suite F 
Northbrook, Illinois 60062 

.___________________-- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

-k 

* *  

Our Chairman of the Board, A!xaharn Keinan's 5 9 . 7 0 %  beneficial ownership 
consists of (a) 2,342,333 sha res  of our common stock individually owned by 
Mr. Keinan; and (b) ownership of 1,302,331 shares of common stock owned by 
Vision Consultants, a Nassau,  Bahamas incorporated company t h a t  is 100% 
owned by Mr. Keinan, and is l o c a t e d  at Kings  C o u r t ,  POB N-3944, 3ay Street, 
Nassau, Bahamas. The sole business purpose of Vision Consultants is to h o l d  
and manage Mr. Keinan's investments. On August 21, 2003, we issued 400,000 
options to Mr. Keinan, b u t  on March 1, 2004, our Board of Directors 
cancelled these options. 

Crestview Capital Master LLC, a selling shareholder, owns 500,000 shares of 
our common s t o c k ;  however, upon the exercise of Warrants A and B issued to 
Crestview Capital Master, it will o f f e r  an additional 1,000,000 shares of 
our  common stock. With a t o t a l  of 1,500,000 shares that Crestview Capital 
Master LLC will offer, its beneficial ownership would be 24.60%. 

* * *  Guy Nissenson, our Principal Executive Officer/President, h a s  beneficial 
ownership of 19.99% or 1,220,336 shares of our common stock, which consists 
of the following: (a) 720,336 shares of our common s t o c k  owned by 
Campbeltown Business Ltd., a British Virgin I s l a n d s  corporation, in which 
Mr. Nissenson owns 20% and h i s  family a r e  also shareholders; (b) 500,000 
options to purchase shares of our common s t o c k  that Campbeltown 3usiness 
Ltd h a s  the right t o  acquire in accordance with a Stock Purchase  Agreement, 
clarified on J u l y  30, 2001 in which Campbeltown Business, Ltd. h a s  an 
option to 500,000 shares of our outstanding stock if we become listed on 
the OTC Bulletin Board before December 31, 2005. We became listed on the 
OTC Bulletin Board on March 25, 2002.  Campbeltown Business, Ltd. has not 
exercised its option as of March 31, 2004, and Campbeltown Business, Ltd. 
has until December 31, 2005 to exercise its option. Campbeltown Business, 
L t d .  also has a first right of refusal on any of our securities offerings 
until December 31, 2005, so long a s  Campbeltown Business, Ltd. owns more 
than 4% of our outstanding s t o c k .  To the extent that we issue any shares to 
Abraham Keinan. Campbeltown Business, Ltd. has the right to purchase or 
a c q u i r e  such number of OUT s h a r e s  on the same terms and conditions as 
Abraham Keinan such t h a t  the relative percentage ownership of Abraham 
Keinan and Campbeltown Business, Ltd. remains the same. On August 21, 2003, 
we issued 200,000 options to acquire our shares to Mr. Nissenson, but on 
March 1, 2004 these options were cancelled by our Board of Directors. 
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Security Ownership of lqanagement : 

4 Wycombe Gardens 
London NWll 8AL 
United Kingdom 

President/Director 
3A Finchley Park 
London N12 9JS 
United Kingdom 

Director 
3 Moshe Dayan Street 

Direct or 
8 Haamoraim Street 

Cornmon All directors and 

executive o f f i c e r s  4,080,000 

< /TABLE> 

* *  

Our Chairman of the Board, Abraham Keinan's direct/indirect ownership 
of 3,644,644 shares of o u r  common stock or 59.70% beneficial ownership 
interest consists of: (a) his direct ownership of 2,342,333 shares of 
our common stock individually owned by Mr. Keinan; (b) his i n d i r e c t  
ownership of  1,302,331 shares of common stock owned by Vision 
Consultants, a Nassau, Bahamas incorporated company that is 100% owned 
by Mr. Keinan, Bay Street, 
Nassau, Bahamas. The sole business purpose of Vision Consultants i s  to 
hold and manage Mr. Keinan's investments. On August 21, 2003, we issued 
400,000 options to Mr. Keinan ,  but on March 1, 2004, our Board of 

and i s  located a t  Kings Court, PO3 N-3944, 

Directors cancelled these options. 

Guy Nissenson, our  Principal Executive Officer/President, has 
beneficial ownership of 19.99% or 1,220,336 shares of our common stock, 
which consists of the  following: 720,336 shares of our common stock 
owned by Campbeltown Business Ltd., a British Virgin Islands 
corpora t ion ,  Nissenson has a 20% and his family are a l s o  
shareholders; (b) 500,000 op t ions  to purchase shares of our common 
s t o c k  that Campbeltown Business Ltd has the right to acqu i re  in 
accordance w i t h  a S t o c k  Purchase Agreement, clarified on J u l y  30, 2001 
in which Campbeltown Business, Ltd. has an option to 500,000 shares of 
our outstanding s t o c k  if we become listed on the OTC Bulletin Board 
before December 3 3 ,  2005. We became l i s t e d  on the OTC Bulletin Board on 
Maarch 25, 2002.  Campbeltown Business, L t d .  has not exercised its option 
as of March 31, 2004, and Campbeltown 3usiness, Ltd. has until December 

( a )  

in which Mr. 



31, 2005 to exercise its option. Campbeltown Business, Ltd. a l s o  has a 
first right of refusal on any of our securities offerings until 
December 31, 2005, so long  as Campbeltown Business, Ltd. owns more t h a n  
4% of o a r  outstanding stock. To t h e  extent that w e  issue any shares t o  
Abraham Keinan. Campbeltown Business, Ltd. has the right to purchase or 
acquire such number of o u r  shares on the same t e r m s  and as 
Abraham Keinan such that the relative percentage ownership of Abraham 
Keinan and Campbeltown Business, Ltd. remains the same. On August  21, 
2003, we issued 200,000 options to acquire our shares to Mr. Nissenson, 
b u t  on March 1, 2004 these options were cancelled by our Board of 
Directors. 

conditions 
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ITEM 12. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TFSNSACTIONS. 

ABRAHAM KEINAN 

Keinan Share Issuance 

On September 1, 2000, we issued 1,730,000 shares of our common stock to our 
founder and Chairman of t h e  Board, Abraham Keinan f o r  services rendered to us in 
our corporate formation. Mr. Keinan's services consisted of the establishment of 
o u r  business concept and providing us with technical expertise. We valued Mr. 
Keinan's services at $247,390. 

Keinan S t o c k  Ownership Through Vision Consultants 

Our Chairman of the Board, Abraham Keinan, has beneficial ownership of 1,302,331 
shares of common s t o c k  owned by Vision Consultants, a Nassau, 3ahamas 
incorporated company that is 100% owned by Mr. Keinan, and is l o c a t e d  at Kings 
Court, POB N-3944, Bay Street, Nassau, Bahamas. The sole business purpose of 
Vision Consultants is to hold  and manage Mr. Keinan's investments. 

Vision Consultants is entitled to receive 1% of a11  of our revenues if and when 
revenues exceed $485,000; however, in April 2003, Vision Consultants, Inc. and 
Campbeltown 3usiness Limited waived t h e i r  right with regard to revenues derived 
from Story Telecom. 

Keinan Loan 

Since,our inception in September 2000 through December 31, 2000, we along w i t h  
our subsidiary, Swiftnet, Ltd.) loaned Abraham Keinan, our Chairman of the 
Board, a total of 216,133 Pound Sterling or approximately $322,586 based upon 
the exchange rate at December 31, 2000, $202,433 of which was loaned to Mr. 
Keinan on September 29, 2000. T h i s  loan originally was reflected in a September 
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29, 2000 promissory note payable in ten equal installments of approximately 
$19,150 beginning January  1, 2002 and ending on January 1, 2011. This n o t e  is 
non-interest bearing. We provided the loan to Mr. Keinan to promote his loyalty 
and continued service as our Chairman of the Board of Directors. As of December 
31, 2003, 286,736 pounds ($510,390) remain outstanding regarding this l o a n .  On 
March 2004 Mr. Keinan signed a note to repay his loan  in four installments: 

2004 (pound) 54,070 ($96,245) 
2005 (pound) 116,333 ($207,073) 
2006 (pound) 116,333 ($207,073) 

Keinan Bonus and Success Fee 



As i n d i c a t e d  i n  more detail below, on October 15, 2002, o u r  Board of D i r e c t o r s  
approved a bonus and success f ee  whereby if w e  receive mon th ly  revenues in 
excess of $485,000 then Mr. Keinan and our consultant, Campbeltown Business, 
Ltd. will receive 1% of the revenues  for each month where our revenues reach 
$485,000 up to a m a x i m u m  of one million dollars. 

GUY NISSENSON 

Campbelt own Business , Ltd. 

On May 5, 2000, Swiftnet, Ltd., Fihich is now our w h o l l y  owned subsidiary, 
entered into an 18-month renewable consulting agreement w i t h  Campbeltown 
Business, Ltd., a p r i v a t e  company i n c o r p o r a t e d  i n  the British V i r g i n  Island 
which is owned by Guy Nissenson, o u r  Principal Executive Officer/President and 
Director and f o u r  o t h e r  relatives of Mr. Nissenson. This agreement p r o v i d e s  t h a t  
S w i f t n e t  hires Campbeltown Business, Ltd. as its financial and business 
development consultant and will pay Campbeltown Business, L t d .  2,000 UK Pound 
S t e r l i n g  {approximately $2,946) per month, along w i t h  an additional monthly 
performance bonus based upon S w i f t n e t ,  L t d . ,  attaining the f o l l o w i n g  revenue 
l e v e l s  €or  consulting services in the a r e a  of business development and 
management a c t i v i t i e s :  
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This agreement with Campbeltown Business, Ltd. i n v o l v i n g  this monthly payment of 
2000 United Kingdom Pound, along with an a d d i t i o n a l  monthly performance bonus ,  
i s  s e p a r a t e  from a bonus and success fee arrangement that we may pay in 
accordance with an October 15, 2002  approval by our Board of Direc tors  to pay 
such a bonus and success fee ,  as discussed below. 

The May 5, 2000 agreement is for 18 months, but the agreement provides that the 
agreement will be renewed by mutual agreement of S w i f t n e t  and Campbeltown 
Business, Ltd. 

On November 5, 2001 and May 11,2003, we renewed t h i s  agreement for a d d i t i o n a l  1 8  
month periods. We plan to renew this agreement for an additional 18 month term 
a f t e r  the expiration of the current term on November 11, 2004. Under t h e  terms 
of the (date) agreement ,  Campbeltown agreed to provide  the following services to 
us: 

0 

0 

analysis of proposed acquisitions; 

s e e k  markets f o r  o u r  telecommunications services in additional 
countries; 

0 formulate s t r a t e g i e s  for our future growth  plans; and 

0 i n t r o d u c e  potential customers to our business. 



On June 19thr 2000, Swiftnet, L t d .  entered i n t o  a Stock Purchase Agreement w i t h  
Abraham Keinan and Campbeltown Business, Ltd., a company owned by Guy Nissenson 
and his family. This agreement provides that: 

0 Abraham Keinan confirmed that a l l  h i s  businesses activities 
and initiatives in the field of telecommunications are 
conducted through Swiftnet, and would continue for at l e a s t  18 
months after the conclusion of this transaction. 
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0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

Campbeltown declared that it is not involved in any business 
that competes with Swiftnet and would not be involved in such 
business at l e a s t  for 18 months after this transaction is 
concluded. This agreement term has been satisfied by 
Campbeltown. 

Campbeltown would invest $100,000 in Swiftnet L t d . ,  in 
exchange for 20% of the total issued shares of Swiftnet, L t d . ;  

Campbeltown would also receive 5% of our issued and 
outstanding shares following our acquisition with Swiftnet. 
In June 2000, Campbeltown Business L t d .  invested the $100,000 
in Swiftnet. We acqui red  Swiftnet, Ltd. and Campbeltown 
received 720,336 shares of our common s t o c k  f o r  its 20% 
interest in Swiftnet, Ltd. 

Swiftnet, L t d . ,  and Keinan would guarantee that Campbeltown's 
20% interest in the outstanding shares of Swiftnet would  be 
exchanged for at least 10% of our outstanding shares and that 
CamDbeltown would have in total at least 15% of our total 
issued shares after our acquisition occurred. 

Campbeltown would have the right to nominate 33% of the 
members of our board of directors and Swiftnet's board of 
directors. When Campbeltown ownership in our common s t o c k  was 
less than 7 % ,  Campbeltown would have the right to nominate 
only 20% of our board members but always at l e a s t  one member. 
In the case t h a t  Campbeltown ownership in our  common s t o c k  was 
less than 2%,  this right would expire. 

Campbeltown would have t h e  right to nominate a vice president 
in S w i f t n e t  and/or our common stock. Ms. Guy Nissenson was 
nominated as of the time of t h e  June 19, 2000 agreement. If 
f o r  any reason Guy Nissenson will leave his position, 
Campbeltown and Abraham Keinan  will agree on another 
nominee. 
suitable conditions. 

The Vice President w i l l  be employed with 

Campbeltown has the 
Swiftnet that will 

o p t i o n  t o  
represent 
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purchase additional shares of 
10% of all issued shares after 

the transaction f o r  $200,000 US. This transaction can be 
executed either by Swiftnet issuing new shares, or by Abraham 
Keinan selling his private shares (as long as he has an 
adequate amount of shares), as Abraham Keinan will decide. 
This option will expire on Dec 31, 2005. Campbeltown can 
exercise this option in p a r t s .  



0 

0 

0 

0 

Campbeltown will have the r i g h t  to participate under  the same 
terms 2nd conditions in any investment or transaction t h a t  
i n v o l v e  e q u i t y  r i g h t s  in Swiftnet or us conducted by Abraham 
Keinan at the relative ownership portion. 

I n  t h e  event that S w i f t n e t  or we will s e e k  for money i n  a 
private placement f o r  equity or any o t h e r  rights, Campbeltown 
will have the right of first r e f u s a l  on any transaction or 
par t  of it until Dec 31, 2005 or as long as it owns over 7% of 
Swiftnet equity or 4% of our common s t o c k .  

Keinan and Campbeltown have s i g n e d  a right of first r e f u s a l  
agreement for t h e  s a l e  of their shares. 

Until we conduct  a public o f f e r i n g  or are traded on a s t o c k  
market, we are not permitted to i s s u e  any additional shares or 
e q u i t y  rights without a written agreement from Campbeltown. 
This right expires when Campbeltown no longer owns any e q u i t y  
i n t e r e s t  o r  s h a r e s  i n  our company or our subsidiary, Swiftnet. 

On October 15, 2002, our Board of Directors approved a bonus and success fee  
whereby if we receive monthly revenues in excess of $485,000 then Mr. Keinan and 
our consultant, Campbeltown Business, Ltd. shall receive 1% of the revenues f o r  
each month where our revenues reach $485,000 up to a maximum of one million 
d o l l a r s .  This bonus and success fee is separate from our agreement with 
Campbeltown Business, Ltd. involving a monthly payment of 2000 United Kingdom 
Pound, a l o n g  w i t h  an additional monthly performance bonus. The business purpose 
of t h e  bonus a n d  success fee is to further motivate our Chairman of the Board, 
Mr. Keinan, and our consultant, Campbeltown Business Ltd. t o  develop our 
business by p r o v i d i n g  them with additional compensation i f  and when our revenues 
grow. During 2003, we p a i d  Mr. Keinan, through Vision Consultants, and 
Campbeltown each 55,000 pounds as a bonus and success fee according to the 
formula described above. During 2003 we paid Campbeltown c o n s u l t a n c y  related 
fees of 41,237 pounds ($73,402). 

65 
<PAGE> 

On April 1 0 ,  2003 ,  Mr. Keinan and Campbeltown Business Ltd waived t h e i r  right t o  
receive 1% of the revenues generated t h a t  are derived from Story T e l e c o m .  

Guy Nissenson Employment Agreement 

On May 11, 2000, S w i f t n e t ,  Ltd. and our Chairman of the Board of D i r e c t o r s ,  
Abraham Keinan, entered i n t o  an employment agreement with Guy Nissenson, our 
Principal E x e c u t i v e  Officer/ President. This agreement does not expire. Under 
the terms of the agreement, Swiftnet employed Mr. Nissenson to provide business 
development and sales and marketing services, at a base r a t e  of  1000 pounds (UK) 
per month (approximately $1,433 US). When Swiftnet r e a c h e s  average sales of 
175,000 pounds (UKJ per month for a consecutive t h ree  month period, M r .  
Nissenson's salary w i l l  i n c r e a s e  t o  2 , 0 0 0  pounds (approximately $2,866 US) per 
month. In addition, Mr. Nissenson will receive an unspecified number of options 
to acquire our stock that is l i m i t e d  t o  50% of t h e  op t ions  that Abraham Keinan 
receives. As such ,  the agreement protects Mr. Nissenson's r i g h t s  to have a t  
least 50% of the options r i g h t s  t h a t  Mw. Keinan will have. Mr. Nissenson can 
transfer t h e  right of these options to another company or person a t  h i s  
d i s c r e t i o n .  Swiftnet may only cance l  these options i f  : (1) Mr. Nissenson no 
longer w o r k s  with Swiftnet; or ( 2 )  if within twelve months of Mr. Nissenson's 
employment w i t h  the company, Swiftnet and any other companies that may buy or 
merge into Swiftnet i n  the future, do n o t  reach average revenues (over a three 
consecutive month period) of at least 120,000 pounds (UK). Because the average 
sales per month have exceeded 120,000 pounds within a twelve month period of Mr. 
Nissenson's employment, Swiftnet cannot cancel the options. 

XFONE COMMUNICATION, LTD. 



On April 15, 2004, we established an I s r a e l  based subsidiary, Xfone 
Communication L t d .  O n  May 9, 2004, Xfone Communication applied f o r  a license to 
become an international telecom service provider in Israel. The Israeli 
Government Regulations r e q u i r e  that at least 26% of an applicant company be 
owned by Israeli citizens who reside i n  Israel. Xfone Communication is owned 74% 
by us and 26% by H.S.N. Communication Investments Ltd., an I s r a e l i  based 
company, that is owned: 40% by Mrs. Naama Harish ,  the wife of Dr. Eyal Harish, a 
member of our 3oard of Directors, 40% by Dionysos Investments Ltd., a company 
owned by members of t h e  family of Mr. Guy 
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Nissenson,  our Chief Executive O f f i c e r ,  and  20% by Margo S p o r t  Ltd., a company 
owned by Mr. Giora S p i g e l  and his wife. In accordance with t h e  I s r a e l i  
Government Regulations Xfone Communication issued a bank guarantee in f a v o r  of 
the Government of Israel f o r  the amount of 1OM NIS (approximately, $2.2 
Million). In order  to a t t a i n  t h e  Bank Guarantee , Xfone Communication had to 
deposit in Bank Hapoalim B . M . ,  an Israel based bank ,  approximately $2.2 million 
and issue a Letter of Guarantee,  unlimited i n  amount, in favor of the bank, 
guaranteeing a l l  debt and indebtedness of Xfone Communication towards the bank. 
If Xfone Communication will fail to get the License the 3ank Guarantee and the 
Letter of Guarantee will be returned. 

AURACALL L I M I T E D  

We have an investment in and own 47.5% of a joint business v e n t u r e ,  Auracall 
Limited. Auracall Limited's services were introduced i n  approximately March 
2 0 0 2 .  Our Chairman of the Board,  Abraham Keinan, and our Chief Executive 
Officer/Director, Guy Nissenson, are both directors of Auracall Limited. Our 
management will indirectly b e n e f i t  from revenues generated by Auracall Limited 
activities, to the extent t h a t  Vision Consultants, I n c . ,  which is solely owned 
by Mr. Keinan, and Campbeltown Business Limited, which is partially owned by our 
Chief Executive Office, Guy Nissenson, r ece ives  1% of all our revenues, except 
revenue generated by Story Telecom activities, if our entire month ly  revenue, 
except revenue generated by Story Telecom activities, exceeds $485,000. Auracall 
accounted for 4.4% and 6 . 9 %  of  our  revenues for the 12 month period ending 
December 31, 2003 and the three month period ending March 31, 2004, 
respectively. Auracall Limited accounted f o r  2.8% and 4.8% of our total cost of  
r e v e n u e s  for the 1 2  month period ending December 31, 2003 and the three month 
p e r i o d  end ing  March 31, 2004 ,  respectively. Commissions paid to Auracall 
accounted f o r  17% and 22.3% of t h e  total commissions t h a t  we paid out for t h e  12 
month period e n d i n g  December 31, 2003 a n d  the t h ree  month period ending March 
31, 2004, respectively. We have made no guarantee or any other commitment on 
behalf of Auracall, Ltd. and we are not committed to provide Auracall, Ltd. with 
any further support. 

STORY TELECOM 

We have an investment in and own 40% of a joint business v e n t u r e ,  S t o r y  Telecom, 
which is a calling card  service we offer that is detailed on page ( ) .  Story 
Telecom purchases their telecommunications services from us. Our Chief Executive 
Officer/Director, Guy Nissenson, is a d i r e c t o r  of Story; o u r  Chairman of the 
Board,  Abraham Keinan,is n o t  a director of S t o r y  Telecom. Our management does 
not benefit f rom revenues  generated by S t o r y  Telecom activities. S t o r y  Telecom 
accounted for 37% and 43% of our total revenues f o r  the 12 month period ending 
December 31, 2003 and the three month period ending March 31, 2004, 
respectively. Story Telecom accounted for 58% and 60% of o u r  total c o s t  of 
revenues for t h e  12 month period ending December 31, 2003 and the t h r e e  month 
period ending March 31, 2004, respectively. We have made no guarantee or any 
other commitment on behalf of S t o r y  Telecom and we are not committed to provide 
S t o r y  Telecom with any f u r t h e r  support. 



XFONE USA, INC. 

Xfone USA, inc. was incorporated in the State of Mississippi on May 28, 2004 
especially f o r  the purpose of becoming the s u r v i v i n g  corporation upon t h e  
consummation of the merger. We are the sole sha reho lde r  of Xfone USA, Inc. Xfone 
USA, I n c . ,  upon completion of  the acquisition, w i l l  continue t o  be o u r  wholly 

67 
<PAGE> 

owned subsidiary and no change in our control will occur  as a result of t h e  
acquisition. M r .  Abraham Keinan, our Chairman of the Board, and  Mr. Guy 
Nissenson, our  PresidentlChief Executive Off i ce r /Di rec to r ,  are the di rec tors  of 
Xfone USA, I n c .  Our President/Chief Executive OfficerlDirector, Guy Nissenson, 
is also the President/Secretary/Treasurer of Xfone USA, Inc. 

Other than the above transactions, we have not e n t e r e d  i n t o  any material 
transactions w i t h  any director, executive officer, and nominee for director, 
b e n e f i c i a l  owner of f i v e  percent or more of our common s t o c k ,  or family members 
of such  persons within the last five y e a r s  and  w e  have not o t h e r  t h a n  t h e  above 
t r a n s a c t i o n s ,  w e  have not entered  i n t o  any  material transactions with any 
promoter w i t h i n  the l a s t  f i v e  y e a r s .  
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ITEM 13. EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K.  

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 
Exhibit 
Number Description 

- -_---_ - _I_---_-_-- 

<IS> <C> 
2 .  Agreement and p l an  o r  r e o r g a n i z a t i o n  between Xfone, Inc. and Swiftnet Ltd. 

dated  September 20, 2000 (1) 

3.1 Articles of Incorporation of Xfone, I n c .  (1) 

3.2a Bylaws of Xfone, Inc. (1) 

3.2b Amended Bylaws o f  Xfone, Inc .  ( 4  } 

3 . 3  Articles of I n c o r p o r a t i o n  of Swiftnet, L t d . ( l )  

3 .4  Bylaws o f  S w i f t n e t ,  L t d .  (I) 

3 . 5  Amended bylaws of  Xfone, I n c .  ( 3 )  

3.6 Bylaws of Xfone USA, Inc. ( 6 )  

3 . 7  O f f i c e  of the Mississippi Secretary of State, Articles of Merger or 
Share Exchange Profit Corpora t ion  (6) 

4. Specimen S t o c k  Certificate(1) 

5 .  Opinion of Hamilton, Lehrer & Dargan, P . A .  

10.1 Agreement between Swiftnet Ltd. and Guy Nissenson dated May 11, 2000(1) 

10.2 Employment Agreement with Bosmat Houston dated January 1, Z O O O ( 1 )  

1 0 . 3  Loan Agreement with Swiftnet L t d . ,  Guy Nissenson, and Nissim Levy dated 
August 5, 2000(1) 



10.4 

10.5 

10.6 

10.7 

10-8 

10.9 

10.10 

10.11 

10.12 

10.13 

10.14 

10.15 

10.16 

10.17 

10.18 

10.19 

10.20 

10.21 

10 * 22 

10.23 

10.24 

Promissory Note executed between Xfone and S w i f t n e t  Ltd. dated September 
29, 2000jl) 

S t o c k  Purchase Agreement between Swiftnet, L t d ,  Abraham K e h a n ,  and 
Campbeltown Business, Ltd. dated June  19, 2000 (I) 

Consulting Agreement between Swiftnet, L t d .  and Campbeltown Business, Ltd. 
dated May 5 ,  2000tl) 

Agreement with Campbeltown Business Ltd. dated J u l y  30, 2001 (1) 

Contract with WorldCom International, Ltd. dated  June 20, 1998(1) 

Contract with VoiceNet I n c .  dated April 11, 2000(1) 

Contract with InTouchWK.com Ltd. dated April 25, 2000(1) 

Letter of Understanding from Campbeltown Business, Ltd. to Xfone, Inc. 
dated J u l y  30, 2001 ( 2 )  

Agreement between Adar International, Inc./Mr. Sidney J. Golub and 
Swiftnet dated April 6, 2000 ( 2 )  

Lease Agreement between Elmtree Investments, Ltd. and Swiftnet, Ltd. dated 
December 4, 1991 (2) 

Lease Agreement between Postwick Property Holdings Limited and S w i f t n e t ,  
L t d .  d a t e d  October 8 ,  2001. (2) 

Agreement between Xfone, Inc. , Swiftnet, Ltd. , and N i r  Davidson d a t e d  
September 30, 2002 (5) 

As to Form: Shares and Warrant Purchase Agreement, Irrevocable Proxy,  
Warrant A, Warrant B and Registration R i g h t s  Agreement of Selling 
Shareholders Platinum P a r t n e r s  Value  Arbitrage Fund LP, Countrywide 
Partners LLC and WEC Partners LLC. [ 3  investors] ( 6 )  

As to Form: Shares and Warrant Purchase Agreement, Irrevocable Proxy, 
Warrant A, Warrant B and Registration Rights Agreement of Selling 
Shareholders Simon Langbart, Robert Langbart, Arik E c k e r ,  Zwi Ecker, 
Michael Derman, Errol Derman,Yuval Haim Sobel, Zvi Sobel ,  Tenram 
Investment Ltd., Michael Zinn, Michael Weiss. [ 11 investors] (6) 

As to Form: S h a r e s  and Warrant Purchase Agreement, Irrevocable Proxy, 
Warrant A, Warrant B and Registration Rights Agreement of Selling 
Shareholders Southridge Partners LP and Southshore Capital Fund Ltd. 
[ 2  investors] 1 6 )  

As to Form: S h a r e s  and Warrant Purchase Agreement, Irrevocable Proxy,  
Warrant A, Warrant B and Registration Rights Agreement of Selling 
Shareholders Crestview Capital Master LLC. [l investorsl(6) 

As to Form: Shares and Warrant Purchase Agreement, Irrevocable Proxy,  
Warrant A, Warrant B and Registration Rights Agreement of Selling 
shareholders Adam Breslawsky, Oded Levy, Michael Epstein, Steven 
Frank, Joshua Lobel, Joshua Kazan and The Oberon Group LLC. 
[ 7  investors] (6) 

Agreement w i t h  Newco (Auracall Limited) (6) 

Agreement with ITXC Corporation(6) 

Agreement with Teleglobe  International(6) 

Agreement with British Telecommunications(6) 



10.25 

10.26 

10.27 

10.28 

10.29 

10.30 

10.31 

10.32 

10.33 

10.34 

10.35 

21.1 

Agreement with E a s y a i r  Limited {OpenAir) (6) 

Agreement w i t h  Worldnet ( 6 )  

Agreement with Portfolio PR(6) 

Agreement with Stern and Company(6) 

December 31, 2003 letter to Xfone from A. Keinan (6) 

Agreement between Swiftnet, Ltd. and  Dan Kirschner (8) 

Agreement and Plan of Acquisition (7) 

Escrow Agreement { 7 ) 

Release Agreement (7) 

Employment Agreement between WS Telecom, Inc. and  Wade Spooner (7) 

Employment Agreement between WS Telecom, I n c .  and Ted Parsons (7) 

List of Subsidiaries (Amended) (8) 

</TABLE> 

- -_-------- 
(1) D e n o t e s  previously f i l e d  exhibits: filed on August 10, 2001 w i t h  Xfone,  

Inc.'s SB-2 registration statement, file # 333-67232. 

( 3 )  

( 4 )  

( 7 )  

Denotes previously filed exhibits: f i l e d  on October 16, 2001 with Xfone, 
Inc.'s SB-Z/Amendment 1 registration statement, file # 333-67232. 

Denotes  previously filed exhibit: filed on November 28, 2001 with Xfone, 
Inc.'s SB-2/Amendment 2 registration Statement, file # 333-67232. 

Denotes previously filed exhibit: filed on December 5,  2002 w i t h  Xfone, 
Inc. ' s  Form 8-K. 

Denotes previously f i l e d  exhibit: filed on March 3 ,  2003 with Xfone,  
Inc.'s S B - 2 / P o s t  Effective Amendment No. 2 registration statement, file # 
333-67232 

Denotes previously f i l e d  exhibit: f i l e d  on April 15, 2004, w i t h  Xfone, 
Inc.'s SB-2 Amendment No. 2 registration statement. 

Denotes previously f i l e d  exhibit: f i l e d  on June 1, 2004 with Xfone Inc.'s 
Form 8-K. 

Denotes previously f i l e d  exhibit: filed on June 7 ,  2004 with Xfone, Inc.'s 
SB-2/Rmendment 2 Registration Statement, f i l e  # 333-113020. 
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We hereby incorporate t h e  following additional documents by reference: 

our Forms 10-KSB/A f o r  the year  ended December 31, 2002 which was f i l e d  on 
June  9, 2004; 

our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 and all amendments t h e r e t o  which 
was filed on August 10, 2001 and amended on October 16, 2001, November 2 8 ,  
2001, December 27, 2001, December 28, 2001, F e b r u a r y  4, 2002, March 3, 
2003, and April 8, 2003; 



o u r  Registration Statement on Form SS-2 and all amendments thereto which 
was f i l e d  on February 23,  2 0 0 4  and amended on A p r i l  15, 2004 and June 7 ,  
2004; 

(d) ogr Forms 10-QSB for the periods ended March 31, 2002 which was filed on 
May 14, 2002, June 30, 2002 which was f i l e d  on August 13, 2002 and amended 
on August 20, 2002, September 30, 2002 which was filed on November 14, 
2002, March 31, 2003 which was filed on May 15, 2003, June 30, 2003 which 
was filed on August 14, 2003, September 30, 2 0 0 3  which was f i l e d  on 
llovember 10, 2003, and filed on May 17, 2 0 0 4  and March 31, 2 0 0 4  which was 
amended on June 9, 2004. 

(b) Reports on Form 8-K 

We filed a Form 8-K on Februa ry  18, 2004 pertaining to Item 5 - Other  Events, 
which disclosed completion of our private placement during January and  February 
2004, i n  which we sold to certain investors an a g g r e g a t e  of 969,237 shares of 
common s t o c k  at a purchase price of $3.00 per share and each investor in the 
financing was a l s o  granted a Warrant A and Warrant B to purchase a number of 
shares of common s t o c k  equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the shares 
purchased by t h a t  investor in the financing. 

On J u n e  1, 2004, w e  filed a Form 8-K, Item 5. Other Events, to disclose an 
agreement to acquire WS Telecom, Inc., a Mississippi corporation, through a 
statutory merger of WS Telecom, Inc. with and into the Company's wholly owned 
subsidiary, Xfone USA, I n c .  

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES. 

Audit Fees 

The aggregate fees billed f o r  the fiscal year  ended December 31, 
professional services rendered by the principal accountant f o r  the a u d i t  of our 
annual financial statements and review of the financial statements included in 
our Form 10-KSB or services that are normally provided by t h e  accountant in 
connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements f o r  these fiscal 
periods were estimated as follows: we paid our accountant, Chaifetz & Schreiber, 
P . C .  $30,500, 

2003 for 

Audit-Related Fees 

None. 

Tax Fees 

The aggregate fees billed for the fiscal year ended December 31, 
professional services rendered by the principal accountant for tax compliance, 
t a x  advice and tax planning were estimated as follows: we paid our  accountant, 
C h a i f e t z  & Schreiber, P.C. $2,500. 

2003 fur 

All Other Fees 

None. 

Audit Fees 

The aggregate f e e s  billed for the fiscal year ended December 31, 
professional services rendered by the principal a c c o u n t a n t  for t h e  audit of  o u r  
annual financial statements and review of the financial statements included in 
our Form 10-KSB or services that are normally provided by the accountant in 
connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements for t h e s e  fiscal 
periods were estimated as follows: we paid our accountant, Chaifetz & Schreiber, 
P.C. $29,500. 

2002 for 



Audit-Related Fees 

None.  

Tax Fees  

The a g g r e g a t e  fees billed for the fiscal y e a r  ended December 31, 2002 f o r  
professional services rendered by the principal accountant for t a x  compliance, 
tax advice and tax planning were estimated as follows: we paid our accountant, 
Chaifetz & Schreibzr, P . C .  $2,500. 

All Other Fees 

None. 
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SIGNATURES 

In accordance w i t h  S e c t i o n  13 o r  15(d) of the Exchange Act, the 
caused this report t o  be s i g n e d  on its behalf by the undersignec 
a u t h o r i z e d .  

XFONE, J N C .  

By / s /  Guy Nissenson 
______________I_____L____ 

Guy lijissenson, P r e s i d e n t ,  
Principal Executive Officer,Principal Financial Officer, 
P r i n c i p a l  Accounting Officer, and D i r e c t o r  

registrant 
, thereunto di 

June 10, 2004 

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this r e p o r t  has been signed below by the 
following persons on behalf of the r e g i s t r a n t  and in the capacities and on the 
dates indicated. 

By / s /  Guy Nissenson 

Guy Nissenson, President, 
Principal Executive Officer,Principal F i n a n c i a l  Officer, 
Principal Accounting Officer, and D i r e c t o r  

By / s /  Abraham Keinan 

Abraham Keinan 
Chairman of the Board of Directors 

I ___________________L____  

By / s /  Eyal  Harish 

E y a l  Harish 
Director 

_ _ - _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - - - -  

June 10, 2004 

June 10, 2004 

J u n e  10, 2004 
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Zxhibit 31.1 

S e c t i o n  302 Certification 

CERTIFICATIONS 

I, Guy Nissenson, certify that: 

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form lO-KSB/A of Xfone, Inc.; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does  not contain any untrue statement of a 
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements 
made, 
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not 

3. Based on my knowledge, t h e  financial statements, 
information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the 
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of Xfone, Inc. as of, 
and for, the periods presented in this report; 

and other financial 

4. The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for 
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures 
Exchange A c t  Rules 13a-15Ie) and 15d-l5(e)) and internal control over financial 
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5(f) and 15d-l5(f)) f o r  Xfone, 
Inc. and have: 

(as defined in 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such 
disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, 
ensure that material information relating to Xfone,  Inc., including its 
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within t h o s e  entities, 
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

to 

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or 
caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our 
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements f o r  external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of Xfone, Inc.'s disclosure controls 
and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the 
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the 
period covered by this r e p o r t  based on such evaluation; and 

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in Xfone, Inc.'s internal 
control over financial reporting that occurred during t h e  small business 
issuer's most recent f i s c a l  quarter (the small business issuer's fourth fiscal 
quarter in the case of an annual r e p o r t )  that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the small business issuer's internal 
c o n t r o l  over financial reporting; and 

5 .  The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our 
most recent evaluation of i n t e r n a l  control over financial reporting, 
Inc.'s auditors and the audit committee of Xfone, 
persons performing the equivalent functions): 

to Xfone, 
Inc.'s board of directors (or 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the 
design or operation of internal control over f i n a n c i a l  reporting w h i c h  are 
reasonably l i k e l y  to adversely affect Xfone,  Inc.'s ability to record, process, 
summarize and report financial information; and 

(b) Any fraud, whether or n o t  material, that involves management or 
o t h e r  employees who have'a significant role in Xfone, Inc.'s internal control 
over financial reporting. 

Date :  June 10, 2004 



/s/Guy Nissenson 
Guy Nissenson 
P r e s i d e n t ,  Principal Executive O f f i c e r ,  Principal F i n a n c i a l  Officer, 
and Principal Accounting O f f i c e r  
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E x h i b i t  32  

C e r t i f i c a t i o n  Pur suan t  T o  1 8  U . S . C .  S e c t i o n  1350 ,  A s  Adopted Pursuan t  T o  
S e c t i o n  906 of t h e  Sarbanes-Oxley A c t  of  2002  

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE 
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF Z O O 2  

I n  c o n n e c t i o n  w i t h  t h e  Form lO-KSB/A Annual  Report  of Xfone, 
"Company") f o r  the period ended December 31, 2 0 0 3 ,  as  filed w i t h  t h e  S e c u r i t i e s  
and Exchange Commission on t h e  d a t e  hereof  ( t h e  " R e p o r t " ) ,  the undersigned 
h e r e b y  certifies, pursuant t o  1 8  U . S . C .  S e c t i o n  1350 ,  a s  adopted pursuant t o  
S e c t i o n  906 o f  t h e  Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 

I n c .  (the 

t h a t :  

0 

0 

the Report f u l l y  complies with t h e  r e q u i r e m e n t s  of  S e c t i o n  13(a) o r  
15(d) of t h e  S e c u r i t i e s  Exchange Act o f  1934; and 

t h e  information c o n t a i n e d  i n  t h e  Report  f a i r l y  presents, 
m a t e r i a l  r e s p e c t s ,  t h e  f i n a n c i a l  c o n d i t i o n  and results of operations 
of the Company. 

in all 

Date: June 10, 2004 

By: /s/Guy Niss.enson 
Guy Nissenson 
P r e s i d e n t ,  P r i n c i p a l  Executive O f f i c e r ,  Principal Financial O f f i c e r ,  
and P r i n c i p a l  Accounting Officer 
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EXHIBIT D 
C A PAB I LlTY STATEMENTS 

1. The Applicant, through its parent company, h a s  sufficient financial cupability to 
provide the requested service in the geographic area proposed to be served. 
This is evidenced by its assets set forth in its financial statements. Refer to 10K 
provided as Exhibit C. In addition, the Applicant will be the surviving entity of a 
merger with WS Telecorn, Inc. d/b/a eXpeTel Communications, an existing 
carrier who is financial capable. 

2. The Applicant will maintain the requested services revenue generated from 
ongoing operations of eXpeTel. The Company would also have access to 
funding from its parent company should this become necessary. 

3. The Company has sufficient financial capability to meet  its lease and ownership 1 

obligations. I 



I 

EXHIBIT E 

TECHNICAL CAPABILITY 

The Company will provide resold and facilities-based local exchange service using 
BellSouth as its underlying service provider. Therefore, the quality of service offered by 
the Company will, at a minimum, be equivalent to the services offered by BellSouth. 

In addition, the Company’s officers have technical experience in the 
telecommunications industry as evidence by the profiles submitted as Exhibit B. 



EXHIBIT F 

PROPOSED PRICE LIST 

The Applicant’s price list mirrors the approved price list of WS Telecom, lnc. d/b/a 
eXpeTel Communications with whom it is merging. Only the name has been changed. 



=one USA, Inc. 

Alternative Local Exchange Service 

Florida Price List No. 1 
Original Sheet 1 

TITLE SHEET 

ALTERNATIVE LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICES PRTCE LIST 

This price list contains the descriptions, regulations, service standards and rates applicable to alternative local 
exchange telecommunications services provided by XFone USA, Inc. with principal offices at 2506 Lakeland Drive, 
Suite 405, Flowood, Mississippi 39232, This price list applies for services furnished within the state of Florida. This 
price list is on file with the Florida Public Service Cormnission, and copies may be inspected, during noma1 business 
hours, at the Company's principal place of business. 

IS SUED: June 30,2004 EFFECTIVE: 

BY: Ted Parsons, Exec. Vice President 
XFone USA, hnc. 

2506 Lakeland Drive, Suite 405 
Flowood, Mississippi 39232 



XFone USA, Inc. 

Alternative Local Exchange Service 

Florida Price List No. 1 
Original Sheet 2 

CHECK SHEET 

The sheets listed below, which are inclusive of this price list, are effective as of the date shown at the bottom of the 
respective sheet(s). Original and revised sheets as named below comprise all changes from the original price list and 
are currently in effect as of the date of the bottom of this page. 

SHEET REV1 SION SHEET REVISION 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 

Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 

ISSUED: June 30,2004 EFFECTIVE : 

BY: Ted Parsons, Exec. Vice President 
XFone USA, Inc. 

2506 Lakeland Drive, Suite 405 
Flowood, Mississippi 39232 



XFone USA, Inc. Florida Price List No. 1 
Original Sheet 3 

Alternative Local Exchange Service 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Titlesheet . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1 

Checksheet ..................~.........................................................I... 2 

Tableofcontents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3 

Symbols Sheet . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . * . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  + . . . . . . . . . . .  4 

T a r i f f F o ~ ~ t S h e e t s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . * . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , .  5 

ExchangeServiceList . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6 

Section 1 - Technical Terms and Abbreviations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . I . . . . . . . . . . 7 

Section 2 - Rule, Regulations and Service Quality Criteria . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 8 

Section 3 - Basic Service Descriptions and Rates . . . . . . + . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . + . . . 16 

ISSUED: June 30,2004 EFFECTIVE: 

BY: Ted Parsons, Exec. Vice President 
XFone USA, Inc. 

2506 Lakeland Drive, Suite 405 
Flowood, Mississippi 39232 



XFone USA, Inc. 

Alternative Local Exchange Service 

Florida Price List No. 1 
Original Sheet 4 

SYMBOLS SHEET 

The following are the only symbols used for the purposes indicated below: 

D - Delete Or Discontinue 

I - Change Resulting In An Increase to A Customer's Bill 

M - Moved From Another Price List Location 

N - New 

R - Change Resulting In A Reduction To A Customer's Bill 

T - Change in Text Or Regulation But No Change In Rate Or Charge 

IS SUED : June 30,2004 EFFECTIVE: 

BY: Ted Parsons, Exec. Vice Prcsidcnt 
XFone USA, Inc. 

2506 Lakeland Drive, Suite 405 
Flowood, Mississippi 39232 



XFone USA, Inc. 

Alternative Local Exchange Service 

Florida Price List No. I 
Original Sheet 5 

PRICE LIST FORMAT SHEETS 

A. Sheet Numbering - Sheet numbers appear in the upper right corner of the page. Sheets are numbered sequentially. 
However, new sheets are occasionally added to the price list. When a new sheet is added between sheets already in 
effect, a decimal is added. For example, a new sheet added between sheets 14 and 15 would be 14.1. 

B. Sheet Revision Numbers - Revision numbers also appear in the upper right comer of each page. These numbers 
are used to determine the most current sheet version on file with the FPSC. For example, the 4th revised Sheet 14 cancels 
the 3rd revised Sheet 14. Because of various suspension periods, deferrals, etc, the FPSC follows in their price list 
approval process, the most current sheet number on file with the Commission is not always the price list page in effect. 
Consult the Check Sheet for the sheet currently in effect. 

C. Paragraph Numbering Sequence - There are various levels of paragraph coding. Each level of coding is 
subservient to its next higher level as follows: 

2. 
2.1. 
2.1.1. 
2.1.1.A. 
2.1.1.A.1. 
2.1.1 .A. 1 .(a). 

D. Check Sheets - When a price list filing is made with the FPSC, an updated check sheet accompanies the price list 
filing. The check sheet lists the sheets contained in the price list, with a cross reference to the current revision number. 
When new pages are added, the check sheet is changed to reflect the revision. All revisions made in a given filing are 
designated by an asterisk (*>. There will be no other symbols used on this page if these are the only changes made to 
it @e., the format, etc. remains the same, just revised revision levels on some pages). The price list user should refer to 
the latest check sheet to fmd out if a particular sheet is the most current on file with the FPSC. 

ISSUED: June 30,2004 EFFECTIVE: 

BY: ‘l’ed Parsons, Exec. Vice President 
XFone USA, Inc. 

2506 Lakeland Drive, Suite 405 
Flowood, Mississippi 39232 



XFone USA, Inc. 

Alternative Local Exchange Service 

Florida Price List No. 1 
Original Sheet 6 

EXCHANGE SERVICE LIST 

The Company will provide local exchange service throughout the State of Florida. Local calling areas will coincide with 
those of the Incumbent Local Exchange Carrier (ILEC), unless otherwise specified. 

ISSUED: June 30,2004 EFFECTIVE: 

BY: Ted Parsuns, Exec. Vice President 
XFone USA, Inc. 

2506 Lakeland Drive, Suite 405 
Flowood, Mississippi 39232 



XFone USA, Inc. 

Alternative Local Exchange Service 

Florida Price List No. 1 
Original Sheet 7 

SECTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS 

Access Line - An arrangement which connects the customer's location to the Company's network switching center. 

Authorization Code - A numerical code, one or more of which are available to a customer to enable him/her to access 
the carrier, and which are used by the carrier both to prevent unauthorized access to its facilities and to identify the 
customer for billing purposes. 

Company or Carrier - XFone USA, h c .  

Customer - the person, fmn, corporation or other entity which orders service and is responsible for payment of charges 
due and compliance with the Company's price list regulations. 

Day - From 8:OO AM up to, but not including 5:OO PM local time Monday through Friday. 

Evening - From 590 PM up to but not including 11:OO PM local time Sunday through Friday. 

Holidays - The Company's recognized holidays are New Year's Day, Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, Presidents Day, 
Memorial Day, JuIy 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. 

Night/Weekend - From 11:OO PM up to but not including 8:OO AM Sunday through Friday, and 8:OO AM Saturday up 
to but not including 5:OO PM Sunday. 

IS SUED : June 30,2004 EFFECTIVE: 

BY: Ted Parsons, Exec. Vice President 
XFone USA, Inc. 

2506 Lakeland Drive, Suite 405 
Flowood, Mississippi 39232 



XFone USA, Inc. Florida Price List No. 1 
Original Sheet 8 

Alternative Local Exchange Service 

SECTION 2 - RULES, REGULATIONS AND SERVICE QUALITY CRTTERIA 

2.1 Undertaking of the Company. 

The Company's services and facilities are furnished for communications originating at specified points within 
the state of Florida under terms of this price list. 

The Company's installs operates, and maintains the communications services provided herein in accordance 
with the terms and conditions set forth under this price list. It may act as the customer's agent for ordering 
access connection facilities provided by other carriers or entities when authorized by the customer, to allow 
connection of a customer's location to the Company's network. The customer shall be responsible for all 
charges due for such service arrangement. 

The Company's services and facilities are provided on a monthly basis unless ordered on a longer term basis, 
and are available twenty-four hours per day, seven days per week. 

2.2 Limitations. 

2.2.1 Service is offered subject to the availability of facilities and provisions of this price list. 

2.2.2 The Company's reserves the right to discontinue furnishing service, or limit the use of service 
necessitated by conditions beyond its control: or when the customer is using service in violation of the 
law or the provisions of this price list. 

ISSUED: June 30,2004 EFFECTIVE: 

BY: Ted Parsons, Exec. Vice President 
XFone USA, Inc. 

2506 Lakeland Drive, Suite 405 
Flowood, Mississippi 39232 



XFone USA, Inc. Florida Price List No. 1 
Original Sheet 9 

Alternative Local Exchange Service 

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS continued 

2.2 Limitations (Cont.) 

2.2.3 All facilities provided under this price list are directly controlled by the Company and the customer 
may not transfer or assign the use of service or facilities, except with the express written consent of 
the Company. Such transfer or assignment shall only apply where there is no intemption of the use 
or location of the service or facilities. 

2.2.4 

2.2.5 

Prior written permission from the Company is required before any assignment or transfer. All 
regulations and conditions contained in this price list shall apply to all such permitted assignees or 
transferees, as well as all conditions for service, 

Customers reselling or rebilling services must have a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity 
as an ALEC carrier from the Florida Public Service Commission. 

2.3 Liabilities of the Company. 

2.3.1 Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Price List, the Company’s liability, if any, for its willhl 
misconduct is not limited by this Price List. With respect to any other claim or suit, by a customer or 
by any others, for damages associated with the installation, provision, preemption, termination, 
maintenance, repair, billing, or restoration of service, the Company’s liability, if any, shall not exceed 
an amount equal to the proportionate part of the monthly recurring charge for the service for the period 
during which the service provided was affected. 

2.3.2 The Company shall be indemnified and held harmless by the customer against: 

Claims for libel, slander, or infr-ingeinent of copyright arising out of the material, data, 
information, or other content transmitted over the Company’s facilities. 

All other claims arising out of any act or omission of the customer in connection with any 
service or facility provided by the Company. 

ISSUED: 

BY: 

June 30,2004 EFFECTIVE: 

Ted Parsons, Exec. Vice President 
XFone USA, Inc. 

2506 Lakeland Drive, Suite 405 
Flowood, Mississippi 39232 



XF'one USA, Inc. Florida Price List No. 1 
Original Sheet 10 

Alternative Local Exchange Service 

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS continued 

2.4 Interruption of Service. 

2.4.1 Credit allowance €or the interruption of service which is not due to The Company's testing or 
adjusting, negligence or the customer, or to the failure of channels or equipment provided by the 
customer, are subject to the general liability provisions set forth in 2.3.1 herein. It shall be the 
customer's obligation to notify the Company immediately of any service interruption for which a credit 
allowance is desired. Before giving such notice, the customer shall ascertain that the trouble is not 
being caused by any action or omission by the customer within his control, if any, furnished by the 
customer and connected to the Company's facilities. No refund or credit will be made for the time that 
the Coinpany stands ready to repair the service and the subscriber does not provide access to the 
Company for such restoration work. 

2.4.2 No credit shall be allowed for an interruption of a continuous duration of less than twenty-four hours 
after the subscriber notifies the Company. 

2,4.3 The customer shall be credited for an interruption of more than twenty-four hours as follows: 

Credit Formula: 

Credit = NB x C 

"A" - outage time in days 
"B" - total days in month 
"C" - total monthly charge for affected facility 

ISSUED: June 30,2004 

BY: 

EFFECTIVE: 

'l'ed Parsons, Exec. Vice President 
XFone USA, Inc. 

2506 Lakeland Drive, Suite 405 
Flowood, Mississippi 39232 



XFone USA, Inc. Florida Price List No. 1 
Original Sheet 11 

Alternative Local Exchange Service 

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS continued 

2.5 Disconnection of Service by Carrier. 

The Company, upon five ( 5 )  working days written notice to the customer, may discontinue service or cancel 
an application for service without incurring any liability for any of the following reasons: 

2.5.1 

2.5.2 

2.5.3 

2.5.4 

2.5.5 

Non-payment of any sun due to carrier for regulated service for more than thrty days beyond the date 
of rendition of the bill for such service. 

A violation of any regulation governing the service under this price list. 

A violation of any law, rule, or regulation of any government authority having jurisdiction over such 
service. 

The company has given the customer notice and has allowed a reasonable time to comply with any 
rule, or remedy, and deficiency as stated in Rule 25-4.113, F.A.C., Refusal or Discontinuance of 
Service by Company. 

Service may be disconnected without notice for tampering with company equipment or interfering with 
service to other customers or for fi-aud. 

ISSUED: June 30,2004 EFFECTIVE: 

BY: Ted Parsons, Exec. Viw Presidelit 
XFone USA, Inc. 

2506 Lakeland Drive, Suite 405 
Flowood, Mississippi 39232 



XFone USA, Inc. Florida Price List No. 1 
Original Sheet 12 

Alternative Local Exchange Service 

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS continued 

2.6 Deposits 

The Company does not require a deposit from the customer. 

2.7 

2.8 

2.9 

2.10 

Advance Payments 

For customers whom the Company feels an advance payment is necessary, the Company reserves the right to 
collect an amount not to exceed one (1) month’s estimated charges as an advance payment for service. This will 
be applied against the next month’s charges and if necessary a new advance payment will be collected for the 
next month. 

Taxes 

All state and local taxes (i.e., gross receipts tax, saIes tax, municipal utilities tax) are listed as separate line items 
and are not included in the quoted rates. 

Billing: of Calls 

All charges due by the subscriber are payable at any agency duly authorized to receive such payments. Any 
objection to billed charges should be promptly reported to the Company. Adjustments to custoiners’ bills shall 
be made to the extent that records are available andor circumstances exist which reasonably indicate that such 
charges are not in accordance with approved rates or that an adjustment may otherwise be appropriate. 

Equipment 

2.10.1 The Company’s facilities and service may be used with or terminated in Customer-provided terminal 
equipment or Customer-provided communications systems, such as a PBX, key systems or Pay 
Telephone. Such terminal equipment shall be furnished and maintained at the expense of the 
Customer, except as otherwise provided. The Customer is responsible for all costs at his or her 
premises, including personnel, wiring, electrical power, and the like, incurred in the use of the 
Company’s service. The Customer is responsible to ensuring that customer-provided equipment 
connected to Company equipment and facilities is compatible with such equipment and facilities. 

ISSUED: June 30,2004 EFFECTIVE: 

BY: Ted Parsons, Exec. Vice Presidcnl 
XFone USA, Inc. 

2506 Lakeland Drive, Suite 405 
Flowood, Mississippi 39232 



XFone USA, Inc. 

Alternative Local Exchange Service 

Florida Price List No. 1 
Original Sheet 13 

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS continued 

2.10 Equipment (contd.) 

2.10.2 The Company shall use reasonable efforts to maintain facilities and equipment that it furnishes to the 
Customer. The Customer may not, nor may the Customer permit others, to disconnect, rearrange, 
remove, attempt to repair or otherwise interfere with any of the facilities or equipment installed by 
the Company, except upon the written consent ofthe Company. 

2.10.3 Equipment the Company provides or installs at the Customer premises for use in connection with 
services the Company offers shall not be used for any purpose other than that for which the Company 
provided it. 

2.10.4 The Customer shall be responsible for payment of service charges, as set forth herein, for visits by the 
Company's agents or employees to the premises of the Customer when the service difficulty or trouble 
report results from the use of equipment or facilities provided by any party other than the Company, 
including but not limited to the Customer. 

2.10.5 The Company shall not be responsible for the installation, operation or maintenance of any customer- 
provided equipment. Where such equipment is connected to the facilities furnished pursuant to this 
price list, the responsibility of the Company shall be limited to the furnishing of facilities offered 
under this price list and to the maintenance and operation of such facilities. Subject to this 
responsibility, the Company shall not be responsible for the transmission of signals by Customer- 
provided equipment or for the quality of, or defects in, such transmission; or the reception of signals 
by customer-provided equipment. 

2.10.6 Upon reasonable notification to the Customer and at a reasonable time, the Company may make such 
tests and inspections as may be necessary to determine that the customer is complying with the 
requirements set forth in the section for the installation, operation and maintenance of customer- 
provided facilities, equipment and wiring in the connection of such facilities and equipment to 
Company-provided facilities and equipment. 

2.10.7 Title to all facilities provided by the Company under this price list shall remah in the Company's name 
or in the name of the carrier supplying the services and facilities being resold. 

ISSUED: June 30,2004 EFFECTIVE: 

BY: Ted Parsons, Exec. Vice President 
XFone USA, Inc. 

2506 Lakeland Drive, Suite 405 
Flowood, Mississippi 39232 



XFone USA, Inc. Florida Price List No. 1 
Original Sheet 14 

Alternative Local Exchange Service 

2.11 

2.12 

2.13 

2.14 

2.15 

2.16 

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS continued 

Installation 

Service is installed upon mutual agreement between the Customer and the Company. The service agreement 
does not alter rates specified in this price list. 

Service Implementation 

Absent a promotional offering, service implementation charges will apply to new service orders or to orders 
to change existing service. Implementation charges for business services are listed in Section 3.  

Reconnection Charge 

A reconnection fee may be charged when service is re-established for customers who have been disconnected 
for non-payment, and is payable at the time that the restoration of suspended service and facilities is arranged. 

Operator Senrice Rules 

The Company will enforce the operator service rules specified by the Commission and by the FCC. 

Access to Telephone Relay Services 

Where required by the Commission, the Company will participate in telephone relay services for handicapped 
and/or hearing impaired end users, and will coinply with all regulations and requirements. The Company shall 
impose any monthly surcharge or any other related charge upon its local exchange telecommunications 
subscribers as may be required by state law. 

Telecommunications Relay Service 

For intrastate toll calls received from the relay service, the Company will when billing relay calls discount relay 
service calls by 50 percent off of the otherwise applicable rate for a voice nonrelay call except that where either 
the calling or called party indicates that either party is both hearing and visually impaired, the call shall be 
discounted 60 percent off of the otherwise applicable rate for a voice nonrelay call. The above discounts apply 
only to time-sensitive elements of a charge for the call and shall not apply to per call charges such as a credit 
card surcharge. 
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2.17 

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS continued 

Calculation of Distance 

Usage charges for all mileage sensitive products are based on the airline distance between rate centers 
associated with the originating and terminating points of the call. 

The airline mileage between rate centers is determined by applying the fonnula below to the vertical and 
horizontal coordinates associated with the rate centers involved. The company uses the rate centers and 
associated vertical and horizontal coordinates that are produced by Bell Communication Research in their NPA- 
NXX V&H Coordinate Tape and AT&T Tariff. 

Formula: / (VI - V2)2 + (H1 - H212 
v 10 

2.18 Cancellation of Service by Customer 

Customers can cancel basic local exchange service by providing written or oral notification to the Company. 

For cancellation of Private Branch Exchange (PBX) service, the customer must provide five ( 5 )  working days 
written notice of cancellation to the Company. 

2.19 Minimum Call Completion Rate 

Customers can expect a call completion rate (number of calls coinpleted divided by the number of calls 
attempted) of 90% during peak use periods for all FG D services (1 + dialing). 

2.20 Access to 911 Emergency Services 

The Company will provide, at no cost to the custoiner, 91 1 emergency services access at levels equal to the 
service provided by the ILEC. 

2.21 Service Quality Statement 

As a reseller, the quality of service provided to the company’s end users will be equal to that received from the 
company’s underlying carrier. 
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SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS AND RATES 

3.1 Timing of Calls 

3.1.1 

3.1.2 

3.1.3 

3.1.4 

When Billing Charges Beg;in and End For Phone Calls 

The customer's usage charge is based on the actual usage of the Company's network. Usage begins 
when the called party picks up the receiver, (i.e. when 2 way communication, often referred to as 
"conversation time" is possible.). When the called party picks up is determined by hardware answer 
supervision in which the local telephone company sends a signal to the switch or the software utilizing 
audio tone detection. When software answer supervision is employed, up to 60 seconds of ringing is 
allowed before it is billed as usage of the network. A call is terminated when the calling or called 
party hangs up. 

Billing Increments 

The billing increments for each service is set forth in the individual product rate section. 

Per Call BiIling Charges 

Billing will be rounded up to the nearest penny for each call. 

Uncompleted Calls 

There shall be no charges for uncompleted calls. 
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3.2 

3.3 

3.4 

SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS AND RATES continued 

Determining Applicable Rate in Effect. 

For the initial minute, the rate applicable at the start of chargeable time at the calling station applies. 
For additional minutes, the rate applicable is that rate which is in effect at the calling station when the 
additional minute(s) begin. That is, if chargeable time begins during the Day Period, the Day Rate 
applies to the initial minute and to any additional minutes that the call continues during the rate period. 
If the call continues into a different rate period, the appropriate rates from that period apply to any 
additional minutes occurring in that rate period. If an additional minute is split between two rate 
periods, the rate period applicable at the start of the minute applies to the entire minute. 

Payment of Calls 

3.3.1 Late Payment Charges 

A Late Payment Charge of $1.95 plus an interest charge of 2.5 percent on the unpaid balance 
exceeding $6.00 for residence subscribers and a Late Payment Charge of $1 1.85 plus an interest 
charge of I .5 percent on the unpaid balance exceeding $6.00 for business subscribers will be applied 
to each subscriber’s bill, when the previous month’s bill has not been paid in full prior to the next 
billing date. The 1.5 percent interest charge is applied to the total unpaid amount carried forward and 
is included in the total amount due on the current bill. 

3.3.2 Return Check Charees 

A return check charge of $25.00 will be assessed for checks returned for insufficient funds if the face 
value does not exceed $50.00, $30.00 if the face value does exceed $50.00 but does not exceed 
$300.00, $40.00 if the face value exceeds $300.00 or 5% of the value of the check, which ever is 
greater. 

Restoration of Service 

A per occurrence reconnection fee is charged when service is re-established for customers who had been 
disconnected for non-payment. See Sections 3.7.17 and 3 .S. 10 for applicable restoration charges. 
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SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS AND RATES continued 

3.5 Local Service Areas 

The Company will provide Local Exchange Service in the Florida BellSouth territories. Local calling service 
areas will coincide with those of BellSouth, unless otherwise specified. 

Installation, monthly recurring and per minute usage charges will apply to the Company's local exchange 
services. An addition per-call operator service charge will apply for operator-assisted calling. 

3.6 Product Descriptions 

3.6.1 Business Services 

Business Services are offered for local calling using the facilities of the Company andor those of other 
authorized Local Exchange Carriers. Business Services are offered primarily to the following: 

1. Offices, stores, factories, mines and all other places of a strictly business nature; 

2. Offices of hotels, boarding houses, apartment houses, colleges, quarters occupied by clubs 
and fraternal societies, public, private or parochial schools, hospitals, nursing homes, 
libraries, churches, and other institutions; and 

3 .  Services terminating solely on the secretarial facilities of a telephone answering bureau. 
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SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS AND RATES continued 

3.6 Product Descriptions, cont. 

3.6.2 Residential Local Exchange Service 

Residential local exchange service provides the Customer with a single, voice-grade, DTMF 
communications channel. Each Local Line will include a telephone number, as well as access 
to the service. 

Residence Service is h i s h e d  in private homes or apartments, including all parts of the 
subscriber's domestic establishment, for domestic use and not for substantial occupational 
use; in the study of a clergyman located jn a church, in a college fkaternity or sorority house, 
college dormitories, convents and monasteries for domestic rather than occupational use in 
residential quarters. 

3.6.3 Directory Listings 

For each Customer of Exchange Access Service(s), the Company shall arrange for the listing 
of the Customer's main billing telephone number in the directory(ies) published by the 
doininant Local Exchange Carrier in the area at no additional charge. At a Customer's option, 
the Company will arrange for additional listings at an additional charge. 

3.6.4 Operator-Assisted Services 

Operator-assisted services are provided to Customers on a presubscribed basis. Services are 
also provided to Customers and Users of exchange access lines which are presubscribed to 
the Company's interexchange outbound calling services. Various billing arrangements are 
available with the Company's operator-assisted service including Calling Card, Commercial 
Credit Card, Collect, Person-to- Person and Thkd Party. Monthly andor usage-sensitive 
charges apply, as well as per call operator charges. 
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SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS AND RATES continued 

3.6.5 Directory Assistance 

Customers and users of the Company's services may obtain directory assistance in 
determining telephone numbers within the state by calling the Directory Assistance operator. 

A credit wiIl be given for calls to Directory Assistance when; 

1. 

2. 

3. 

The Customer experiences poor transmission or is cut-off during the call, 

The Customer is given an incorrect telephone number, or 

The Customer inadvertently rnisdials an incorrect Directory Assistance NPA. 

To receive a credit, the customer must notify the Company operator or Business Office of the 
problem experienced. 
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SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS AND RATES continued 

3.7 Local Service Rates 

The Company wiIl offer the BellSouth Services and Features listed in its W E - P  Interconnection Agreement 
with BellSouth. All BellSouth services and features will be charged at the rates stated in the applicable 
BellSouth tariff, and will be passed through to the end user, subject to the discounts stated herein. 

3.8 LocaI Business Services 

The Company will offer local business services to all customers on a month-to-month basis at the BellSouth 
rates for the specified service. 

Zone 1 and Zone 2 customers signing tenn contracts will receive the following discounts off of the stated rates: 

Zone 1 
Term Discount 

1 Year 20% 
2 Year 22% 
3 Year 25% 

Zone 2 
Discount 

3.8 Local Residential Services 

The Company will offer local residence services to customers on a month-to-month basis at a fifteen percent 
(15%) discount from the BellSouth rates for the specified service. 
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